QrQIvao

Argiva Group Limited

Registered number 05254001

Annual Report and Financial
Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

*ACHCEHIE*

A03 29/03/2023 #306
COMPANIES HOUSE

WEDNESDAY




Argiva Group Limited {05254001)
Arnual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2022

Contents

Corporate INFOrMation ... i rrrssan et seres s s s s s sss e st e s e s sse s st esee ammnmannansnsssssis
Cautionary Statement.............

Argiva at a glance - 2022
Rl 1= o OO OO E OO rO OSSO OO DRSPS

Chairman’s Introduction..........cciiiirnnicieenc e enes ereertetaemaTent e rnrar s nnans e rrns 9
L T Tl AT o T OO USRS POUOPRPO 11
Chief EXECULIVE’S STATEIMIENT ooeiiiiiiiviiiece it s ieitiee e eeeestssesss s r e 1S es s s s s bt e eaeese s eassasac s sanenas s sassneneoesinas 12
BUSINESS DV BIVIBW oot iiiiiiiii it iriiee s cerire e s e irreeeeeesae s s e ene e eens femes e tdbaeee e e e e oA aasa s shene b b aeaneansrabebeaaesanaen
BUSINESS IMOOEBT ittt cei et e ety e et e e e e s s ea e e eee e e eeat e 1aeee et ebasane seaeebeae e neesbebrmmneeeebmbaeaabeneaan
B = L= Lol @ IV T=T o VT PR U RS STRPROPRN

BUSINESS U Dot e, e e e ga et b n e e n ittt nsn s e
Financial review .........cccccceeie
Key Performance Indicators

Corporate RESPONSIBIIILY . ....ooiiiiii e e e et e e
Modern Slavery Act: Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement.......ccccoociiiniiiiecr s 42
LCTa N - Vol OO U P 44
Board of Directors and EXecutive COMMITLER .......ccuvrririrririiicrenieeeietr e ree s e s e e ssae s soneesneessr e esanrenens 445
Principal Risks ant UNCertalNties .. .cuuuiiiueee i ierseenerreiae e e e teir it st e s e sm scs s mec s e e e eeaenen s sassenesaenssninen 50
[0 0= Tor o] £l 1 T=T « o] o SO SO O PO PO TR VOO 56
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements .......ccccccoivinicecnnnnn. 72
Group FINancial STatemMENES. ..o et e e e e e s er s e s st 73
Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Argiva Group Limited.......c..ccovcnnmnconiinnnnn. 74
Consolidated iINCOME SEATEIMEBNT.....ci i e bbb e e ot s b b e et e b b reme bbb e
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income...

Consolidated statement of financial POSITION. ...t e e
Consolidated statement of Changes iN EQUILY......cco i e s e s
Consolidated cash flow statEmMENT ... ... e et et s et e
Notes to the Group financial StatEMENTS....c.cv i e e e

Company Financial Statements
Directors’ report for Argiva Group Limited {"the CoOmpany)......coiincnmeoneonnon 135

Company statement of financial POSTHION... ... e 136
Company statement of changes iN EQUILY.......co e e e 137
Notes to the Caompany financial Stat@MENTS..........ooiecin i e 138



Arqiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2022

Corporate Information

As at the date of this report (26 September 2022):

Group Board of Directors

Mike Darcey

Sally Davis

Paul Donovan

Shuja Khan (Chief Executive Officer)
Neil King

Peter Adams {alternate)

Susana Leith-Smith

Batiste Ogier

Mike Parton {Chairman)

Christian Seymour

Max Fieguth (alternate)

Sean West {Chief Financial Officer)

Company Secretary
Katrina Dick

Group website:
www.argiva.com

Registered Office
Crawley Court
Winchester
Hampshire

S021 20QA

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
1 Embankment Place

Charing Cross

London

WC2ZN 6RH

Company Registration Number
05254001



Argiva Group Limited {05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2022

Cautionary Statement

This annual report contains various forward-looking statements regarding events and trends that are subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause the actual results and financial position of the Group to differ
materially from the information presented herein. When used in this report, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“intend”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”, “should” and similar expressions, as they relate to the Group, are
intended to identify such forward looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on
these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. Save as otherwise required by any
rules or regulations, the Group does not undertake any cbligations publicly to release the result of any
revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

The risks and uncertainties referred to above include:

- actions or decisions by governmental and regulatory bodies, or changes in the regulatory framework
in which the Group operates, which may impact the ability of the Group to carry on its businesses;

- changes or advances in technology, and availability of resources such as spectrum, necessary to use
new or existing technology, or customer and consumer preferences regarding technology;

- the performance of the markets in the UK, the EU and the wider region in which the Group operates;

- the ability of the Group to realise the benefits it expects from existing and future projects and
investments it is undertaking or plans to or may undertake;

- the ability of the Group to develop, expand and maintain its broadcast and machine-to-machine
infrastructure;

- the ability of the Group to obtain external financing or maintain sufficient capital to fund its existing
and future investments and projects;

- the Group's dependency on only a limited number of key customers for a large percentage of its
revenue; and

- expectations as to revenues not under contract.

Guidance note to the annual report:

In this document, references to ‘Argiva’ and ‘the Group’ refer to Arqiva Group Limited ("AGL") and its subsidiaries and
markets as the context may require. References to the ‘Company’ refer to the results and performance of Argiva Group
Limited as a standalone entity.

A reference to a year expressed as 2022 is to the financial year ended 30 June 2022, This convention applies similarly to
any reference to a previous or subsequent financial year. Additionally, references to ‘current year’, ‘this year’ and ‘the year’
are in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2022. References to the ‘prior year’ and ‘last year’ are to the financial
year ended 30 June 2021.
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Argiva at a glance - 2022

ENABLING A SWITCHED-ON WORLD TO FLOW

Who we are

Argiva is a leading UK communications infrastructure business. We are behind the scenes
delivering miilions of vital connections to enable millions of peopie, businesses, and machines to
connect wherever they are through TV, radio and machine-to-machine data services, enabling a

switched-on world to flow.

Our Infrastructure

c. 1,450
broadcast transmission sites in
the UK

¢. 1,150 TV transmissions sites

98.5%
of the UK population reached
through our TV services

275 TV channels
delivered into the UK and Ireland

Market leader for commercial
DTT? spectrum
owning two of the three national
commercial multiplexes

Over 1,000 TV channels delivered
internationally
via satellite to 5 continents

99.5% network coverage
across the North of England and
Scotland on our smart energy
networks

¢.80 satellite dishes accessing
30+ satellites

12 million premises
can connect to our smart meter
networks

50 million data points
delivered on our smart metering
networks every day

! Refers to Digital Terrestrial Television best known for supporting Freeview
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What we do

Arqgiva works in partnership with our customers, in the UK and around the world, building and operating the
complex ecosystems and infrastructures through which data and content can move effectively, securely and

sustainably at scale — whether that’s through broadcasting and transmission services, or smart networks for
energy and water.

Key Strategic ambitions

Undisputed leader in UK TV and radio
broadcast

Transition global media to cloud solutions

UK’s leading smart utilities platform

Innovator of scalable solutions for new
connectivity sectors
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Highlights

Whilst core media and broadcast has remained stable and smart utilities networks increase with the ramp up
of water meter products, the Group has seen the managed reducticn of activity on the 700MHz Clearance
programme now completed and the completion of Transitional Service Agreements (TSAs?) following the
disposal of the Telecoms business in July 2020. There have also been decreases in DTT multiplexes and
managed broadcast services due to the run rate of pricing pressures on renewals. The Group is now focusing
on driving simplification and efficiency to build on cost savings and building a sustainable business.
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EBITDA is a nan-GAAP measure and refers ta ‘earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and armortisation’ and includes add-backs for certain
items charged tc operating profit that are not considered to reflect the underlying performance of the business. A reconciliation of EBITDA
to operating profit is presented on page 25.

Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities is a non-GAAP measure and refers to net cash flows from operating
activities less cash flows from investing activities per the cash flow statement excluding intertest received. See page 30 for a reconciliation
to cash infiow from operating activities.

Key financials in the year:

- Revenue decrease of 3.6% (2.8% decrease from continuing operations) but improved margins and an
EBITDA increase of 1.9% (2.7% from continuing operations) when compared to the prior year

- Managed reductions in revenue and EBITDA from the 700MHz clearance programme following
completion of the programme and the end of TSA revenues established for an interim period after the
Telecoms sale

- Decreased revenue due to the lower renewal pricing following the end of legacy contracts on the
main DTT multiplexes, UK Direct-to-Home (UKDTH) and managed broadcast service products

- Continuing the delivery of the core smart energy metering contracts across the North of England and
Scotland with fully rolled out network coverage of 99.5% and incremental change requests

- Increase in revenue from the continued ramp up of activity on smart water metering networks and
increased water device sales.

2 15p refers to revenue for Transition Services Agreement following the sale of the Telecoms business
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Orderbook
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Revenue and EBITDA for Group'’s site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now
reported for the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internally.
Comparative figures for the prior year including orderbook figures have heen represented to reflect this change
in reporting.

Key influences on revenue

Group revenue has decreased 3.6% in total and 2.8% from continuing operations. The following waterfall chart
demonstrates the movement in revenue year on year. This reflects the expected wind down from discontinued
operations, and completion of activities on the 700MHz clearance programme and TSAs as well as the impact
of market pricing pressures offset by growth in core contracts.
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Key Influences on EBITDA

The following waterfall chart demonstrates the year on year impact of total EBITDA for the Group reflecting
the key financial factors:

Commercial:
Media and Broadcast: Cost savings across staff costs and satellite capacity on transponders have
improved margin despite lower revenues from activity on 700MHz clearance programmes, pricing
pressures and utilisation on the main DTT multiplexes

Smart Utilities Networks: Increased activity across both energy metering and ramp up of water
metering device sales

Discontinued operations: Sale of the Telecoms business, completed in the prior year

Other functions:
Increased costs and recoveries due to changes in the nature of projects being worked on by the teams
Further increases driven by consultancy and software systems and network portfolio support.
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Chairman’s Introduction

Overview

The Argiva Group has continued to deliver strong performance, despite ongoing global challenges including from
the Covid 19 pandemic, conflict between Russia and Ukraine and associated impacts on the global economy and
inflationary environment.

During this time Argiva has maintained its focus to deliver key strategic priorities with the completion of
Transitional Service Agreements associated with the sale of the Telecoms business in the prior year, completion
of the 700 MHz Clearance programme, delivery of our systems transformation programme and embedding our
new business structure.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our people for their continued dedication and hard work in
the provision of our services.

Change in Chief Executive Officer

On 1 June 2022, Shuja Khan was appointed as Argiva’s Chief Executive Officer. Shuja joined Argiva in January
2020 as Chief Commercial Officer, responsible for our revenue generating activities across all business areas
including strategy, customer experience and regulatory affairs. In this role, he played an integral part in
establishing the new strategic direction for the business with the creation of the Vision 2031 strategic agenda,
strengthening relationships with our key customers and product portfolio and evolving the design and
development of our operating model. He brings with him to this new role 20 years of leadership experience in
the technology, media and communications sector. Prior to joining Argiva he was Chief Commercial Officer for
Cable & Wireless and has also held a number of leadership positions at both Virgin Media and Liberty Global
Europe.

Shuja succeeds Paul Donovan who has been CEQ since April 2020. During his tenure, Paul has had a significant
impact on the business overseeing the shift to the new operating model and evolving our purpose and strategy
for a sustainable future. | would like to thank him for his leadership, foresight and dedication. On stepping down
from this role, Paul has returned as a Non-Executive Director on the Beard of Birectors for the Group.

Change in Shareholder

In June 2022 we announced that Digital 9 Infrastructure has agreed to purchase Canada Pension Plan Investment
Board’s (CPPIB) entire 48% stake in Argiva. Digital 9 Infrastructure is a dedicated infrastructure investor,
headquartered in the UK and with significant experience in the infrastructure industry. We anticipate that the
deal will be completed later in this calendar year. At that point the representatives from CPPIB appointed to the
Board of Directors will be replaced by representatives from Digital 9 Infrastructure. This will not change the day-
to-day operations of our business. Our strategy is set and remains to be the focus of our operations.

Business Structure

Argiva is continuing to adapt and change. Following significant restructuring in the previous year the Group has
this year embedded its new integrated functional business model focusing on commercial and operational
growth opportunities and how the business can remain sustainable as we deliver our Vision 2031 strategy.

Arqiva is continuing to lock for ways to simplify and evolve its processes in order to support our evolving markets
and develop the business sustainably for future growth.
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Outlook

In markets that are ever-changing, with how content is consumed and the opportunities that machine-to-
machine networks bring in enabling utilities companies to meet their sustainability targets, this is an important
time for Argiva. As a business we look to tuild on the strong foundations that we have set and embark on a new
period of growth whilst also simplifying our operations.

Mike Parton
Chairman

September 2022

10
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Chief Executive’s Statement

I am delighted to have taken on the role of CEQ at this time. Argiva is at a pivotal point, part way through a
strategic transformation which will put the business on a firm foundation creating greater agility to respond to
and benefit from market changes. The last 12 months has already demonstrated the business’ strength and
resilience despite tough market conditions. It is a great time to lead a business that has strong fundamentals, as
well as an exciting future with new product innovation and growth opportunities. My focus in the coming years
is to pursue our long-term strategic ambition, strengthen our culture and ensure Arqgiva continues on its journey
to be a great place to work.

Stralegy

Last year, we launched Vision 2031, a blueprint for our long-term strategic direction. This focuses on four key
strategic ambitions which will ensure the business wilf deliver on sustained profitability growth through both
market and product diversification. The execution of this is enabled by the strengthening of our culture;
engaging and empowering our people; using technology to transition to a more data-crientated company;
investing in compelling products and building partnership to access new and growing markets.

More information on our strategy can be found on page 19.

Embedding our Operating Model

This has been the first full year of our new operating model. We have moved away from the traditional product-
based business units and adopted a functional model to best serve our customers. By aligning the commercial
operations to our core market facing segments of Media and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks, and then
centralising our product, technology and operational capabilities we can be more nimble as markets and
customer needs change. It also means we can more efficiently invest in technology and multi-skill our people
across the enterprise including support functions.

In 2018, we initiated a four-year programme of digital transformation which encompassed replacement of our
core finance and HR, service operations, asset management and data management systems. The benefits were
clear to see when the majority of our people switched to working remotely in response to the COVID-19
lockdowns and still maintained the high operational performance levels required. Moving forward we are
establishing three new roles to the Executive Committee: ‘Chief Simplification Officer’ responsible for harnessing
the value of our transformation investment, establishing processes across the new operating model and
overseeing all change and programme delivery activities; and two new Executive Director roles who will lead
market growth and commercial engagement for Media and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks respectively.

2022 Performance

2022 has seen us face many challenges across the business. Coming out of repeated COVID-19 lockdowns,
changing market landscapes, economic uncertainty and the prospect of the highest inflation in more than a
generation. But we also faced one of the most challenging events in our history with the fire at Bilsdale.

Total revenue for the business decreased by 3.6%. Our TV and radio broadcast products have continued to
remain strong and resilient along with increases across our Utilities products as we ramp up our water contracts.
We have however seen revenues reduced from the one-off 700 Mhz programme now largely delivered and
completion of the Transitional Service Agreements relating to the sale of the Telecoms business to Cellnex. We
also continue to see the impact of pricing pressures across our DTT and Managed Networks product areas. Tight
cost control has mitigated this resulting in EBITDA growth of 1.9%.

Bilsdale

On 10 August 2021, a fire broke out at our Bilsdale transmitter mast. An estimated 80% of the ¢.600,000
households in the area had some reliance on the TV and radio services originating from that mast. This event
had a large impact on the local community and highlighted the importance of terrestrial services when they are
unexpectedly taken away. Supporting the community and returning coverages has been a key priority for us
since then. Qur service recovery plans and procedures were immediately enacted and to date more than 99%

12
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of impacted households have had their TV coverage restored using afternative and temporary masts. Alongside
this we also provided substantial support to those affected which included a call centre, funding for alternative
means of TV reception, in-home engineer support and working with local charitable organisations with targeted
help for the most vulnerable.

Through the year we concurrently worked on the restoration of the permanent mast which is a substantial
endeavour given access challenges with the location being more than 1,000 feet above sea level on the North
York Moars. The tower, when constructed, will be 9™ tallest structure in the UK. Our focus is on rebuilding this
as quickly as possible but with the safety of everyone involved being of paramount importance.

As previously reported, our insurers have concluded their investigations. Precise findings have not been shared
and we are unable to comment in detail on these findings while the claims process is ongoing.

Sustainability

Growing our business but at the same time caring about our envirenment and society are not cenflicting goals
for us. However, this requires a concerted effort with clear goals. We are in the early part of this journey and to
this end we have launched our sustainability rcadmap. These goals will drive how we operate as well as how we
can also support our customers to fulfil their ambitions in this area. We aim to:

1. Become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reaching net zerc across our
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions by 2031

2.  Positively enhance the environments we operate in

3. Optimise the use of natural resources wherever possible

More information on our sustainability can be found on page 21.

Industry Outlook

In June 2022 we launched a brand-new campaign: Broadcast 2040+. This was based on fresh research from Ipsos
which showed compelling support for broadcast services across Great Britain, 90% of people wanting to see
continued political support for Digital Terrestrial TV and broadcast radio. This important campaign endeavours
to emphasise the criticality of terrestrial TV and radio to our societies. For all the new ways of watching content
like streaming, broadcast TV and radio remain the backbone for many — providing universal access to high quality
content without the need for a superfast broadband connection or monthly subscription cost. This has never
been more important given the cost-of-living challenges that many will be facing in the coming years.

Argiva is launching the Broadcast 2040+ campaign in coalition with organisations including Age UK, Silver Voices,
the Rural Services Networks and the Voice of the Listener and Viewer with the aim of engaging with decision
makers, including Government, Ofcom and other key stakeholders across the media sector to secure a
commitment from Government that DTT and broadcast radio will be safeguarded to 2040 and heyond.

in the coming year, growth and simplification will be at the forefront of our pricrities. Within an ever-shifting
technology landscape we must continue to deliver seamless connectivity in our core services whilst developing
new products to build on our networks and our reputation for excellent service. We are working with our
custorners and continue to evolve our understanding of their requirements as their market changes and they
face new challenges. | am confident that we have set a compelling platform to develop a sustainable future for
Argiva,

Shuja Khan
Chief Executive Officer
September 2022
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Business Overview

Enabling a switched-on world to flow
Who we are

At the heart of Media and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks in the UK and abroad, Argiva provides critical
data, network, and communications services.

What we do

Argiva works in partnership with our customers, in the UK and around the world, building and operating the
complex ecosystems and infrastructures through which data and content can move effectively, securely and
sustainably at scale — whether that's through broadcasting and transmission services, or smart networks for
energy and water.

Argiva is the only national provider of terrestrial television and radio broadcasting and provides machine-to-
machine connectivity for smart metering within the utilities sector. Argiva has invested significantly allowing it
to develop its communications infrastructure and technology as markets evolve.

Argiva earns network access and transmission service revenues from its customers, as well as fees for
engineering services and new projects. Arqiva’s services tend to be mission-critical for its customers, as well as
providing the network coverage necessary for the fulfiiment of the universal service obligations {'USOs’) for
terrestrial broadcast customers as set out in their operating licences from the UK government.

Whilst we have a small overseas presence, Argiva’s assets, operations and markets are predominantly within
the UK and our business is driven from this region; therefore, we have minimal exposure to international markets
and foreign exchange.

Arqgiva has invested significantly into our capital infrastructure and has £1.3bn of property, plant, and equipment
at 30 June 2022. We are financed through a mixture of equity and long-term debt, with an average maturity
debt profile of over 4 years. The Group’s senior debt has an investment grade (BBB+) rating from Standard and
Poor’s and BBB from Fitch. The Group’s junior debt has a rating of B- from Fitch and B1 from Mocdy’s.

Attractive UK communications infrastructure market
DTT (Freeview) is the most popular TV platform in the UK covering 98.5% of the population

Smart networks deliver around 50 million data points every day

A market leader
Sole provider of terrestrial television network access (Freeview}

Owner of 2 of the 3 national commercial muitiplexes

Shareholder in, and operator for both commercial national DAB radio multiplexes and it is the service
provider for the BBC national DAB radio multiplex

High barriers to entry
Owner of critical national UK infrastructure that enables Public Service Broadcasters [PSB’s) to meet their
government mandated universal coverage obligations

Significant investment would be required to replicate the infrastructure, including planning permissions to
erect new masts

Long established relationships with its customers spanning mere than 80 years

14
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Since 1922, Arqgiva has been enahling a switched-on world to flow.
We delivered the world’s first TV broadcast for the BBC from the tower at London’s Alexandra Palace in 1936.

We also developed satellite TV in the 1970’s, Teletext, and launched the UK's national DAB radio and digital
television networks in the 2000s.

There’s no resting on our laurels though. We were the first company in Europe to trial 5G fixed wireless access
technology in 2017, and we are currently working with our broadcast partners to develop new ways to reach
their viewers and listeners via the Cloud.

We have also moved into new sectors, like Utilities. We won our first contract to deliver gas and electricity
metering in the north of England and Scotland in 2013, and followed that in 2015 with a partnership with Thames
Water to set up and run the world’s largest smart water metering network. More recently we have launched
our dual band communications device for further improved connection capabilities for gas and electricity
metering and our smart water metering network has now connected more than 1 million meters in total.

The Group’s technology and infrastructure, combined with our history and experience, enable us to work with
everyone from major broadcasters (such as the BBC, ITV, Sky, Turner and Canal+) to independent radic groups
and utility companies (such as Thames Water and Anglian Water) to the Data Communications Company (DCC).

In 2022 we launched Argade, a cloud-based channel and live event interchange as well as our Hybrid

Connectivity service, a suite of managed connectivity solutions designed to support the network monitoring and
control needs of utility companies.
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Business model

In today’s ever-evolving world, the demand for information, content and entertainment is greater than ever.
We all want to be connected 24/7. This is the challenge that our media and broadcast customers are facing,
delivering more content on more devices than ever before.

At Argiva we are enablers, applying our knowledge and expertise to technologies in order to unlock new
opportunities for our customers. We work in partnership, building and operating the infrastructure through
which data and content can flow effectively, securely, and sustainably.

Argiva seeks to maximise shareholder value by investing in our considerable site portfolio to not just maintain
reliability, but also to maximise its potential. Our infrastructure and commercial operations cover the following
key sectors:

- Media and Broadcast
- Smart Utilities Networks

COMMERCIAL

Our commercial function incorporates our customer facing business deriving revenues from a variety of products
across the Media and Broadcast and Utilities industries.

Media and Broadcast
The UKs only supplier of national terrestrial television and radio broadcasting services
Our DTT network allows more than 24 million households a means to access TV

Our radio infrastructure supports a range of services across the UK with over 300 stations on DAB and over 460
stations across FM, AM, and MW

Media and Broadcast services remain incredibly important for viewers and listeners in the UK. Even as viewing
habits change, Ofcom reports 85% of people continue to watch broadcast content every week. 9 out of 10 UK
adults listen to over 20 hours of radic each week.

In an intensely competitive world, large media companies are increasingly focused on monetising content that
is distributed multi-market, multi-platform and multi-device. This means increased complexity in reaching their
audiences, whilst also trying to reduce costs. To achieve a truly global reach, a shift of focus is needed to IP-
based delivery through the cloud and we are well positioned as the UK media hub to do this.

Media and Broadcast at Argiva

From the earliest days of radio and television, through the birth of digital broadcasting to the emergence of
video over the internet, Argiva has been at the heart of the industry for nearly 100 years, trusted by broadcast
and media brands across the globe. Now, in today’'s ever-evolving world, that experience combines with a
proven portfolio of broadcast infrastructure, end-tc-end networks, next generaticn media processing and
connectivity solutions to help our customers innovate, compete and grow.

The Media and Broadcast infrastructure includes sites for the transmission of terrestrial TV and radio, operates
the Group’s licensed multiplexes, owns and operates teleports at key locations in the UK, as well as international
terrestrial fibre distribution network, media facilities, leased satelflite capacity, cloud based services and delivers
related engineering projects.

The Group utilises a network of 1,150 TV sites to carry Freeview into circa 24 million households every day,
making it the UK’'s most popular TV platform. Argiva’s critical national infrastructure provides coverage to 98.5%
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of the UK’'s population. Within the sector, Argiva holds a regulated position as the sole provider of network
access for terrestrial television broadcasting.

Argiva is a market leader in commercial DTT spectrum, owning the licences for two of the three main national
commercial DTT multiplexes, enabling leading broadcasters such as Sky, UKTV, CBS and Turner to deliver
broadcasting content using our channel capacity.

Additionally, Argiva operates c¢. 1,450 transmission sites for TV and radio, providing coverage to the circa 90% of
the UK population that listen to the radio. Argiva is a shareholder in, and operator for both commercial national
DAB radio multiplexes and it is the service provider for the BBC national DAB radio multiplex.

The Group is also the UK’s leading independent owner and operator of teleports and media management
facilities, serving many of the world’s largest multi-channe! broadcast as well as providing data connectivity to
the utilities and natural resources sectors.

Argiva manages the distribution of more than 1,100 international TV channels for high profile customers
including Al Jazeera, Discovery, BT Sport, Sky, NBCU, Sony and Turner including coverage of high-profile sporting
events. Arqiva’s operation of reliable and secure VSAT (Very Small Aperture Terminal) communications networks
across the globe utilises a world class satellite and fibre network, providing real-time critical communications to
remote locations. Argiva uses our expertise and experience to enable us to keep pace with rapidly changing
dynamics and technology advancements, thereby underpinning the longevity and success of the product base.
Argiva’s satellite network delivers content to the UK’s major Direct-to-Home (DTH) platforms including Sky and
Freesat as well as delivering Video-on-Demand (VoD) services for global media distribution to both Apple TV and
Amazon Prime. We have also engaged with the Low Earth Orbit satellite sector providing earth station gateway
services.

Media and Broadcast contributes significant and stable cash flows to the Group with a long-term contracted,
substantially RPl-linked order book of £2.8bn (2021: £2.9bn represented®) which includes major contracts
running as far as 2035.

Smart Utilities Networks
Exclusive metering connectivity provider to electricity and gas companies in the North of England and Scotland

Provider of metering monitoring systems to help reduce water wastage and supporting on sustainability

Ambitious environmental and sustainability agendas from regulators are driving change across utility sectors,
providing huge opportunities for growth. Today less than 10% of UK premises have a smart water meter, and
less than 30% have a smart energy meter. With 20% of water lost through leaks, our water customers are focused
on reducing them, and eliminating pollution caused by sewer flooding. Smart meters are providing an
opportunity to meet sustainability targets through reducing the UX's overall greenhouse gas emissions, including
up to 0.5% from smart water meters on their own.

Smart Utilities Networks at Argiva

Digitol technology means that we can now get a much better handie on how much gas, electricity and water we
all consume. That's the first step in using less of it, something we ail have to do if we’re going to live sustainably
on the planet. Argiva works acrass the utilities sector to make this happen. Through our efforts, energy and water
grids and meters are getting smarter, meaning more control, and less wastage.

3 Revenue and EBITDA for Group’s site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now reported for
the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internally. Comparative figures for
the prior year including orderbook figures have been represented to reflect this change in reperting.
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For energy and mobility companies, satellite operators, military organisations and telecoms providers, secure
networks are vital when working in locations that are remote or hostile — guaranteeing that communications
always get through. Which is what you get when you use our giobal satellite, teleport and fibre netwaorks. With
coverage that spans the globe, we build customised end-to-end solutions that offer 89.99% reliability.

Argiva generates revenues with respect to the build and gperation of the smart ‘machine-to-machine’ networks
and other data transmission services applications. With a continuing focus on innovation and market
opportunities, Argiva is embracing the fast-developing machine-to-machine sector, particularly for utilities, for
which we utilise our Flex-net network across our smart metering contracts. The Group has invested in building
machine-to-machine (M2M) networks, which support major energy metering contracts spanning 15 years and
covering more than 10 million premises, and water metering contracts which will cover 3 million homes.

Argiva has invested substantially in infrastructure as a result of these contracts which now result in recurring
cash flows during the long-term operational phases of the network delivery. The utilities business rernains a key
part of the Argiva business and is a key strategic priority for growth with potential to become the UKs leading
smart utilities platform. In this area we are supporting our customers in being able to achieve their net zero
carbon sustainability agendas.

Utilities revenues also include site share revenues relating to the utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecommunications equipment and transitional services provided following the sale of the telecoms business
to Cellnex.

The smart utilities network products has an order book of £0.6bn (2021; £0.8bn restated®), with contracts
running as far as 2050,

OPERATIONS

Responsible for the efficient operation and maintenance of all Argiva sites, the Operations function provides in-
life support for our media and broadcast, utilities, and internal IT systems to ensure they are delivering to our
customers’ requirements.

Qur field engineering services help to deliver corrective maintenance, preventative maintenance and projects
works across our broadcast and utilities transmission systems, antennas, structures and satellite/links
infrastructure. Additionally, the operations function provides management of inventory and logistics, changes,
configuration and sites and structures as well as cyber security, disaster recovery and network operations.

The Operations function is a non-revenue generating area and incurs costs in the provision of these management
and support services.

TECHNOLOGY AND TRANSFORMATION

Our technology and transformation function operates across the business comprising engineering, product
management, product marketing, information security, data and insight and transformation. The Group’s
transformation programme is expected to complete in the 2022 calendar year.

CORPORATE

Corporate functions at Argiva comprise Finance, Procurement, Strategy & Regulatory, Legal and People and
Culture providing support services across the business.

* Revenue and EBITDA for Group's site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now reported for
the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internally. Comparative figures
for the prior year including orderbock figures have been represented to reflect this change in reporting. Orderbook is
stated before RPI inflation, the prior year has also been restated to remove £0.4bn of contract RPI indexation incorrectly
included.
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Vision 2031 is our strategic focus. This encompasses four key strategic ambitions to guide the business to
achieve our purpose. Our priorities in how we aim to achieve these ambitions are set out below:

To be the undisputed leader in UK TV and radio broadcast

- Deliver sustainable TV and Radio broadcast, protecting and focusing on customer and operational
excellence and managing capacity and margins to maximise revenues, ensuring that the value we
bring to society is understood;

- Lleverage our scale and the cloud, enabling industry efficiency by supporting our customers to
move to more cost-efficient and increasingly flexible models;

- Expand services and drive renewals delivering greater value by selling across our portfolio of
services, creating long term partnerships while also developing value-added services in new areas

To transition global media to cloud based solutions

- Scaling IP and cloud-based services; investing in building broadcast quality cloud processing and
extending our footprint in live and events content
- Becoming the go-to choice for our partners in cloud distribution so they can better manage their

global content flows across ail formats
- Growing multiplex service, using our infrastructure to provide virtual, cost-effective, and scalable

services to TV cable operators outside of the UK
To be the UK's leading smart utilities platform provider

- Leading in connecting UK smart meters, maintaining market leadership, and scaling our
operations to drive and accelerate the roll-out of domestic smart meters

- Broadening our product offering, developing new value-added data-driven services in monitoring
and control, that reduce energy use, water wastage and pollution

- Diversifying through forging partnerships and widening technology choice, to deliver new hybrid
connectivity selutions and real time network monitoring

To be an innovator of scalable solutions for new connectivity sectors

- Working with partners, building new solutions for new and emerging sectors that have growing
and more complex connectivity needs including those that make the most of our infrastructure,
spectrum, and satellite expertise

Progress in 2022

Vision 2031 was launched by the Group in the prior year. Over the course of the last 12 months our focus has
been on transforming the business.

Driving our cultural transformation to build a culture that enables high performance, high engagement,
innovation and agility. In the year we have launched the following cultural goals for the business:

1. Accountability - being accountable for the promises we make

2. One Arqgiva - working together as one team

3. Curiosity — striving to look at things differently to discover a better way

We have embedded our new integrated organisation and operating model focusing on the functions of the
business of commercial, operations, technology & transformation and corporate. Our model is continuing to
evolve to meet our goals.

Optimisation of our new technology systems has continued with progress on our transformation programme
including new system launches for our digital enterprise platform. Our transformation programme is now
coming to an end as we move on to looking at how we can continue to simplify our processes.
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Sustainability Strategy

As part of our drive for sustainability, Argiva has this year launched three strategic goals to mitigate our impact
and support our envirecnment and social agenda:

Goal 1: To become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reaching net zero
across our Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions by 2031

- Transitioning our carbon-based emissions sources to more sustainable alternatives e.g. implementing
more energy efficient transmission equipment and replacing fleet vehicles with sustainabie options
such as electric vehicles

- Working with our supply chain to help them realise their sustainable ambitions and decarbonise their
operations

Goal 2: To positively enhance the environments we operate in

- Looking at opportunities across all our sites to improve habitats for flora and fauna to thrive and
increase biodiversity

- Identifying how we can reduce demand for electricity through new technologies and insulation of our
buildings

- Providing transparency to our customers, allowing them to understand the carbon footprints
associated with our products and services ensuring they can make informed decisions when using our
networks.

Geal 3: To optimise the use of natural resources

- Understanding and monitoring our water use and looking at ways to reduce our consumption.
Reducing the water we use will also reduce the energy consumed through processing and treatment
of wastewater.

- Understanding what waste we produce and how we can reduce this, including finding efficiencies in
our asset maintenance schedules e.g. reducing the number of times we swap out used consumables
or procuring technologies that can be easily repaired or repurposed at their end of life.

- Developing water products to assist our water customers with their sustainability agendas and UK
water leakage targets
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Business Update

The Group’s contracted order book value for continuing operations at 30 June 2022 was £3.4bn (2021: £3.7bn).
A significant propertion of the value of this order book relates to medium to long-term contracts which includes
DTT and radio transmission and smart energy and water metering, as well as other infrastructure services. The
Group remains focused on growth opportunities in targeted core infrastructure areas.

Media and Broadcast

DTT Multiplexes

During the year Argiva’s DTT mux licences were extended to 2034, securing a stable future for the platform, and
theinterim COM7Y closed at the end of the trading year as planned. The closure of COM7 has created opportunity
as channels move to the national COMS and 6 multiplexes included in the sales pipeline for FY23 as we target
full platform capacity utilisation.

The year saw some challenges for Digital Platforms, with sanctions leading to the early cessation and non-
renewal of the RT channel and ldeal Shopping (IS} being liguidated by its private equity owners. However,
platform utilisation has reached full capacity at 100%, with a new agreement negotiated with ideal World, who
bought the IS assets, new contracts signed with UKTV for Drama +1, That's TV and launch of a new channel
EarthX. Renewals were also agreed with Narrative, PBS and Gems.

Radio

The Department for Culture, Media and Sport {DCMS) has passed legislation to renew two National commercial
DAB multiplexes; Digital One [Argiva 100% ownership) and Sound Digital (Argiva has 40% ownership) to
December 2035. This underpins the growing importance of DAB radio and secures a stable future for the
platform over the next decade and beyond.

Argiva completed a successful auction in the last guarter on the SDL national commercial radio multiplex
securing service providers for the last remaining channels on the multiplex.

Analogue re-engineering programs continue and various smaller projects have been signed off in the year for a
number of purpeses, distribution changes, small scale DAB network access offers, site moves and more. The
indication from government and the market is that FM services will cantinue into the 2030’s, therefore there is
still movement on the piatform and legacy equipment continues to be replaced as we move through renewals.

Direct to Home (DTH)

A key renewal with Narrative (formerly Sony Pictures Television) was secured for over 80% of a single
transponder during the last quarter of the year, protecting future revenues. In June 2022, as planned, Argiva
returned a transponder te Eutelsat to optimise its satellite real estate and better manage the cost of supply vs
market demand representing material cost savings over the next few years. There continues to be a good
pipeline for new channel launches from the international sector with a number in negotiation for launch in the
coming months.

Government (DCMS) updates

In June 2022, Argiva launched the ‘Broadcast 2040+’ campaign alongside a coalition of partners including Age
UK, Silver Voices, the Rural Services Network, and the Voice of the Listener & Viewer to secure a long-term
commitment from the Government to the future of broadcast services. The campaign provides a channel to
collaborate with partners on upcoming palicy developments. The campaign is backed by consumer research
from Ipsos into the views of Great Britain on the importance of broadcast services which highlighted the value
placed on DTT and broadcast radio services, with 90% of people wanting to see continued support for these
services.

The Government confirmed that it would pursue the privatisation and sale of Channel 4. Argiva provides a range
of services to Channel 4 including: transmission through the DTT multiplex licence holder D34 (which is 50%
owned by Channel 4); DTH satellite services; and as carriage provider for some of its channels on the Argiva DTT
multiplexes. The long-term contract with D34, that runs inte the 2030s, combined with Channel 4’s continued
reliance of the DTT platform for viewers and advertising income, means that we do not expect Channel 4’s sale
to have any immediate implications for Argiva should the Government pursue this action.
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The Government had also announced its intention to review the licence fee funding model for the BBC. The
Committee has since released its report, which highlighted the angoing relevance of DTT over at least the next
decade. The Committee did not propose a specific funding model but ruled out the BBC being funded solely
through a subscription model and highlighted alternatives that would be less regressive than the current flat fee
licence approach paid by all households.

Low Earth Orbit Market

Arqiva continues to develop opportunities in the Low Earth Orbit market by establishing connections to multiple
satellites; the technology can for example provide satellite broadband anywhere in the world. Key players in this
sector are SpaceX, Project Kuiper and UK Government investment in OneWeb plus established satellite
operators such as Telesat and ViaSat. The Group has two customers secured at the reporting date.

700MHz Clearance

The main substantive works on the 700MHz Clearance project completed in August 2020. Final project
completion activities continued until October 2021 with principal site works remaining being the removal of the
temporary mast at Emley Moor.

Smart Utilities Networks

Anglian Water

Following the award of the Anglian Water contract in June 2020, the Group rolled out over 367,000 meters by
30 June 2022 out of the overall 789,000 targeted by 2025 across 24 planning zones including Norwich, Lincoln,
Northampton and Peterborough, among others. Argiva continues to rollout the network for Anglian Water albeit
the pace has slowed due to global supply chain constraints which is restricting the number of meters available.

Thames Water

Since April 2015, Argiva has delivered a smart metering network for Thames Water and as at 30 June 2022, over
780,000 meters have been installed, with in excess of 18 million meter readings being delivered per day. It is the
largest smart water metering network in the UK and has high coverage across the Thames Water London region.
Argiva continues to add a number of network sites outside Londan, which included recently Chiddingfold and
Guildford, with Dartford currently in design for delivery later this calendar year. In December 2021, the contract
was extended for further 10 years to 2031. Argiva continues to rollout the network for Thames Water albeit the
pace has slowed due to global supply chain constraints.

Despite Thames Water initial intent to conduct a full procurement for Thames Valley they have now asked us to
proceed with 11 site installations to enable a deployment of approx. 25,000 meters this year and around 108,000
by 2025. This places us in a strong position for the remainder of the Thames Valley rollout.

Northumbrian Water

Argiva has been selected by Northumbrian Water Group to deliver an initial roll-out of a smart metering network
in Essex, where it operates as Essex & Suffolk Water. This initial contract of 5 years and 11,000 meters has now
been extended to cover over 28,000 meters and for 15 years of service with 2 new sites. The trial will be followed
with a formal procurement process later this year for c. 270,000 meters to allow Northumbrian to meet their
commitments in the current regulatory period.

UK Power Networks

Arqgiva has commenced the BGAN product rollout for the UK Power Networks for its network monitoring with
over 650 units delivered by 30 June 2022 out of the total orders of 5,000. Further orders are expected later this
calendar year.

Other Smart Water Metering Trials

In the Midlands, Argiva has been participating in a multi-vendor, multi-technology smart water metering
evaluation trial with a major water company. Over this period, we have again proven the excellent performance
of our technology and managed service. We are extending and expanding the trial for a further 12 months and
1,900 meters, on an exclusive basis, enabling the water company 1o evaluate fully the benefits and establish a
business case for a future full smart metering roll-out. Orders have been received for the trial extension and
meters have now been deployed.
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Woe have recently agreed an approach for a new trial with a southern based water company to assist in evaluating
the data produced by our smart metering solution and identifying the resulting operational and financial
benefits. This will take the form of a small deployment of circa 400 meters.

Arqgiva is also participating in an RFI launched by Southern Water in January 2022 for 1.2 million meters. We
expect the next phase to launch in the autumn of 2022.

Smart energy metering roliout

The Group's smart metering communication network in the North of England and Scotland continues to cover
99.5% of premises. There are currently over 2 million communications hubs operating on the network
representing 20% of the total UK communication hub installations. Whilst there has been an impact to
communications hub deliveries, owing to global component shortages, energy companies do have a level of pre-
existing stock and Argiva continues to work with Smart DCC Ltd (DCC) to mitigate the supply risk. The DCC
continues to submit change requests that reflect new industry requirements and Argiva maintains a strong
pipeline. Argiva’s relationship with DCC remains strong and has been formally rated by DCC as “green” over the
past two months.

Adverse energy trading conditions have resulted in a number of energy companies ceasing business with their
customers and obligations being taken up by other suppliers under a pre-existing process operated by Ofgem
for such eventualities. Argiva currently envisages no impact to the smart meter roliout programme now
governed by rollout obligations set by Ofgem.

New proof of concepts

Argiva has engaged with utility customers and industry suppliers as it seeks to expand its presence in the smart
utilities industry. The Hybrid Connectivity Proof of Concept (PoC) with SGN has completed following which they
have faunched their ‘Strategic Connectivity’ procurement exercise to which Argiva will formally respond in the
coming weeks,

Our Leakage as a Service PoC has been well received and we are now engaged in a programme of work with
Thames Water to train and verify their Artificial Intelligence model. Northumbrian Water have shown further
interest and requested a proposal from Argiva for an Analytics Prototype Deployment to augment their current
capability. There are two further water companies that have agreed an initial evaluation period. Finally, our
Sewer Level Monitoring PoC trial has commenced with Anglian Water with 9 sites deployed and initial feedback
citing that performance has far exceeded anything previously seen.

Corporate Update

New CEQ

On 10 May 2022, Argiva announced that Shuja Khan would replace Paul Donovan as a Chief Executive Officer
from 1June 2022. Shuja was appointed as Chief Commercial Officer at Argiva in January 2020 and has been
central to the creation of our strategy, Vision 2031, and the development of the current operating madel, as
well as evolving and strengthening relationships with our key customers.

Shuja brings more than 20 years of leadership experience in the technology, media and communication sector
and his industry background and demonstrable management and leadership strength will be invaluable for the
next phase of Argiva’'s evolution as we concentrate our focus on ensuring Argiva is a long-term sustainable

business providing the best possible partnership to our customers as well as on simplifying our business.

Paul Donovan was appointed to the Board as Non-Executive Director on 1 July 2022,

24



Argiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2022

Management Changes

In order to take the business forward, three new Executive Committee rcles have been created to help the
business focus on growth and simplification. Vivian Leinster has moved frem her existing role as Chief People
Officer to become Chief Simplification Officer, while Peter Baker and Chris Alner were appointed as interim
Executive Directors for Smart Utilities Networks and Media & Broadcast respectively. A new Chief People Officer
will be appointed to replace Vivian Leinster.

Bilsdale Tower Fire

Following the fire at cur Bilsdale mast site in August 2021, our efforts have been focused on restoring coverage
as quickly as possible, as well as to offer advice and practical support for our most vulnerable viewers through
providing access to a call centre. Argiva has now been able to restore Freeview TV services to around 99% of
impacted households.

Construction of the permanent replacement tower is well under way. it normally takes around two years to
complete such a substantial construction, but we are targeting Spring of 2023.

Argiva has been informed that its insurers have now concluded their investigations. Precise findings have not
been shared and Argiva is unable to comment in detail on these findings while the claims process is ongoing.
Argiva intends to provide a further update as soon as it is permitted to do so.

See page 28 for further information on the financial impacts of the fire.

Sale of telecoms business

Following the sale of the Telecoms business to Cellnex in July 2020, Argiva has been supporting Cellnex’s UK
business via Transitional Services Agreements (TSA) and as planned all TSAs have now completed by the end of
2021, moving into a business as usual relationship under the existing site share arrangements.

Transformation Programme update

Throughout the year the Transformation Programme has delivered releases planned, providing the business
with industry-leading applications and integration across our Site Management Platform (Siterra), Service
Management (ServiceNowy), and Financial Management (Qracle ERP) platforms. The programme is final stages
and is expected to complete this autumn. This concluding release brings the entire broadcast operations onto
the transformed platforms, completes all of the integrations across our core systems and opens up new digital
ways to engage with our customers.
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Financial review

Financial Performance

For the year ended 30 June 2022, revenue for the Group was £624.1m, a decrease of 3.6% from £647.2m in the
prior year on a total reported basis. Revenue from continuing operations for the year of £624.1m a decrease of
2.8% year on year from £642.3m in 2021. With increases in core TV and radio products and utilities contracts
the overall decrease year on year reflects natural reduction from projects as well as challenging conditions within
the markets we operate.

(5.5)%

157.8 148.8 6.0%

624.1 642.3 (2.8)%
- 49 (100.0)%

624.1 647.2 (3.6)%

*Revenue and EBITDA for Group’s site share products arising post the sale of the Telecoms business are now
reported for the Group within the Smart Utilities Networks due to a change in how they are presented internally.
Comparative figures for the prior year including revenue of £26.1m and EBITDA of £16.5m have been
represented to reflect this change in reporting.

Further changes to EBITDA have also been made in the year due to the change in the Group’s organisational
structure, moving away from the traditional vertical business units and adopting an integrated functional
operating model to better serve our customers. Consequently, during the current financial year to 30 June 2022,
the financial results of the Group have been reported and presented on a functional basis. This includes the
Commercial revenue generating function of the business which includes the customer facing segments of Media
and Broadcast and Smart Utilities Networks, supported by Operations including maintenance and estates
management, Technology and Transformation and Corporate including the Group’s finance, legal and people
and culture services. This reporting structure aligns to how the Group reports internally. The segmental EBITDA
for the Group for the prior year has been represented to align to this new structure presentation.

Medio and Broadcast

Total Media and Broadcast revenue has decreased 5.5% year on year to £466.3m from £493.5m (represented).
Our core broadcast TV and radio distribution products have remained strong and stable during the year with
inflationary increases due to RPI indexation on these long-term contracts.

These increases have however been offset by the expected natural reduction in revenue from the 700MHz
Clearance programme with final activities on this multi-year engineering programme completed in the year.
Further decreases have arisen due to the full year impact of terminations and pricing pressures from the prior
year across the Group’s UK DTH, managed media services and multiplex products. Following new channel
launches towards the end of the prior year, utilisation has remained strong on the Group’s main (DVB-T)
multiplexes and was 97% at 30 June 2022.

A further £7.6m (£nil) of excepticnal revenue has been deducted to give total revenue in the period of £624.1m
(2021:£647.2m) in respect of service credits in relation to the Bilsdale fire. See note 7 of the financial statements
for further information.
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Smart Utilities Networks

Revenue from Smart Utilities Networks has increased from £148.8m (represented) to £157.8m, a 6.0% increase
year on year. This increase is due to the continued ramp up of revenues from water metering contracts in
particular driven by device sales despite supply chain issues. There have been further increases to recurring
revenues as a result of incremental smart energy metering change requests.

Smart revenue also includes site share revenues relating to the utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecommunications equipment and transitional services provided following the sale of the telecoms business
to Cellnex. Revenue in this area have decreased following the completion of TSAs.

Gross profit was £421.3m, representing an increase of 1.5% from £415.1m in the prior year. Gross profit from
continuing cperations increased by 2.2% year on year from £412.2m to £421.3m. Whilst revenue has decreased
due to the reasons cutlined above with corresponding decreases in related costs, margins have improved year
on year as a result of further cost savings achieved by the Group. This includes satellite capacity savings and a
reduction in billable labour costs due to headcount.

Other operating expenses from the total Group were £89.6m, up 11.7% from £80.2m in the prior year
{continuing operations 2022: £89.6m; 2021: £79.8m). Despite lower staff costs due to lower headcount, the
increase in operating expenses has been driven by increases in areas such as IT licences and maintenance due
to new systems established as part of the Group’s digital transformation, as well as professional and consultancy
costs as the Group pursues its simptlification journey.

EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation’ and
includes add-backs for certain items charged to operating profit that are not considered to reflect the underlying
performance of the business. A reconciliation of EBITDA to operating profit is presented on page 29.

¥

2.5%

67.2 57.4 17.1%
410.3 392.1 4.6%
(25.3) (21.4) (18.2)%
(28.5) (24.4) (16.8)%
{15.1) (13.9) (8.6)%
341.4 332.4 2.7%
- 2.5 (100.0)%
T 341.4 334.9 1.9%

Total EBITDA was £341.4m, a 1.9% increase from the prior year of £334.9m and a 2.7% increase from continuing
operations. Despite the decreases in revenue, EBITDA has increased due to changes in product mix and cost
savings achieved.

Within the Media and Broadcast business, EBITDA has decreased by 2.5%, from £334.7m (represented) to
£343.1m. Despite the decrease in revenue driven by the completion of the 700MHz clearance programme and
pricing pressure on contract renewals, the Media and Broadcast praducts have benefitted from cost reductions
leading to EBITDA increasing for the year. The cost savings include decreases in staff costs driven by a reduction
in headcount as well as savings gained on satellite capacity costs.
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EBITDA for the Group’s Smart Utilities Networks business has increased from £57.4m (represented) to £67.2m,
an increase of 17.1%. The increase is predominantly driven by the increases in revenue for both the ramp up of
water metering contracts and incremental change requests on energy metering contracts. The margin for Smart
Utilities is however impacted due to the increase in revenues from device sales which are a relatively lower
margin product.

The new operational functional segment is a non-revenue generating segment responsible for the efficient
operations and maintenance of all Argiva services in¢luding field engineers, disaster recovery and network
operations. EBITDA for the operations segment has decreased 18.2% due to an increasein costs from £21.4m to
£25.3m. The increase is predominantly due to staff costs and recoveries due to changes in the nature of projects
being worked on by the team as well as insurance costs that were included in the corporate segment in the
comparative year.

EBITDA for the non-revenue generating Technology and Transformation function for the year was a loss of
£28.5m, an increase in cost of 16.8% from a loss of £24.4m in the prior year. The increase in cost is mainly due
to managed service and software costs related to the Group's digital enterprise platforms as we move to more
cloud operated systems and consultancy project costs.

Corporate EBITDA represents costs for the support functions such as finance, strategy & regulatory, iegal and
HR services. EBITDA for this function has increased cost 8.6% from a loss of £13.9m to £15.1m year on year.

Depreciation has decreased by £10.1m total (2022: £158.4m; 2021: £168.5m). Amortisation has increased by
£3.5m in total (2022: £13.2m; 2021: £9.7m). The collective decrease of depreciation and amortisation of 3.7%
is driven by a reduction in accelerated depreciation from the prior year peried, particularly in connection with
assets replaced under the 700MHz clearance programme due to the lower activity following the completion of
the programme. The decrease has been partially offset by an increase in accelerated amortisation on software
assets that have been disposed of in the year as the Group’s transformation programme progresses.

Exceptional operating expenses charged to operating profit were £19.6m, decreased from £25.6m in 2021.
Exceptional costs in the current year predominantly relate to restoration costs arising from the Bilsdale fire,
restructuring and severance costs as the Group embeds the changes in the organisational design and structure
of the business as well as corporate finance costs from strategic shareholder activities. Exceptional operating
expenses are excluded from EBITDA. A reconciliation of EBITDA to operating profit is presented on page 29.

The restoration costs of £10.0m incurred within exceptional operating expenses (2021: £nil}) were associated
with the Bilsdale transmitter following a fire which broke out on 10 August 2021. Engineers have been working
on a recovery plan to reinstate services present on the site. The recovery plan included service recovery with
works completed for the improvement of TV coverage from other local not-spot sites, as well as the erection of
a temporary mast at the Bilsdale site. To date around 99% of impacted households have been returned to
coverage. Further works to complete the enduring solution and re-build is ongoing with works started on the
build of a new permanent mast. Management are still assessing the financial impact of the incident and the
assets impacted. Costs recognised are those which have been incurred to date and can be reliably measured,
and also include £7.6m of service credits deducted from revenue during the period. See note 7 to the financial
statements for further disclosure on the full financial impacts incurred.

An exceptional loss on disposal assets has also been recognised in the income statement for £9.5m (2021: £nil).
This loss relates to assets damaged due to the fire at the Bilsdale site that have been disposed of in the year.

Management are still assessing the financial impact of the incident and the assets damaged by the fire, and have
engaged with the Group’s insurers. Whilst the insurers have concluded their investigations, the precise findings
have not been publicly shared. At this stage we cannot comment on the findings while the claims process is
ongoing. A stage payment of £5.0m was received from the insurers in June 2022 which has been recognised as
exceptional other income in the income statement.

Operating profit has increased 2.0% (2022: £143.2m; 2021: £140.4m) across the Group and 3.4% in relation to
continuing operations (2022; £143.2m; 2021: £138.5m). Despite the decrease in revenues and exceptional costs

28



Arqiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2022

incurred as a result of the Bilsdale file, the increase in operating profit has been achieved by the cost savings
across the business driven by headcount and satellite transponder savings as well as the reduction in
depreciation as capital programmes progress.

A reconciliation between operating profit and EBITDA is presented below:

Operating profit 143.2 140.4
Exceptional items charged to operating profit 19.6 25.6
Exceptional revenue 7.6 -
Depreciation 158.4 168.5
Amortisation 13.2 9.7
Impairment 0.5 -
Exceptional loss on disposal of fixed assets 9.5 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 2.1 -
Other Income {7.7) (9.3)
Exceptional Other Income (5.0}

Total EBITDA 3414 334.9
EBITDA from discontinued operations - 2.5
EBITDA from continuing operations 341.4 332.4

Finance costs (net of finance income} were £729.1m, an increase of 10.4% from £660.4m in 2021. This increase
is predominantly driven by the compounding effect of interest of the outstanding shareholder loan note
principal and accrued interest. This has been partially offset by a decrease in bank and other loan interest due
to reduced principal amounts outstanding following repayments made on amortising debt instruments.

Other gains and losses for the year included £76.1m of losses (2021: £75.4m loss). Of this figure, £76.1m (2021:
£11.1m loss) as a result of fair value movements of interest rate and index-linked swaps, principally attributable
to changes in forward market rates and credit spreads. In the prior year, other gains and losses also recognised
the £55.9m of break costs incurred attributable to the repayment of debt and related re-couponing of interest
rate hedging derivatives and £7.6m exceptional loss on exit of swaps.

A one-off exceptional gain from profit on disposal of £1,038.3m was recognised in the prior year related to the
disposal of the Group’s Telecoms business in July 2020.

Loss before tax for the Group was £662.0m, a decrease from a profit of £442.9m in the prior year. From
continuing operations, the loss before tax has increased from £5597.2m in 2021 to £662.0m in the current year.
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The loss before tax is reported after non-cash charges of £898.6m (2021: £756.9m) as shown below:

(Loss) / profit before tax {662.0} 442.9
Depreciation 158.4 168.5
Amoaortisation 13.2 9.7
Impairment 0.5 -
Exceptional loss on disposal of fixed assets a5 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 2.1 -
Accrued interest on shareholder loan notes 602.7 529.8
Other non-cash financing costs® 36.1 37.0
Foreign exchange revaluations on financing - 0.8
Fair value movements on derivative financial instruments 76.1 11.1
Total non-cash charges 898.6 756.9
Adjusted profit before tax and non-cash charges 236.6 1,199.8

{including the disposal of the Telecoms business of 2022: £nil; 2021: £1,038.3m)
Cash Flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities was £331.3m, a 16.9% decrease from £398.7m in 2021. Despite
operating profit increasing year on year, the decrease is driven by the movement in working capital. Working
capital inflows have decreased due to the recognition of one-off deferred income on additional contract
liabilities in the prior year not repeated following the sale of the Telecoms business. Other working capital
decreases are due to the utilisation and unwind of deferred income {(decreasing contract liabilities) and timing
of payments,

Capital expenditure on the purchase of tangible and intangible assets has increased. There has been decreased
expenditure on significant capital projects such as the 700MHz Clearance programme, IT refresh project for the
smart utilities and the Groups transformation programme as these projects wind down to completion.
Expenditure is also impacted by the timing of cash payments made on the settlement of capital expenditure
accruals balances. This reduction has been offset by increases in maintenance on networks as well as capital
expenditure incurred in relation to works on the Bilsdale transmitter site including the erection of temporary
masts and site impravements following the fire in August 2021.

Net ash mﬁ from operatlg twmes 398.7
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (88.7) (86.1)
Receipt of insurance stage payment 5.0 -
Net capital expenditure and financial investment (83.7) (86.1)
Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities 247.6 312.6
Cash Conversion as a % of EBITDAS

Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment 72.5% 93.3%

5 Includes amaortisation of debt issues costs, unwinding of discount on provisions, imputed interest and interest on lease
liabilities

6 Cash conversion as a % of EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure referring to the calculation of operating cash flow after capital
and financial investment activities as a percentage of EBITDA.
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Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities is a non-GAAP measure and refers to net
cash flows from operating activities less cash flows from investing activities per the cash flow statement
extluding intertest received. See page 30 for a reconciliation to cash inflow from operating activities.

Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities was £247.6m, a decrease of 20.8% from
£312.6min the prior year. This decrease has been principally driven by the working capital movements partially
offset by the improvement in operating profit driven by cost savings in the business and increase in capital
expenditure explained above. Cash conversion levels for the Group remain strong although decreased due to
movements in working capital.

Whilst overall financing cash outflows have reduced year on year (2022: £240.7m outflow; 2021: £1,999.6m
outflow) owing to the repayment of borrowings and exit of swap arrangements and related costs incurred in the
prior year not repeated, cash outflows for the current year have been impacted by the high inflation levels
impacting the accretion payment made on our inflation-linked swaps.

The total cash flow for the year was a £7.7m inflow (2021: £133.4m inflow). This decrease is owing to the one-
off disposal proceeds from the Telecoms business sale received in the prior year and subsequent repayment of
borrowings and exit of swap arrangements not repeated as well as the changes in operating cash flows explained
above.

Financial Position

Net liabilities were £4,224.5m, representing an increase of 17.5% from £3,594.7m (restated) in the prior year.
The net liability position is primarily driven by the capital structure reflecting the shareholder loan notes,
borrowings, lease liabilities and derivative financial instruments held. The increase in liabilities for the year is
driven by the financing costs for the Group, Our assessment of geing concern is set out on page 32.

Financing

The Group established our Whole Business Securitisation {"WBS') structure in February 2013, and since then we
have continued to refinance elements of our debt structure further extending cur maturity profile.

Standard and Poor’s and Fitch reconfirmed their rating of Argiva senior debt at BBB+ and BBB respectively, and
Fitch and Moody’s continues to rate the junior rating at B-/B1 respectively.

At 30 June 2022 the Group’s debt finance’ comprised:

< 1vyear 1-2years 2-5 years >5 years Total
£m £m £m £m £fm

Facilities drawn 34.0 - - 23.0 57.0
Finance lease obligations 18.8 16.2 27.9 22.7 85.6
Senior term debt - 262.0 - - 262.0
Senior bonds and notes 50.4 45.3 197.8 413.9 707.4
Junior bonds - 625.0 - - 625.0
Shareholder loan notes - - 2,148.1 - 2,148.1
Total 103.2 948.5 2,373.8 459.6 3,885.1

Intluded within the above is £3,302.6m of fixed rate debt and £582.5m of floating rate debt. AH debt held at 30
June 2022 is sterling denominated. The Group holds interest rate swaps (including inflation-linked interest rate
swaps) to hedge our interest rate exposures. This hedging strategy is employed to ensure the certainty of future
interest cash flows. The Group does not apply hedge accounting to these swap arrangements.

" Excluding unamortised debt issue costs and accrued interest
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The Group continues to comply with all financial covenant requirements including the following historic
covenant ratic requirements at the senior financing level:

Liquidity

To ensure we have sufficient available funds for working capital requirements and planned growth the Group
maintains cash reserves and access to undrawn committed facilities to cover forecast requirements. At 30 June
2022 the Group had a cash balance of £251.2m (2021: £243.5m). The Group carefully manages the credit risk on
liquid funds and derivative financial instruments with balances currently spread across a range of major financial
institutions, which have satisfactory credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. The levels of
credit risk are monitored through the Group’s on-going risk management processes, which include a regular
review of counterparty credit ratings. Risk in this area is limited further by setting a maximum level and term for
deposits with any single counterparty.

Post year end on 19 August 2022, the Group signed a commitment for a £450m term facility and a £50m Working
Capital Facility both with an expected maturity date of 2028. These facilities are floating rate in nature with a
margin over SONIA. Argiva Broadcast Intermediate Limited {a subsidiary of the Group) is the borrower of this
arrangement. The proceeds of this facility when drawn will be used to redeem the Groups cutstanding £625m
Junior bonds.

Going Concern

The Group meets our day-to-day working capital and financing requirements through the net cash generated
from our operations. The Group performs a review of going concern through a review of forecasting including
cash flow forecasts and considering the requirements of capital expenditure and debt repayments and including
any severe but plausible scenarios. The Group has sufficient financial resources which, together with internally
generated cash flows, will continue to provide sufficient sources of liquidity to fund our current operations,
including our contractual and commercial commitments both in terms of capital programmes and financing as
they fall due. This is further supported by the new debt facilities established post year end, see note 31 for
further information. For this reason, the Directors are confident that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing this financial information.

8‘Cash flow’ as defined under the Group’s financing common terms agreement, i.e. this is not a GAAP
measure.
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Key Performance Indicators

The Group uses a combination of financial and non-financial key performance indicators ("KPIs’} to measure
against our strategic ambitions.

See page 19 for further information on our strategic ambitions:
Financial KPIs (our 2019 and 2020 results include material values from our disposed Telecoms business)

Revenue
Definition — Revenue is presented as per the financial statements,

£m and in accordance with IFRS 15
Revenue has decreased 3.6% from the prior year for total revenue
. (2022: £624.1m; 2021: £647.2m) and 2.8% on a continuing
operations basis {2022: £624.1m; 2021: £642.3m). Revenues on our
core TV and radio distribution have remained strong due to RPI-
indexation on the contracts as well as increase across our utilities
contracts due to the ramp up of activity water metering contracts
including strong device sales and incremental change requests on
30 560 e 500 303 1000 energy metering. These increases have however been offset by the
natural reduction of activity on the 700MHz programmes with
activity now completed and end of TSA agreements as well as
market chaltenges with the run rate of lower fee renewals from the
prior year across our DTT platform and managed media services.

EBITDA
Definition — EBITDA is @ non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘earnings

before interest, tax, depreciotion and amortisation’ and includes
add-backs for certain items charged to operating profit that do not
reflect the underlying business performance. See page 29 for its
reconciliation to operating profit.

£

Total EBITDA has increased 1.9% and 2.7% from continuing
operations (2022: £341.4m; 2021: £332.4m). Despite the decrease
in revenue, this has been offset by cost savings that have henefitted
total EBITDA for the Group. These include satellite capacity cost
savings as well as a reduction in staff costs across the Group due to
lower headcount far the year.

100 300 500

mZ0zz 22071 2020 2013

Operating cash flow after capital and

financial investment Definition ~ Operating cash flow after capital investment activities
represents the cash generated after spending required to maintain
£m or expand its asset bose. This is calculated as the net cash flow from

operations minus the net cash flow from capital expenditure and
financial investment. See page 30 for its reconcitiation to net cash
flow from operations.

Cash generated has decreased 20.8% from £312.6m to £247.6m.
This has predominantly been driven by the movement in working
capital due to lower working capital inflows following the
recognition of one-off contract liabilities in the prior year following
the sale of the Telecoms business not repeated. Capital expenditure
w2022 %2021 w20 20 has remained largely flat year on year due to the reductions in
major capital programmes such as 700MHz clearance and the
Groups transformation programme as these programmes complete
offset by an increase in maintenance on networks and the costs
incurred on the capital restoration on the Bilsdale transmitter site.

wn
[l
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Non-tinancial KPis

Broadcast - Network availability Definitivn — Argiva strives to provide consistently high service levels and
look to monage and monitor the total annual level of network availability
across both TV and radic infrostructure as a percentage across all

Availability multiplexes

Result — Through careful management Arqiva has consistently been able
to achieve excellent levels of network availability. The drop experienced
e vnl - earlier in the year is as a result of outages due to the Bilsdale transmitter

Saesans fire.

35 $35¢,

Strategic ambition targeted - to be undisputed leader in UK TV and radio
broadcast distribution

Utitities

The Smart metering M2M contract has continued to achieve 99.5% network coverage in the North of England and
Scetland.

Rollout of water metering on contracts won with Anglian Water, Thames Water and Northumbrian Water. Other smart
water metering trials are in progress

Strategic ambition targeted— To be the UK’s leading smart utifities platform provider

New sectors

We are engaged in the Low Earth Orbit satellite sector due to contract wins in the prior year.

Product launches - In 2022 we launched Argade, a cloud-based channel and live event interchange as well as our Hybrid
Connectivity service, a suite of managed connectivity solutions designed to support the network monitoring and control

needs of utility companies.

Strategic ambition — innovator of scalable solutions for high-connectivity sectors

Customers Premium customers temperature check for the sentiment of our
Premium customers temperature top 27 Premium Customers in June has 20 of our customers in a
check good position at Green.
20

We have six customers classified as Amber. Key issues in June relate
to ease of doing business, service reliability and several problems
that have been ongoing for a prolonged period.

One customer continues in Hypercare with good progress being
made on addressing their open issues but a continued need to have
G ety : Fen®gtog Hypercare enhanced measures to ringfence and prieritise all activity to restore
trust in Argiva and maximise our chances of winning new business.

People
Employee engagement Our engagement score has increased to 66 in May 2022 (+1 from
Jan 2022) and +8 from October 2021.

Argiva is now five points off the UK benchmark engagement score
of 71.

Response rate in May 2022 was 75% (-1% from Jan 2022}.
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Corporate Responsibility

Doing business the right way and sustainably js vital to Argiva. It’s as important as what we achieve.

Argiva endeavours to conduct its business in a way that benefits all our stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, employees, shareholders and communities in which we operate as well as creating a sustainable
future for the business

Qur ethics, values and behaviours are weaved through every aspect of what we do.

Qur culture is also key to the success of our strategy with our 3 culture goals driving how we serve our customers
and creating a great place to work. These goals include

1. Accountability - being accountable for the promises we make
2.  One Argiva — working together as one team
3. Curiosity — striving to look at things different to discover a better way

Sustainability

Our sustainability principles are embedded into our key processes to support our goals and ensure that we are
able to operate and grow our business sustainably.

Environment
Ernergy

To become a Net Zero Organisation by 2040, with an interim target of reaching net zero across our scape 1 and
2 emissions by 2031,

Given the nature of the Group’s activities, energy consumption is a key area of interest beth economically and
environmentally. Our energy policy refiects the company’s commitments to improving energy efficiency by:

- Reducing energy consumption
- Investing in energy efficient technology; and
- Monitoring carbon emissions

We are always looking at new and innovative ways of driving down our carbon footprint. Responsible
management of energy has a key role in minimising environmental impacts and is embedded within Argiva. Key
to this is transiticning our carbon based emissions to a more sustainable alternative, e.g. sustainable alternative
such as electric cars to replace our fleet vehicles using combustible engines. We also continue to investigate how
emerging technologies and ingenious ways of working can help us and our customers realise sustainable
ambitions and decarbonise operations.

For more details on our annual emissions see page 63 in the Directors report.
Biodiversity
To positively enhance the environments we operate in

We always strive to minimise the impact we make on all our sites across the country, in order to improve the
habitats for flora and fauna to thrive in and create biodiversity. We work closely with planning authorities and
local communities to find the best acceptabie solution for locations of masts and other infrastructure essential
to keeping both rural and urban communities connected. We also are identifying how we can reduce our
demand for electricity and looking at new technologies and ways to insulate our buildings.
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To optimise the use of natural resources

Understanding and monitoring our water usage enables us to look at how we can reduce our consumption and
ensure we can find ways to optimise the use of our natural resources. We will take a holistic view of how we
use our natural resources, both upstream to understand how we minimise waste creation and downstream to
maximise reuse and recycling.

Our sustainability also extends into waste management, a key responsibility for our industry. We are focusing
on what waste it is that we are producing and how this can be reduced. This includes finding efficiencies in our
asset maintenance schedules, reducing the number of times we swap out consumables as well as procuring
technologies that can be repaired or repurposed at their end of life and finding environmentally friendly ways
to dispose of redundant hardware. For example leasing laptops which are returned at the end of their term to
be rebuilt and sold again for use and recycling those not under these terms. We also consider the environmental
risk of every investment made.

Social

Supporting Charities

We support our colleagues fundraising for local and other national causes close to their hearts. To help, Arqiva
provides matched funding enabling colleagues to fundraise for their chosen charities, from Diabetes UK and the
NSPCC to tocal community projects, children’s clubs and sports teams.

Argiva also supports the 'Give as You Earn’ scheme in partnership with the Charities Aid Foundation {(CAF)
allowing colleagues to get tax relief on their donations. In 2021, we retained our Bronze CAF award. The amount
provided to charities through this scheme has reached over £100,000 over the past three years.

Between 2019 and 2021, Argiva also worked in partnership as a proud supporter of Cancer Research UK, over
this period raising over £60,000 towards research into a cure for cancer.

Following the fire at our Bilsdale site Arqiva donated £50,000 each to three local charitable organisations to
support communities affected by the fire and to help identify those in greatest need.

Also during the year, through colleague donations and matched funding from Argiva, £20,000 has been raised
for the Disasters Emergency Committee {DEC) Ukraine appeal to help UK aid charities and organisations in
Ukraine to support those seeking safety and shelter.

Supporting Our People

We aim to create a workplace where people feel engaged, energised and respected, where they can do their
best, and look after their personal wellbeing, both in and out of work.

Wellbeing

The Group has an ongoing commitment to the health and emotional welibeing of our people. Argiva runs an
annual event focusing on both organisational and personal resilience, which includes wellbeing sessions and
training courses. We also have a network of mental health first-aiders, who are equipped to listen without
judgement, reassure and respond to colleagues, even in a crisis.

As well as these activities, our colleagues have access to a wealth of support through our Employee Assistance
Programme.

Health and Safety

Health and safety is vital, whether in the office or repairing an antenna on a 1,000ft mast. We have been a driving
force in developing the Mast and Tower Safety Group, we run our own accredited I0SH Working Safely training
scheme for our engineers, and we collaborate with the union BECTU on an annual employee safety conference.
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We are committed to complying with applicable health and safety legislation, and to continual improvement in
achieving a high standard of health, safety, and welfare in our operations and for all those in the organisation
and others who may be affected by our activities. The Group operates a robust integrated management system
that is certified to 15014001, 15045001, 15090001 and 150270001 as well as offering training programmes
covering specific skills and general awareness.

Supporting Diversity and Inclusion

We are committed to rnaking our workplace as diverse and inclusive as possible because the complex
engineering and commercial challenges we need to solve can only be done by people with a diverse range of
skills, backgrounds and life experiences. Qur diversity and inclusien programme ensures we continually focus on
what’s needed for everyone to feel included and able to perform. We have moved beyond building awareness
around unconscious bias and are now supporting colleagues to understand the difference between intent and
impact.

Our Diversity Ambassadors have been instrumental in encouraging and engaging other workplace communities.
We now have an active Women at Argiva network, a Working Families group, and a Neurodiversity network, so
we can listen, support and take opportunities to make lasting, tangible changes so our working practices are
even more inclusive.

Employees

The average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was 1,287 (2021: 1,528). Argiva
recognises the significant contribution of our employees and makes every effort to create a rewarding and
engaging work environment.

Our policy is to provide equal opportunities for all employees, irrespective of race, nationality, gender, sexual
orientation, marital status, religion or political beliefs, disability or age. Like many engineering-based businesses
we recognise that Argiva has a higher proportion of men than women and we are working to address this with
the Employers Network for Equality and Inclusion through our diversity and inclusion programme.

The table below provides a breakdown of the gender of Directors and employees as at 30 June 2022:

Board of Directors 2/20% 8/80%

Executive Committee 2/25% 6/75%
Group Employees 296 / 23% 991/ 77%

The Group continues to address training and development requirements for employees at all levels within the
organisation. The Board also reviews future management reguirements and succession plans on an on-going
basis.

The Argiva Employee Board (‘AEB’) has continued throughout the year. The AEB is a demacratically elected
Board that acts as a voice for ernployees across Argiva and provides a clear and direct link between the Group's
employees and the Executive Committee. The AEB continues to meet on a monthly basis to discuss key matters
such as performance management, or efficiencies and processes to develop responsive action plans.
Furthermore, the AEB {as well as the Executive Committee) interacts with representatives of BECTU (the
Broadcasting, Entertainment, Cinernatograph and Theatre Union) regarding employee matters.

The Group’s employee forums provide an effective channel foer communication and collective consultation
across the Group. They play an important role in enabling employees to help the Group manage change
effectively. The goals of each forum are te act as the formal consultative body for its part of the business within
Argiva, provide a voice to management on employee issues, initiate and support social activities, and promote
consultation and sharing infarmation.
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Signiticant emphasis is placed on employee communication. The Group intranet, ‘The Hub’, makes information
available to employees on all matters including performance, growth, and issues affecting the industry. The
Group also runs “Connect Days” across various sites to bring employees together and provide opportunity for
updates and discussion across the business.

Our “Work. Life. Smarter.” initiative also recognises the benefit of hybrid working to our employees. This
commitment to our people endeavours for our people to feel supported and empowered to work in a way that
enables them to thrive in their role, giving a choice about how, when and where we work.

Argiva wants all our employees to benefit from our success and growth as a business. The annual bonus scheme
recognises the importance of high performance and is designed to reward employees for achieving targets and
continuous improvement in overall performance, in fine with our values and strategy. The scheme takes into
account the targets that have been set by the Group. The Group must achieve a minimum operating cash
performance before a bonus becomes payable which is then calculated based on these financial KPls. The bonus
payment for the 2022 financial year is expected to be made in October 2022. In addition, certain members of
our senior management participate in a long-term incentive plan which is typically 3 years in duration and is
designed to recognise the value of strategic initiatives being undertaken by the Group during the longer-term.
As with the annual bonus scheme, the Group must achieve a minimum threshold of financial performance before
a bonus becomes payable under the long-term incentive plan which is then calculated based upon the 3-year
Group financial KPls of EBITDA and operating cash performance. All such arrangements are cash-based incentive
schemes which operate against documented performance targets and are reviewed at least annually by the
Remuneration Committee {which comprises members of the Board of Directors).

Gender Pay Gap

The full annual gender pay gap report is avaitable on the company website at www.argiva.com. The latest report
shows the emphasis and commitment to diversity and inclusion with improvements in both the mean and
median pay gaps for the reporting period. The full report provides details on why we have a pay gap, the reasons
for the increase in the year and the actions we are taking to address the issue.

Modern Slavery Act

Argiva is committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part of our business. The supplier Code of Conduct reflects the commitment to acting ethically and with
integrity in all business relationships and to implement and enforce effective systems and controls to ensure
slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere in our supply chains. The full statement is included
on page 42 and is aiso available on the company website at www.argiva.com.

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption

In conjunction with the UK Bribery Act 2010, the Group has adopted a Code of Conduct for employees which
incorporates all its anti-corruption policies and procedures. The policies apply to all Argiva employees employed
on both a permanent and temporary basis. The Code of Conduct also sets out the policies and procedures on
the giving and receiving of gifts and hospitality.

Information Security

Due to the critical importance of our sites and systems to the Group, our customers and, in some cases, as Critical
National Infrastructure, we take information security very seriously, focusing an protecting and managing access
to information throughout its entire lifecycle.

We hold certification to ISO/IEC 27001:2013. 15027001 is an internationally recognised specification for an
information security management system (ISMS), a framewaork of policies and procedures that includes all legal,
physical and technical controls involved in an organisation’s information risk management processes. This allows
us to compete for new business which requires us to demonstrate the rcbustness of our security controls.
Through independent review and accreditation, supported by internal monthly audits, we continue to
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confidently demonstrate our commitment to security and secure working practices. We have held this
certification since 2013 and recertify every three years with recertification last given in May 2020.

We also hold Cyber Essentials certification. Cyber Essentials is a government-backed, industry-supported
scheme to help organisations guard against the most common cyber threats and demonstrate their commitment
to security. We have held this certification since 2016 and recertify annually.

Taxation

The Group’s approach to tax is to ensure compliance with all legal and statutory obligations. Argiva is committed
to maintaining a transparent and constructive working relationship with HM Revenue & Customs and with local
tax authorities in the jurisdictions in which we operate. The total contribution to UK tax receipts including
business rates, income tax, PAYE and N1 paid by both Argiva and employees, totalled £54.2m for the financial
year (2021: £65.4m).

The Arqiva Group is a primarily UK based infrastructure group. There are some trading operations outside of the
UK, however these generate less than 1% of operating profit and there are no tax planning activities taken which
seek to reduce the Group’s UK profits or revenues by transferring revenue or profit out of the UK. The Group's
small overseas trading entities deal directly with customers in their area of residence and fulfil their tax
requirements in the local jurisdictions.

This report was approved by the Board on 26 September 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

ok

Mike Parton

26 September 2022
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The Companies {Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 (the “Regulations”), requires companies that meet
certain thresholds to report on the Directors’ application of their section 172 duty to promote the success of the
Company, as set out in the Companies Act 2006, along with stakeholder and employee engagement.

Section 172 Statement

The Companies Act 2006 sets out a set of general duties owed by directors to a company, including a list of
matters to which directors must have regard, which are set out in 5.172{1){a} to (f). During FY22, in continuing
to exercise their duties, the Directors have had regard for these matters, as well as other factors, in considering
proposals from the Executive Committee and continuing to govern the Company on behalf of our shareholders.

Consequence of any decision in Strategic overview 19-21
the long-term
Interests of employees Employee Engagement 41
Supporting our people 36 {Corporate Responsibility)
Employees 37
Fostering relationship with Stakeholder Engagement Below
suppliers, customers and others Business Update 22-25
Impact of operations on the Environment 63
community and the environment Energy Consumption and Waste 64
management
Charity 36
Maintaining high standard of Governance 45-49
business conduct Health & Safety 36

Maodern Slavery Act, Anti-Bribery 42
& Corruption

Acting fairly between members Stakeholder Engagement Below
Accountability 59

Stakeholder Engagement Statement

Throughout the year, the Board has continued to ensure engagement with relevant stakeholders generally in
relation to its day-to-day business and particularly with respect to key challenges, such as the engeing
situation with COVID-19 and the impact of the fire on the Company’s mast at Bilsdale. Examples of the way in
which this engagement has taken place are set out in the table below.

Empoees . P ese see our Ep oee Engaement Statement below and Corporate'
Responsibility statement (pages 35-39} for full details
Regulatory Bodies We have good relationships with representatives in all relevant regulatory

bodies and engage regularly with Ofcom; the Department for Culture, Media
and Sport {DCMS); and the Department for Business Enterprise and fndustrial
Strategy (BEIS}. We also monitor relevant developments with Ofwat and Ofgem
as regulators of customers of our Utilities business, and we participate in
consultations and consult with government departments and regulators when
setting strategy and making decisions that affect industry generally. We have
liaised closely with Ofcom with regard to the impact of the mast fire at Bilsdale
on consumers and the wider broadcast industry.

Investors Quarterly reports to investors are published on our website and available to all;
an annual investor call is held, in which we review our annual results and invite
questions from investors.

Customers Our relationships with our customers are very important to us, and we maintain
regular contact through account managers; Executive Committee members; and
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where appropriate our Chairman. As part of our response to COVID-19 and to
the impact of the Bilsdale mast fire, we have sought to understand and support
customers who have been affected and ensure continued delivery of services.

Suppliers Qur Procurement team oversees supplier relationship management, with a

category management structure so that employees have relevant expertise for
each supplier. We work closely to ensure positive relationships, seeking to agree
fair terms and conditions and ensure timely payment, through adherence to and
reporting on the Prompt Payment Code.

Shareholders Shareholder Representatives on the Board and committees of the Board report

back to shareholders on the business and take their interests into account when
making decisions, while operating in accordance with their Companies Act
duties. The Group's corporate governance specifies a number of categories of
decision which are reserved to shareholders, ensuring that the decisions
affecting shareholders are subject to the necessary oversight,

Stakeholders As part of our infrastructure projects, we engage with planning authorities and

local communities to foster positive relationships. Arqiva’s charitable
engagement also seeks to support communities local to the areas in which it
operates, The Company is particularly proud of the community support
activities it undertook in the aftermath of the Bilsdale fire to assist members of
the public effected by the loss of the Bilsdale mast.

Employee Engagement Statement

1.

Information

Regular all company updates are provided to all employees via Argiva’s Hub (intranet} and email
updates; Management conducts regular company-wide live broadcasts and hosts face-to-face connect
days through the year to update employees on performance, strategy and other key developments;
with opportunities for employees to ask questions in real time.

Consultation

Argiva has active union representations through the Broadcasting Entertainment Communications and
Theatre Union (BECTU}; strategic decisions which may affect employees (including business change;
pay; and terms and conditions) are discussed with BECTU representatives in advance of action being
taken. Similar engagement also takes place with the Argiva Employee Board {AEB}, which is elected by
employees, and their feedback and views are taken into account when making decisions affecting the
workforce, for example in setting timescales and the content of communications.

involvement

Employees participate in annual bonus schemes which are based upon performance of the business
throughout the year, encouraging employees to contribute to the success of the business. The Group’s
cultural value of curiosity encourage new ideas and fostering strong relationships across the
crganisation, supporting overall performance of the business.

Common Awareness

Financial and economic factors affecting the business are described to employees throughout the year
during management broadcasts; regular email communications with business updates and through the
Arqgiva Hub.
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Modern Slavery Act: Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement

Overarching Statement
This statement sets out the steps we are implementing to combat slavery and human trafficking. We remain
committed to further improving our practices in the future to combat slavery and human trafficking.

Organisation’s Structure

We are a communications infrastructure and media services provider, operating at the heart of the broadcast,
satellite communications, and smart metering markets. We're at the forefront of network solutions and services
in the digital world. We provide much of the infrastructure behind television, radio sateltite communications
and smart metering in the UK and have a presence in Ireland, mainland Europe and the USA.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2022, Argiva Limited and its subsidiaries, Argiva Muxco Limited, and
Argiva Smart Metering Limited were part of the Argiva group with head offices in the UK and over 1300
employees, We operate in the UK and Europe.

Argiva Limited (and its subsidiaries), Argiva Muxco and Argiva Smart Metering Limited each have an annual
turnover of in excess of £36 million.

Our Supply Chains

The Argiva Procurement team works in partnership with our suppliers, ensuring we meet our internal customer
needs. The Argiva values are core to how we interact with suppliers whether a high-volume preferred supplier
or one-time only supplier.

We have an exceptionally diverse range of services and goods that are required by the business and sourced by
our Procurement team including:

*  Transmission — Argiva has numerous transmission sites throughout the UK;

*  Construction — Argiva undertakes a broad range of construction activities from small changes to the
construction of new transmission towers;

*  Maintenance & Repairs;

* |IT software and managed services;

*  Satellite Capacity; and

*  (Corporate facilities {including corporate sites, stationery, recruitment, legal and professional fees).

Our Policies on Slavery and Human Trafficking

We are committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part our business. Suppliers are required to comply with our Supplier Code of Conduct, which reflects our
commitment to acting ethically and with integrity in all our business relationships and to implementing and
enforcing effective systems and controls to ensure slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere
in our supply chains.

Due Diligence Process for Slavery and Human Trafficking
As part of our initiative to identify and mitigate risk we:
®* Aimto identify and assess potential risk areas in our own business and cur supply chains;
*  Try to mitigate the risk of slavery and human trafficking occurring in our own business and our supply
chains;
*  Monitor potential risk areas in our own business and our supply chains;
*  Where possible we build long standing relationships with suppliers and make clear our expectations of
their business behaviour;
*  Expect our suppliers to comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and have their own suitable anti-
slavery and human trafficking policies and processes; and
*  Encourage the reporting of concerns and support the protection of whistteblowers.
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Supplier Adherence to our Values
We have zero tolerance to slavery and human trafficking. We expect all those in our supply chain to comply with
those values and our Supplier Code of Conduct.

Our Procurement team, reporting into our CFQ, is responsible for promating and ensuring compliance with the
Madern Slavery Act 2015 as part of our supplier relaticnships.

Training

To ensure a high level of understanding of the risks of modern slavery and human trafficking in our supply chains
and our business, all Directors and members of the Executive Committee have been briefed on the subject, a 15
minute short course around Modern Slavery was sent out to all staff and 1,100 completed that in 2020/2021.
An online course was created in December 2021 that included the Modern Slavery Statement as well as an
overview of Modern Slavery and that currently goes to all new starters. 199 people have completed the course
thus far. We aim to provide a refresher course in 2022/2023 and then every 3 years.

Our Effectiveness in combating Slavery and Human Trafficking
We will use the following key performance indicators (KPIs) to measure how effective we have been to ensure
that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in any part of our business or supply chains:
*  Useof robust supplier selection process including supplier questionnaires and compliance with Argiva’s
Supplier Code of Conduct; and
e Use of our payroli systems to ensure that purchase orders and payments to suppliers are limited to
those who comply with our standards.

Steps taken during the financial year to 30 June 2022
in the past financial year, we have taken the following steps to ensure that slavery and human trafficking is not
taking place in our supply chains, and in any part of our own business:

a) We have fully implemented cur qualification process for all suppliers: One Time Only suppliers (low
value transactions less than 2% spend in FY22) all use our standard Purchase Order T&Cs, which includes
a mandatory compliance clause covering Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Laws.

Suppliers with ongoing relationships are all required to qualify via our e-procurement system. This
process includes background checks and either (a) confirmation of acceptance of the Argiva Supplier
Code of Conduct {which covers modern slavery and human trafficking); or (b} demonstration that the
Supplier has its own equivalent policies covering modern slavery and human trafficking. Purchase
Orders cannot be placed with new ongoing suppliers before the confirmation has been given.

b) We continue to fimit the number of active suppliers with Oracle to reduce risk. During the financial year
to 30 June 2022 we had 976 suppliers registered on oracle and have traded with only 639 of these
suppliers during the fiscal year (N.B. this figure has reduced from >2,300 in FY18).

¢} We continue to use our “Speak Up” reporting website and telephone line to enable people to notify
any concerns. These are overseen by the Internal Audit function and regular updates given to the
Group’s Audit & Risk Committee.

Statement

This statement is made pursuant to section S4{1) of the Modern Slavery Act 2615 and constitutes Argiva Limited,
Argiva Muxco Limited and Argiva Smart Metering Limited's slavery and human trafficking statement for the
financial year ending 30 June 2022.

Note: The signed statement is gvailable on the Company website at www.argiva.com
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Board of Directors and Executive Committee

Ownership

The Company is owned by a consortium of shareholders comprising Canada Pension Plan Investment Board
(48%), Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund Il {25%), plus other Macquarie managed fund (1.5%), Health
Super Investments {5.5%), IFM Global Infrastructure Fund (14.8%) and Motor Trades Association of Australia
(5.2%). There is no ultimate controlling party of the Company, as defined by IAS 24 ‘Related parties’.

In accordance with [AS 24, there are two investor companies which are related parties with the Group, by virtue
of significant shareholding in the Group:

e Frequency Infrastructure Communications Assets Limited (‘FICAL’) (48%), a company controlled by
Canada Pension Plan Investment Board. The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board is a professional
investment management organisation in Toronto which invests the assets of the Canada Pension plan.
The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board was incorporated as a federal Crown corporation by an Act
of Parliament in December 1997.

»  Macquarie European infrastructure Fund W {‘MEIF II') {25%), an investment fund managed by the
Macquarie Group. Macquarie European {nfrastructure Fund It is a8 wholesale investment fund focusing
on investments in high-quality infrastructure businesses across Europe. Macquarie Group Limited is
listed in Australia {ASX:MQG ADR:MQBKY).

Argiva Board of Directors

The Group’s Board of Directors is comprised of ten Directors representing our shareholder consortium as weill
as two members of the Executive Committee. The following Board members were in office during the year and
up to the date of the signing of the annual report and financial statements.

Board Committee Membership

A — Audit and Risk Committee

G - Governance and Nomination Committee
R - Remuneration Committee

0O - Operational Resilience

Bold — Committee Chair

Mike Parton, Chairman
Governance and Nomination Committee Chair, Audit and Risk Committee Chair

Mike brings a wealth of experience from his background in the telecoms and technology
industry. Mike started his career as 2 Chartered Management Accountant, working for a
number of UK technology companies including ICL, GEC, STC and Marconi, Mike has held
the roles of CEQ of Marconi plc. Chairman of Damovo Group and Chairman of Tele2 AB.

in addition to his role at Argiva, Mike is currentiy alse Chairman of TOC Group and a trustee
of a young people’s charity, Grit.

A G R
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Shuja Khan, Chief Executive Officer

Shuja was appointed Chief Executive Officer in June 2022. Prior to this, as Argiva’s
Chief Commercial Officer since January 2020, he was responsible for all revenue
generating activities including strategy, regulatory affairs, product development and
customer experience and at the heart of the development of Argiva’s 10-year
strategic plan, vision and purpose.

He draws on more than 20 years of leadership experience in the technology, media
and communications sector, including the role of Chief Commercial Officer across 24
territories at Cable & Wireless and various leadership roles at both Virgin Media and
liberty Global Europe with a focus on driving growth.

Sean West, Chief Financial Otticer

Sean was appointed Chief Financial Officer in September 2019, having joined Argiva
in 2015 as Director of Treasury and Corporate Finance.

Sean has a background in afl areas of corporate finance and financing, and as Director
of Treasury and Corporate Finance was responsible for all aspects of the Group’s
capital structure.

Prior to joining Argiva, Sean held senior corporate finance and treasury positions at
the Immediate Capital Group (ICG) and LandSec and brings a wealth of experience
across a range of industries and financial markets.

Appointed by IFM Investors and Motor Trades Association of Australia (joint appointment)

Sally Davis, Director

Remuneration Committee Chair

With over 30 years in the TMT sector Sally has held a number of senior product,
strategy and chief executive rofes including being a former Chief Executive of 8T
Wholesale, one of four operating divisions of BT. Prior to this, Sally had an early
product management career at Mercury Communications before becoming a
director at NYNEX during its merger with Bell Atlantic to become Verizon.

Sally is also a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Telenor and is Chairman of
Leonard Cheshire.

R

Appointed by Frequency Infrastructure Communications Assets Limited

Mike Darcey, Director

Operational Resilience Chair

Mike has over 25 years’ experience in the technology, media and telecommunications
industry with numerous positions held ranging from CEQ of News International to
COO of British Sky Broadcasting Group. He has also provided strategic advisory
services to a range of clients in the media industry.

Mike has served or is currently serving on Boards including Dennis Publishing (UK} Ltd
(Chairman), M247 (Chairman}, Home Retail Group (Senior independent Director) and
Sky New Zealand (Director). He is also Chairman of British Gymnastics and Senior
Expert Advisor to MTM Consulting.

0 G
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Batiste Ogier, Director

Batiste is a Managing Director at CPP Investments. With asset management
responsibilities across CPP Investments’ global Infrastructure and Sustainable Energy
Group portfolios. In his role, Batiste is also a Director on the Board of Renewable Power
Capital, a renewable energy investment platform he helped found in 2020 and is a
Non-Executive Director representative for CPP Investments on the Board at Anglian
Water. Prior to joining CPP Investments, he was a Director in the Infrastructure team
at First State Investments, during which time he was a member of the Supervisory
Board of the Coriance Group and a Board representative for FSI at Anglian Water.

Neil King, Director

Neil runs the European infrastructure business at CPP Investment Board. He has over
twenty-five years of experience in the infrastructure market, including ten years at 3i
as a founding partner in its infrastructure investment business before joining CPPI8 in
2015.

Neil is also a Non-Executive director at Interparking S.A., 3 European car parking
business which is in CPPIB’s infrastructure investment portfolio.
G R

Peter Adams, Director (alternate)
Peter is a Principal in the Infrastructure group at CPP Investment Board, based in
London.

Prior to joining CPP Investment Board, Peter was with the Boston Consulting Group,
where he advised clients in the U.S., Canada and Europe on strategy and operations.

Appointed by Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund Il

Paul Donovan, Non-Executive Director

Paul served as a Non-Executive director at Argiva from 2018 to 2020. He was re-
appointed to the Board in July 2022 following two years in role as Argiva’s Chief
Executive Officer.

Paul has over 20 years’ experience in senior executive roles across the technology,
media and telecommunications sectors. Between 2014 and 2016 Paul ied the
transformation of Europe’s leading cinema operator, Odeon and UCI Cinemas Group,
ahead of its successful sale to AMC Theatres. Paul's leadership led to innovations in
pricing, digital marketing and guest experience which laid the foundations for
improvements in business performance and public perception.

Prior to this Paul was CEO of Irish Telecoms Group eir. His background aiso incfudes
senior executive appointments with a number of significant global organisations
including vedafone, Cable & Wireless, One20ne and Optus as well as senior
commercial roles at BT, Apple Computers, Coca-Cola and Schweppes Beverages and
Mars Inc.
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Susana Leith-Smith, Director
Susana was appointed to the Board in May 2022.

Susana is a Senior Managing Director in Macquarie Asset Management’s Real Assets
business in EMEA.

She has a wealth of experience in capital markets. Prior to joining Macquarie Asset
Management, she was at Barclays, most recently as the EMEA Head of Leveraged
Finance and managing all transactions in the Telecoms, media and Tech sectors.

Appointed by IFM Investors

Christian Seymour, Director

Christian is Head of Infrastructure at IFM Global Infrastructure Fund, responsible for
the business expansion in Europe and oversight of IFM’s existing European asset
partfolio, of which Codan Trust is an investment vehicle.

A G R 0

Max Fieguth, Director (alternate)

Max is responsible for asset management of existing investments for IFM Global
Infrastructure Fund, as well as supporting the execution of infrastructure
transactions. Prior to joining IFM Investors, Max worked as a Consultant in the
Operations Practice at McKinsey and prior to that at Bechtel on a number of
infrastructure projects. He holds a Masters in Mechanical Engineering from Imperial
College London, an MBA from INSEAD and is a Chartered Engineer with the Institution
of Mechanical Engineers in the UK.
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Executive Committee

(also includes the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer on pages 46)

Katrina Dick
Chief Legal Officer

- loined Arqiva in April 2022 with experience in
energy, retail, health construction and
professional services.

- Most recent roles include interim General Counsel

at Anzo and General Counsel for Europe Middle

East and Asia for Vice Media.

Other previous roles as a partner in private

practice, several; roles in the communications,

media and broadcasting sectors and in-house
counsel for AAPT.

Adrian Twyning
Chief of Operations

Il

Joined Arqiva in March 2021 with experience in
energy, retail, health construction and
professional services.

Previously Director of Transformation at Dixons
Carphone

Other senior positions at British Gas and Brighton
and Sussex Hospitals NHS Trust

I

Peter Baker
Executive Director of Smart
Utilities Networks

r

Appointed to Argiva Executive Cormmittee as
interim Director of Srmart Utilities Networks in
June 2022, responsible for helping utilities
companies deliver their smart menitoring
strategies.

- Previous roles include Head of the Finance,
Insurance and Professional Global markets at
Vodafone Business and leadership roles at CGl,
Cable & Wireless and Colt Technology Services

Vivian Leinster
Chief simplification Officer

- Appointed to the newly created role in June
2022 from her previous position in the Executive
Committee as Chief People Officer, a role held
since her appointment to Arqiva in June 2020,
Extensive experience in people, organisation and
cultural changes.

Previous positions including Chief People Officer
at MS Amlin and Bupa UK and senior generalist
and specialist HR roles at BT.

% Clive White

Chief Technology and
Transformation Officer

- Joined Arqiva in April 2018.

- Previous transformation positions at RSA, Lloyds
Banking Group, Accenture, AT&T Global
Network and BSkyB.

Chris Alner
Executive Director of
Media and Broadcast

- Appointed to Argiva Executive Committee as
interim Director Media & Broadcastin June
2022.

- Working almost exclusively in the media and
entertainment industry for almost two decades
previous roles have included positicns at Disney,
MTV and BT Vision.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Argiva’s approach to risk management is as follows:

- Arqiva recognises that the effective management of risk is essential to achieve our business objectives
- Argiva adopts an Enterprise Risk Management {'ERM’} approach, which is recognised as ‘best
practice’ for top performing companies
- Managing risk is a core responsibility of management at all levels and is a key component of
governance and compliance
- Argiva aims to embed risk management principles into the culture of the organisation

Enterprise wide management of risk is important for Argiva to meet our corporate objectives and for us to
protect future competitive advantage. The strategic importance of risk management is recognised by top
performing companies and is an important part of good corporate governance. Argiva subscribes to the
Enterprise Risk Management approach to managing our risk profile.

Argiva has adopted 1S031000 as its Enterprise Risk Management standard and ISO Guide 73 terminology.
Argiva has also adopted the ISO 27000 series for Information Security including ISO/IEC 27005 for Security Risk
Management which operates within the Argiva ERM Framework. Our statements and principles are linked to
our process through our risk management framework.
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The Executive Committee has responsibility for maintaining and updating their line of business risk register
which includes utilising the standardised approach to risk assessment and risk monitoring. The Group’s
centralised Internal Audit and Risk function provides training and support to ensure risks are captured
effectively and on a timely basis. The Internal Audit and Risk function works with the Chief Executive Officer to
review and consolidate the most significant business risks into a corporate risk register for scrutiny at quarterfy
Executive Committee and Audit and Risk Committee meetings. The Executive Committee takes
recommendations for ensuring the risk management framewocrk remains effective going forward.

nwsaaitbﬂns(csw!lsn«ﬂﬁwe:ei}

Senior Executive Management:

Business Management:

. First defence 15 the day to day
controls nod processes put in pioce
by monagerment to entify risks
and develop mitigating actions.

Bad publicity damage
Arqiva’s reputation and
customer and business
partner confidence and its
ability to do business as a
result of:

- A major event or incident
impacting our services;
Untimely delivery on
major projects;
Repeated unexpected
service outages;

Security breach or cyber
attack on networks; or
Major network or
equipment fatlure or
cbsolescence or inability
to configure to comply
with information security
standards

Cuortady review of the corpenate
risk registey 10 include revew of
risk management policies, setting
of risk appetite, monditoring
complicice and teporting of
significant risks to the Board of
Dicectors.

Argiva carefully engages with
cur customers to ensure that
project milestones are carefully
managed and management
regularly reviews the progress
of all projects.

Through continuous
measurement of operational
KPIs and addressing shortfalls
in performance through
process excellence the risk
around service reliability is
carefully managed.

The Group has in place a crisis
management plan for public
relations and external
communications te provide
suppert should there be any
major events. This is regularly
menitored and reviewed.

Cyber-attacks and trends in this
area are continually monitored,

The Group continues to invest
in our infrastructure and
perform site inspections.

+ - Audit and Risk function f Audit

commiitee:
Independent business assumnce
provided over the effectiveness
of the Group’s systerm of interma!
covraks angd processes, ong
the effectiveness of the risk
management framework.

8&&‘!?#!ﬁa%k‘**ﬁli*!“iq@&tk%

Management has identified the following risks as the most significant business risks affecting the Group,
presented together with identified mitigating actions.

The Group maintains 15027001
certification regarding information
security and hoids periodic reviews
of the security environment and
training to employees.

The Business Continuity Group
continues to meet regularly and will
test and roll out the Disaster
Recovery Plan,

Operational resilience plans have
been enacted foliowing the fire on
the Bilsdale site. Using other sites,
services were initially redirected
where possible to utilise other
transmitters in the area whilst a
temporary mast was erected with
98% of households service restored.
Argiva has worked extensively in the
community to support impacted
viewers with positive feedback.

There has been continued capital
expenditure in the year to improve
infrastructure. The Group has
continued with our digital
transformation programme with the
programme largely complete with
new systems launched.
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Impact of development of
alternative competing
technological solutions

¢ against Argiva solutions
such as a faster move to
non-linear and P delivered
services away from
broadcast delivered or on
the utilities side wider
competition to our portfolio
of services to the water
sector. These could impact
customer decisions to not
renew contracts or reduce
the scope of services for
broadcast or utility
connectivity.

Asset condition s worse
than expected leading to
equipment failure or

} obsolescence, service
outages leading to penalties
with customers
requirement for greater

. than anticipated capital
expenditure

Our new products do not
gain traction in the market
due to insufficient
investment in product
development, limited
market opportunity, they do
not meet customer needs
or have an unsustainabie
cost base ultimately
impacting growth and
longevity of the business.

Argiva’s Vision 2031 strategy
seeks to broaden Argiva’s
ambitions and ensure that it
can remain sustainable. It sets
out key pillars of activities
which will drive a focus on
building new business areas
and responding to technology
changes and opportunities in
the market. It prepares the
business to embrace
partnerships and new
technologies which go beyond
the historic focus on Argiva’s
infrastructure and enable the
business to access new
technologies.

Argiva acts to engage with any
relevant Government or
regulatory process which might
impact Argiva’s business areas
in response to the
development of alternative or
competing technologies.

Arqiva acts to ensure that
operational performance is
retained at a very high-level
and that DTT, radio and DTH
services remain on-air in order
to support their ongoing

use relative to IP or broadband
alternative methods of
delivery.

Qur approach is to take a
balanced but focused approach
on asset quality and
maintenance combining an
asset lifecycle management
approach with an established
strategic risk framework to
prioritise cur maintenance
strategy and system owner
reviews of platform health
assessed. Mitigation requiring a
Capex investment is prioritised
within the Capex budget
envelope.

Operating and capital
expenditure are budgeted to
include investment to support
product development.

We maintain strong
relationships with our
customers and engage with
them in the development and
product discovery phase of new
products.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
include any changes to licences,
spectrum or argund the future of
the PSB including the BBC Charter
process or discussions around C4
privatisation. We are currently
engaging with the DCMS radio
review to seek to ensure a long-term
future and clear plan for the radio
sector. We act to protect the
longevity of the services and seek
to avoid a Government decision

to take spectrum used for
broadcast and award it to

mobile or move away from DTT
towards fult delivery of TV services
via IP.

The strategic priorities of the Group
for the next 10 years put a focus on
the sustainable future of the
business including the development
of solutions for new and emerging
sectors to make the most of our
existing infrastructure platforms and
expertise.

Site inspections are compieted with
a focus on older sites and structural
maintenance plans have been
implemented.

Arqiva remains in dialogue with
customers and other stakeholders
such as government and Ofcom or
developments and opportunities in
the markets.

The launch of Broadcast 2040+ seeks
to safeguard the terrestrial TV and
radio broadcast products that
underpin the core business or Arqiva
and secure the longevity of these
contracts.
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Customer demand and
ability to pay reduces due to
decline in advertising
revenues, listening trends,
faster migration to non-
linear and IP delivered
services or structural
changes to the broadcast
market seeing piayers exit
or consolidate to fewer DIT
channels resulting in lower
cash flows for the Group

Customers attack regulated
pricing, challenging long
term contracts and returns
on existing services and
increasing volatility.

Change in government
plans, policy or priorities
could lead to changes in
licencing and long term
contracts for the business
e.g. BBC Licence funding
freeze for 2 years and
potential funding mode!
changes.

The product development
process is performed in
increments {e.g. 3 months) with
checkpoints after each
increment to ensure market
and technology assumptions
stilt hold.

Argiva acts to engage with any
relevant Government or
regulatory process which might
impact Argiva’s business areas
in response to the
development of alternative or
competing technologies.

Argiva’s commercial teams
engage with customers around
pricing and ability te pay and
around renewal of services.
Prices vary in response to these
discussions which reflect
market conditions e.g. with
media customers on the
multiplexes Argiva operates on
DTT or DAB and through its use
of transponder capacity.
Argiva seeks to support the
industry in instances

where changes could
undermine the long-term
demand or ability to pay.

Argiva has long-term contracts
in place with its regulated
business customers ~ this
provides an inherent level of
protection to this risk.

Argiva works closely with the
Office of the Adjudicator
{OTA} to ensure that the OTAis
happy with how the system is
operating — this includes
regular audits and provision of
any information required and
monthly meetings.

Argiva maintains regular
dialogue with our stakeholders
ta ensure the delivery of our
programmes are efficient,
timely and to specification.
Where specification changes
ocecur, Argiva provides a
detailed assessment of the
potential costs of the scope
change and seeks an informed
recovery of these costs through
rnechanisms in our contracts.

Arqiva’s assets and operations
remain predominantly in the
UK and therefore our business

Annual budget includes investment
to support product development.

Arqiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
include any changes to licences,
spectrum or around the future of
the PSB including the BBC Charter
process or discussions around C4
privatisation, We are currently
engaging with the DCMS radio
review to seek to ensure a long-term
future and clear plan for the radio
sector, We act to protect the
longevity of the services and seek
to avoid a Government decision

to take spectrum used for
broadcast and award it to

mobile or move away from DTT
towards full delivery of TV services
via IP.

During the Covid crisis this included
providing financial support to smalf
radic stations and agreeing
reductions with the large radio
groups.

Arqiva has successfully agreed scope
and change requests on our smart
energy metering programme with
our customer demonstrating the
custamer’s continued focus on
network roll out.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders including
Government and regulators to
inciude any changes to licences,
spectrum or around the future of
the PSB including the BBC Charter
process or discussions around C4
privatisation. We are currently
engaging with the DCMS radio
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Information, networks and
systems infrastructure may
be subjected to cyber
security threats leading to a
loss or corruption of data,
penalties and impacting the
operational capacity of
Arqiva.

Critical transmission
structures or IT
infrastructure supporting
key operational processes
could fail eading to
operational outages or
catastrophic loss of service.

The scale and complexity of
Argiva’s major programmes
bear an inherent risk of
unforeseen delays through
the supply chain and

has minimal exposure to the
changing relationships with
international markets.

The Group maintains an
50270001 certification
regarding information security,
which includes Cloud Security
Services. Employee training on
information security is
mandatory and quarterly
reviews are undertaken by
external consultants to
examine the robustness of the
security environment.

System monitoring and
scanning is maintained as weli
as threat and vulnerability
management.

Argiva ensures data is regularly
backed up and Business
Centinuity Plans and Disaster
recavery have been established
for each key site and each
business area including
establishing a network of
agencies to support, regular
site inspections and corrective
and preventative maintenance.
A Business Recovery Working
Group meets regularly to stress
test these plans and continually
review the Group's approach to
disaster recovery and
operational resilience.

Argiva maintains a robust
oversight of the delivery of our
major programmes. This
includes identifying the key
personnel and resources

review to seek to ensure a long-term
future and clear plan for the radio
sector. We act to protect the
longevity of the services and seek

to avoid a Government decision

to take spectrum used for

broadcast and award it to

mohile or move away from OTT
towards full delivery of TV services
via IP.

The launch of Broadcast 2040+ seeks
to safeguard the terrestrial TV and
radic broadeast products that
underpin the core business or Argiva
and secure the longevity of these
contracts.

Debt markets have continued to be
monitored for accessibility and open
dialogue maintained with ratings
agencies. Evolving commercial
negotiations are closely monitored.

Argiva has implemented detection
and prevention solutions on
networks.

Arqiva has continued to pass our
quarterly security reviews and has
consequently retained ISC
certification.

A thorough review has been carried
out of endpoint security user access
to manage who has access to our
systems.

Site inspections are completed with
a focus on older sites and structural
maintenance plans have been
implemented.

Disaster recovery plans have been
enacted following the fire on the
Bilsdale site. Using other sites,
services were initially redirected
where possible to utilise cther
transmitters in the area whilst a
temporary mast was erected with
98% of households service restored.
Argiva has worked extensively in the
community to support impacted
viewers with positive feedback.

The Group's smart metering
communication netwerk in the
North of England and Scotland now
covers 99.5% of premises. Argiva
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therefore chatlenges to
delivery. This includes the
delays from the global
computing component
shortage resulting in delays
to supply of water metering
devices and subsequent risk
to customers on ability to
meet water leakage targets.

The risk that the Group
does not have an alignment
of skills to support the
future requirements.

The Group does not

have the right culture or
the right people in the right
place at the right time with
the right skills to enable
execution of our

strategic plans

Failure to achieve long term
cost targets impacting the
future sustainability of the
business.

required for delivery and
working closely with its
suppliers and customers to
ensure that these requirements
are sufficiently available. A task
force has been established to
co-ordinate global supply chain
{focus on water and energy
meters) with orders placed in
advance to de-risk supply. We
also seek to use multiple device
manufacturers and meter
providers.

Argiva recognises the
importance of our people and
seeks to make Arqgiva a
rewarding and enjoyable place
to work with the People and
Culture Initiative roadmap. The
Group operates a competitive
annual bonus plan for all
employees and a long-term
incentive plan for cur
leadership team. Additionally,
the Group operates formal
retention and succession
planning in knowledge-critical
areas of the business.

The changing customer and
competitive landscape as well
as our internal changes to

our strategy, crganisational
design, technology and
processes require a different
set of mindsets, behaviours,
capabilities and skills so Argiva
has established and launched
the Culture transformation
programme to drive gur people
work.

There is ongoing monitoring
and detailed change control
and regular monitoring of third-
party savings initiatives at both
the Executive Committee and
shareholder levels.

A simplification team has been
established to follow on from
the transformation programme
undergone and drive forward
efficiencies in our processes
and operations.

continues to support the DCC on the
meter roll out programme.

Arqgiva has continued to focus on
supporting individuals with
increased support and training for
new managers and emerging talent
and has established a People and
Culture Initiative Roadmap to
support employees and the
development of our culture.

The culture transformation
programme was launched in 2022
establishing the 3 culture goals to
support the achievement of cur
strategy.

The strategic priorities of the Group
for the next 10 years put a focus on
the sustainable future of the
business including the development
of solutions for new and emerging
sectors to make the most of our
existing infrastructure platforms and
expertise.

The Group has also launched in the
year its sustainability roadmap with
goals to mitigate cur impacts and
support the environments we
operate in.

Details of the financial risks and details of mitigating factors are set out in the Directors’ report on

pages 66-67.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Argiva Group Limited {"AGL’), registered company number 05254001, {“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) submit the annual report and audited consolidated financial statements (“the
financial statements”) in respect of the year ended 30 June 2022.

The Company is a hotding company with an investment in a group of operating companies, financing companies
and other holding companies.

The Directors’ report for the Company is set out on page 135.

Wates Corporate Governance Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2022, under The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, Argiva has
continued to apply the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies {(as published by
the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) in December 2018 and available on the FRC website).

Companies are able to adopt the Wates principles as an appropriate framework when making a disclosure
regarding corporate governance arrangements. We have adopted the disclosure in our 2022 Annual Report and
Financial Statements and we set out below how the principles have been applied over the past year.

PRINCIPLE ONE - PURPOSE AND LEADERSHIP — An effective board promotes the purpose of a company, and
ensures that its values, strategy and culture align with that purpose.

Purpose/focus and activities during the year.

The focus of the Board and Executive Committee during the year has been to lead Argiva through the continued
uncertain Covid 19 period and respond to the fire at the Bilsdale mast in Yorkshire and to re-set the business’
purpose with a particular emphasis on its core broadcast, media networks and utilities businesses and its
customers. The following items were the key areas of focus during the year:

tem . < | Sumimary s : - . .
Headline purpaose and The development of a new and updated purpose for Argiva — which is “Enabling a
strategy matters switched-on world to flow” - and also the Vision 2031 work which has brought our

purpose, our vision and our strategy together has been the focus for building a
sustainable future for Argiva. The Board has overseen these matters alongside the
development and adoption of a detailed and robust long-term plan for the business
with appropriate cost and investment assumptions which now underpin the
business.

Capital structure Following the significant repayment of external debts in the prior year, the Board
has continued to monitor the capital structure in place to ensure its suitability for
the business needs. This included the establishment of new facilities post year end,
the proceeds of which will be used to redeem the Groups outstanding £625m
Junior bonds.

Customers Arqgiva is a smaller and less complex business post the Telecoms divestment, and
the Board has sought to ensure senior engagement with key customers and
stakeholders to strengthen working relationships, share Argiva’s new purpose and
to open up further opportunities for collaboration.

In addition, a significant customer engagement survey was carried outin May 2022.
This provided valuable insights in to Argiva’s performance, what it needs to do to
maintain its position in certain areas, and what it needs to do to prepare for the
future,

Integrated organisation | The Board has overseen the implementation of an integrated arganisational design
whose purpose is to more directly and effectively serve our customers and ensure
alignment across our functions with the business’ purpose and direction.
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People & Culture

A continued focus has been on ensuring the right levels of skills and experience
amongst cur employees which was important to deliver Argiva’s new purpose in
the new organisational design. The Board has overseen a company-wide
restructuring and redundancy programme which was carried out during the year.
This resulted in a significant number of changes in the employee mix — with a
number of individuals leaving the business, others being successful in being
appointed to new roles, and also a significant recruitment exercise to fill vacant
roles.

A senior leadership group continues to benefit from significant investment through
perscnal and leadership development activities. The leadership group has been
key to certain Culture transformation initiatives over the course of the year and
bringing to fruition a target culture blueprint for the business.

In addition, the implementation of our post-pandemic “Work. Life. Smarter.”
practices continues to be rolled out. The intention is to enable a migration to a
hybrid home/office working model for our people.

Operational
perfarmance

The operationa! performance of the business has been closely monitored by the
Board as part of the regular Board meeting agendas. In particular, the impact of
Covid 19 on the performance of the business has been considered on a more
frequent basis, and the relevant operational risks associated with Covid 19
continue to be carefully managed. In addition, the global component shortage has
had an impact on meter supply schedules and this has been frequently considered
by the Board and senior management.

As noted below the operational performance of the business has been impacted
by the Bilsdale fire during the year, and the Board has overseen the Group’s
response as a priority.

Governance

A number of appointments/changes have been made to the Group’s executive
committee during the year. In addition to the business’ new integrated
organisational design, a number of improvements and updates have been made to
the business’ internal governance structures and delegated authorities.

| Covid 19

The principal aims of the Board in its response to the ongoing Covid 19 pandemic
were to ensure the safety of its employees and assist individuals with the evelving
lockdown situations and ‘working from home’ realities, and also maintain
operational capability and delivery to the Group’s customers. In addition, the
Board continued to oversee the Group's engagement with its most affected and
key customers.

Transformation

The Board has cantinued to oversee the programme to upgrade the Group’s IT,
systems and processes to enhance operational capability and bring efficiencies to
the Group’s operations.

Bilsdale transmitter
fire

The fire at the Bilsdale transmitter site has had a significant impact on the group’s
operations in the year, with the response to the incident being a key area of focus
for the Board. The Board continues to oversee the restoration programme, with
key priorities being supporting the community and returning coverage.

Values and culture

Argiva’s values are embedded throughout the organisation, and adherence to them forms part of employees’
performance reviews and reward structure, Independent surveys of both employee and customer engagement
are undertaken. £ngagement with BECTU is described under Principle 6 (Stakeholders) below. The Graup’s
People & Culture team monitors absenteeism rates and processes are also in place to encourage and monitor
exit interviews. These form part of matters reported upon to the Operational Resilience Committee, which

reports in to the Board.
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PRINCIPLE TWO - BOARD COMPOSITION - Effective board composition requires an effective chair and a balance
of skilis, backgrounds, experience and knowledge, with individual directors having sufficient capacity to make a
valuable contribution. The size of a board should be guided by the scale and complexity of the company.

Chair
The Group’s corporate governance structure creates a clear separation between the role of the Chair and that
of the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chair {who is independent of the Group’s Shareholders) is a highly experienced business executive having
held many senior executive roles in the technology and telecoms sectors. The Chair has actively encouraged
open debate and discussion in the appropriate forums including main Board meetings which are scheduled to
take place at least six times per year, and also at Board sub-committee meetings {those committees being the
Audit & Risk Conunillee, Numminalions & Governance Committee, Operational Kesilience Committee, Capital
Structure Committee and the Remuneration Committee).

Balance and diversity

The Board has deep and relevant experience which has provided invaluable external industry input to assist
more effective decision-making in relation to a number of key matters brought before the Board. The Group
operates in a number of diverse and complex markets which require the Board to have a detailed understanding
of the relevant sector in order to arrive at informed decisions.

Argiva is actively working with Inclusive Employers in relation to diversity and inclusion. The Group recognises
that there is further work to do in this area and continues to promote relevant initiatives. Page 37 of the Annual
Report provides a breakdown of the gender of Directors and employees.

Size and structure

The size and structure of the Board remains under periodic review so that it is best organised to meet the needs
and challenges of the Group. in terms of Board size, a balance has been struck between ensuring Shareholders
are adequately represented via their nominated Directors but also identifying directors with relevant industry
experience to be appointed together with the Group’s CEO and CFO (see pages 45-49 of the Annual Report for
full details of the composition of the Board of Directors and Senior Executive Management). Whilst Frank
Dangeard, Mike Darcey and Sally Davis all originally joined Argiva as independent non-executive directors, each
of them were also Shareholder directors representing Macquarie, CPPIB and MTAA/IFM respectively in the year
to 30 June 2022,

We acknowledge that there is a relative lack of diversity on the Board. As part of the new appointments to the
Senior Leadership groups, improvements have been made to broaden diversity and this will continue in the
future. Details of the actions taken in the year towards this are discussed in the Corporate responsibility
statement on page 37 of the annual report.

Effectiveness
The Group undertook an extensive Board effectiveness/evaluation exercise in December 2020 using an external
online platform together with relevant diagnostics, and the results of the exercise were considered and
discussed at a meeting of the Neminations & Governance Committee and the Board of directors in February
2021. The key action recommendations from the exercise included the following:
- Argiva’s sustainability activities should be an increasing priority that form part of the company’s value
creation and strategic objectives.
- Diversity & inclusion and sustainability matters will be a more prominent agenda item at relevant
committee meetings and also at the Board twice a year from FY22 onwards.
- Succession planning and talent review matters will be regular agenda items for the Nominations &
Governance Committee.
- The composition of the Board (and/or the potential for a Board observer or external advisor) would be
kept under review to ensure the right breadth of experience and input at the Board.
- Anincreased focus by the Audit & Risk Committee in appraising strategic risk factors and whistleblowing
matters.
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PRINCIPLE THREE - DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITIES — A board should have a clear understonding of its
accountability and terms of reference. its policies and procedures should support effective decision-making and
independent challenge,

The Board has a programme of six principal meetings every year, with additional meetings arranged for key
projects, strategic matters or circumstances such as Covid 19 or the fire at the Bilsdale mast in Yorkshire, as may
be required.

Accountability

Decisions which are within the remit of the Board or Shareholders are set out in a Sharehclders’ Agreement (as
Board Reserved Matters and Shareholder Reserved Matters). There is a comprehensive Delegation of Authority
policy which sets out the responsibilities that are delegated to the Executive and those decisions which must be
made at Board or Shareholder level. This policy was updated and a revised policy brought to the June 2022
Board meeting for approval. Typically, Board or Shareholder Reserved Matters are raised at regular Board
meetings and written resolutions are obtained where otherwise required.

A Conflicts of Interest paper is maintained and regularly updated with details of Board or Shareholder conflicts.
Any conflicts which may compromise independent decision making would be raised by the Company Secretary
at the relevant Board meeting; a Director having a conflict is not entitled to discuss or vote on the relevant
matter, or to count in the quorum.

Committees

Five Board sub-Committees have been instituted. Pages 68-69 of the Annual Report provides an overview and
description of each of the Board sub-Committees comprising: Audit & Risk, Remuneration Committee,
Nominations & Governance and Operational Resilience and Capital Structure Committee. The Board sub-
Committees promote effective decision making and greater accountability and focus in relation to each of the
areas covered by the respective Board sub-Committees.

Integrity of information

The Board receives regular reports from the Executive and Senior Management on key matters for which the
Board has responsibility, including strategic projects; comprehensive financial reporting; key customer and
regulatory matters; updates on operational resilience (including physical and cyber security as well as health and
safety and environmental issues); details of major bids and performance of key contracts and market issues
faced by the Group as well as developments in technology and regulation.

The Group uploads papers to a board portal for ease of review and administration. Other than in exceptional
cases papers are submitted in advance and taken as read at Board meetings, allowing any presentations to focus
on highlighting key issues, discussion and dealing with questions. The Chairs of each of the Board Committees
are aware of the importance of their position and during FY22 they have each met (virtually} with key employees
of the Group to build relationships and gain direct access to those dealing with the day to day business of the
Group.

PRINCIPLE FOUR - OPPORTUNITY AND RISK — A Board should promote the long-term sustainabie success of the
company by identifying opportunities to create and preserve value, and establishing oversight for the
identification and mitigation of risks.

Opportunity

The Group’s Board maintains a focus on how the Group creates and preserves value over the long-term which
is principally achieved through a well-developed strategic and long-term planning process. The Board keeps its
strategy under review which provides a forum to present future business opportunities. Appropriate
governance mechanisms are in place to ensure that new business opportunities above a certain value are
considered and approved by the Board.

Risk

The Group has a well-developed risk management process in place and continues to use its an online risk
assessment tool, which is used throughout the business {which is described on pages 50 of the Annual report).
The Group’s Audit and Risk function works with the Chief Executive Officer to review and consolidate the most
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significant business risks into a corporate risk register for scrutiny at quarterly Executive Committee and Audit
& Risk Committee meetings.

Argiva’s key operational risks and mitigations are outlined in detail on pages 54-55 of the Annual Report.

Responsibilities
The Group has adopted the Enterprise Risk Management approach to managing its risk which has been approved
by the Group’s Audit & Risk Committee. This incorporates an internal control framework clearly defining roles
and responsibilities of those involved. Responsibilities include the following:
- The Group’s Executive Committee takes recommendations for ensuring the risk management
framework remains effective going forward;
- Processes are in place for managing the principal risks and uncertainties;
- Theinternal control framework (described on page 50 ot the Group’s annual report) contirms that there
is a monitoring and review process in place to evaluate risks at both business unit and Board level.

PRINCIPLE FIVE - REMUNERATION - A hoard showld promote executive remuneration structures aligned to the
fong-term sustainable success of a company, taking into account pay and conditions elsewhere in the company.

Remuneration

A consistent approach has been adopted in setting the level and structure of remuneration in relation to each
member of the Executive Committee to secure appropriate and fair levels of remuneration. Benchmarking and
advice from external remuneration consultants is obtained. Remuneration comprises of a number of elements
including base salary, an annual bonus and a long-term incentive plan.

Page 37 of the Group’s annual report provides more detail and explains how remuneration is structured to
recognise high performance reward for achieving targets in line with the Group’s sustainable success and values.
This aligns with remuneration arrangements for the remainder of the organisation where every employee’s
remuneration is made up of a combination of base salary and annual bonus (which, again, is linked to personal
performance and achieving financial targets in line with the Group's objectives}.

Policies

The Group has delegated remuneration matters to the Remuneration Committee (which is a committee of the
8oard). The Remuneration Committee operates in accordance with documented terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee is cornmitted to take into account the pay and employment conditions of the Group’s
wider workforce when making recommendations in relation to Executive pay.

The Group’s bonus and long-term incentive plans are documented in writing and reviewed at least annually by
the Remuneration Committee and any payments made operate against documented performance targets.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee considers the company wide annual pay increase on an annual basis.
As part of this process, the Remuneration Committee will assess increases against certain criteria including
taking into account other comparative pay metrics in the industry, discussions held with BECTU, the existing and
future financial capacity of the business, and also aligning with the long term sustainable success of the
company. Inthe year to 30 June 2022, annual pay negotiations were concluded with BECTU with agreement to
go to a ballot of its members. This occurred in early July 2022 and agreement was reached on the business’
proposals.

The Group has published its full gender pay gap report which is available on the company website at
www.argiva.com. The latest report shows the emphasis and commitment to diversity and inclusion with
improvements in both the mean and median pay gaps for the reporting period. The full report provides details
on why we have a pay gap, the reasons for the increase in the year and the actions we are taking to address the
issue.
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PRINCIPLE SIX - STAKEHOLDERS — A board has a responsibility to oversee meaningful engagement with material
stakeholders, including the workforce, and have regard to that discussion when taking decisions. The board has
a responsibility to foster good stakeholder relationships based on the company’s purpose.

Stakeholders

The Group’s key Stakeholders include its employees; customers; suppliers; debt investors; Shareholders;
pensions trustees; and regulatory and government bodies including Ofcom, DCMS and BEIS. Senior
Management and the Strategy and Regulatory team work closely with industry and lobby groups and
representatives of the various regulatory bodies, and the Board is regularly briefed informally and formally on
developments. The value of good relationships with local communities, in the context of planning requirements
for example, is understood and focus is given to fostering these relationships. The Group provides reports to
investors and creditors as part of its listed debt obligations and conducts regular investor calls which give the
opportunity for debt investors to raise questions with the Group. The Group’s procurement operations function
actively undertakes reviews of its supplier base and to enhance its best practice in this field.

Workforce

Argiva communicates to its employees through regular email newsletters, updates over email directly from the
CEO and local messaging from the Executive Management. The CEO and Executive Management have also
conducted small fistening groups in person where possible. However, due to the Covid 19 pandemic, the use of
live broadcasts and presentations streamed online {rather than roadshows) has continued and this has been
well received by employees. This has been done alongside interactive question functionality which enables a
live dialogue with the workforce. Individual video interviews with members of the Executive Management have
also been published on the Argiva intranet. During the Covid 19 pandemic in particular, the Executive
Management team has been the principal conduit through which the Board has been able to assess workforce
considerations and related views for the purposes of their decision making processes.

The Group has active union representation from BECTU, as well as an elected Employee Board, and employee
forums throughout the different functions. The Pecple & Culture team work closely with each of these bodies,
consulting on any proposed changes to terms; policies and processes; as well as seeking feedback on workplace
morale, culture and issues of concern or interest to the workforce. In the year to 30 June 2022, due to the
company wide restructuring and redundancy programme and return to the office after the Covid 19 lockdown,
the interaction between Arqiva, its Employee Board and BECTU has been heightened. A constructive and pro-
active dialogue was swiftly established between the parties and a constructive relationship has been cemented
as a result.

External impacts

The Group's Corporate Responsibility statement sets out, on pages 35-39 of the Directors’ Report, a description
of the Group’s focus areas used to ensure that it acts responsibly, ethicaily and safely, from a Corporate;
Community; Employee; and Business perspective. The statement also includes a summary of the Group’s
approach to environmental factors. The Group’s Modern Slavery Act: Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement
on page 42-43 sets out a description of Argiva’s considerations in this area, including supply chain impacts.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

Introduction

This report provides an overview of Arqiva’s approach to environmental sustainability as well as progress and
successes made during the financial year. It also provides information and data we are required to report under
the Task Force for Climate Change Disclose (TCFD) and the Streamlined Energy Carbon Reporting {SECR).

New Sustainability Framework
This year Argiva launched its sustainability framework. The framework is focused on envirocnmental
sustainability and has three clear goals:
Goal 1 Become a net zero organisation by 2040, with an interim goal of net zero across our scope
1 and 2 ermissions by 2031

Goal 2 Positively enhance the environments we operate in
Goal 3 Optimise our use of natural resources

Goal 1 Net Zero

We understand and can currently measure our scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions. As a result we have set a more
aggressive goal to achieve net zero compared to our scope 3 emissions. We have specifically chosen a 2031
deadline to align with Argiva’s ten year business strategy Vision 2031.

We are currently focused on the creation of abatement plans detailing how we will achieve next zero on our
scope 1 and 2 emissions. Currently we can measure only part of our scope 3 emissions. This year we will
undertake further analysis of our supply chain to measure the current carbon emissions and work with our
suppliers to understand their plans towards net zero.

We are committed this year to supporting the Science Based Target initiative to enable us to measure our
progress towards net zero and provide credibility to our plans.

Goal 2 Environmental Enhancement
Our second goal targets how we can positively enhance the environments we operate in. Initially we wili focus
on three areas:
1. Identifying ways in which we can reduce our energy consumption in our buildings and technical
equipment
2. Argiva own and operate a network of over 1,500 sites around the UK. We have an opportunity to make
decisions about how we manage the land and how we can support and improve biodiversity
3. To provide greater transparency of the individual carbon footprint of our key products and services to
enable our customers to make informed choices

Goal 3 Resource Optimisation

Our third goal will ensure we can find ways to optimise the use of our natural resources. We will take a holistic
view of how we use our natural resources, both upstream to understand how we minimise waste creation and
downstream to maximise reuse and recycling.

62



Argiva Group Limited {05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2022

Sustainability Successes
We are still developing cur plans to achieve our three goals but have still had some notable successes during the
year.

Carbon Emissions Reduction
Carbon Emissions
The table below provides a breakdown of carbon emissions by scope in accordance with the Green House Gas

Protocol.
UK Greenhouse Gas Emissions Year ended Year ended
e B . 30June 2022 30June 2021
Total Energy consumption (kwh) | 214,456,587 222,357,758
Gas 1,772,197 2,055,282
- Electricity 207,524,329 215,261,826
| Transport Fuel 5,414,256 5,040,650
Scope 1 emissions in t/CO2¢e Gas 319 376
Gas Oil* 129 -
Fluorinated Gases (HVAC) 618 -
Owned transport (fleet) 1,208 1,120
i Total 2,274 1,496
Scope 2 emissions in t/C0O2e [ Market Based 9,943 639
| Location Based 40,131 46,471
Scope 3** emissions int/CO2e | Business travel (employee owned 178 129
| and hire vehicles)
Public Transport and 231 -
Accommodation
. Water Consumption 21 -
{ Waste in Operations 5 -
Total 435 129
Total gross emissions in metric | Market Based 12,946 2,264
tonnes CO2Ze (Scope 1,2 &3) :
i Location Based 43,134 48,096
Intensity Ratio TCO2e / £m | Market based method 20,5 3.49
revenue |
| Location based methad 68.30 74.31

Footnotes:
Emissions sources reported are where we have verifiable data to support.
**This is not » complete Scope 3 inventory; we are turrently working towards understanding carbon emissions associated with our supply
chain.
*Does not include emissions associated with portable diesel generators.

The following standards and guidance are used to both monitor and report on our relevant carbon emission
sources:

Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard developed by World Resource
Institute {WR1) and World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBSCDY which can be accessed
via https://ghgprotocol org/standards

Green House Gas Reporting: Conversion factors 2022: full set, used to report on 2022 greenhouse gas
emissions. Access available via https://www.gov. yk/government/publications/greenhouse-gas-reporting-
conversion-factors-2022

Environmental Reporting Guidelines: Including streamlined energy and carbon reporting guidance March
2019.  Access available via https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/environmental-reporting-
guidelines-including-mandatory-greenhouse-gas-emissions-reparting-guidance
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Scope 1 Emissions

This year we have trialled several electric vehicles to help gain a better understanding of operating an effective
electric vehicle business fleet for our field engineers. We have also installed electric car charging points at our
head office and plan to roll out further charging points across our other office locations.

Scope 2 Emissions

Argiva, like many businesses, has taken the opportunity following the pandemic to review ways of working to
ensure we have the right office environments for all employees. This has resulted in the sale of one office and
consolidation of working areas on larger sites to reduce the need for heating and lighting. These initiatives
delivered annual energy savings of over 165,000 kilowatt hours.

Our existing on-site solar generation across four of our sites continues to provide the national grid with clean
renewable energy. This year our sites generated over 200,000kWh of power, enough to support over 45
domestic hames in the UK using an average energy profile.

Environmental Enhancement

Energy Use Reduction

The old transmitters at our sites Meldrum, Pontop Pike and Rowridge have all undergone technical refreshes
and replaced with new more efficient technology. Transmitters at Washford, Droitwich and Holme Moss have
all been re-engineered, allowing them to operate at a reduce power consumption.

The combined impact of all these technology changes has reduced the overall energy consumptions across the
six sites by over 1750 Megawatts or 339 tonnes of carbon dioxide.

Biodiversity
Argiva is committed to enhance and protect our natural environment. Increasing biodiversity, helps to ensure
ecosystems are resilient to climate change and also helps contrel climate change through carbon sequestration.

Our site at Morn Hill, part of the South Downs National Park, provides a good example of where proactive
management can both support and enhance biodiversity. The site is managed predominantly using grazing
animals and scrub clearance to create ground conditions suitable for a variety of plant and animal species. This
year over 750 Brown Argus butterflies were recorded, the highest number since monitoring started in 1991. The
site also hosts a stable population of slow worms and commaon lizard, which is a great reflection of the overall
heatth of the habitat.

Resource Minimisation

Our ambition is to embed the principles of a circular economy into all aspects of our business operations to
ensure we are considering both the up and downstream effects of our decision making. This year Arqiva recycled
over 100 tonnes of waste, achieving an average recycling rate of 46% across its operations.

Our employee canteens are a great example. We removed all single use plastic and promoted the use of bringing
your own drink and focd receptacles.

Climate Change
As well as our commitment to reducing our carbon emission and becoming a net zero organisation we also
consider the impact of climate change on our business operations.

Climate Change Risk Governance
Argiva have implemented a Sustainability Committee consisting of member of ExCo and senior leaders across
the business. The role of the committee is to ensure that Argiva meets its environmental sustainability ambitions

and commitments.

Output from this committee is fed into the Operational Resilience Committee, a subcommittee of the Board.
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Climate Risk Management
Argiva have a large portfolio of sites. We have taken a risk-based approach and assessed the resilience of sites
with greater strategic importance for network resilience.

Our assessment has focused primarily on environmental physicai risks and opportunities such as:

Flooding

Wildfires

Storms and severe weather
Rising temperature (for example heat stress on equipment)
Poor Air Quality

e Through the risk assessment process the following physical risks have been deemed material and the
business impact and subsequent response has been provided

Risk / Opportunity

Potential Impact

Business Response

Wildfires {for
example moorland
fires)

Wildfires can cause
significant damage to
Argiva assets and extreme
events could cause
catastrophic failure to our
sites and services

Full site audit completed on significant assets to assess
fire risk. installation of fire breaks and increased
maintenance around perimeter fence and stay wires
to reduce risk of adjacent fires impacting Arqiva assets

Increasing external
temperature

Unexpected increasing
external temperatures can
lead to instability in
equipment performance
leading to service failure.

Trial deployment of remote monitoring temperature
and humidity sensors. Operational readiness improved
through system monitoring reducing response times
to potential system failure. Opportunity to reduce
engineer resource through on-site monitoring.
Increased productivity and reduction in miles travelled
and associated carbon emissions

Storms and Severe
weather

Extreme weather events
can lead to hazardous
conditions accessing site
to undertake planned or
reactive maintenance.

Operations Centres monitor Meteorological Office
Weather Forecasts daily and issue pro-active alerts,
which are issued to Field Operations Managers to
allow forward planning of engineering resource

As our carbon abatement plans mature and formalise over this forthcoming financial year for our scope 1 and 2
emissions sources so will our level of understanding of the risks associated with our transition to a low carbon
economy. This process will identify those risks that are material, allowing them to be considered in the context
of the overall strategic direction of the organisation,
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Directors Report

Financial Risk Management

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group have been outlined previously in this report (see pages 51-
55). As a resuit of these, as well as the on-going business activities and strategy of the Group, Argiva is exposed
to a variety of financial risks that include financing risk, purchase price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and foreign exchange risk.

The key financial risks affecting the Group are set out below, together with a summary of how these risks are
managed.

High inftation risk has an adverse
impact on both operating and
financing cashflows.

The Group will need to refinance
at least part of ocur debt as it
matures and may need additional
financing to cover capital
expenditure and certain other
expenses to support its growth
plans. The Group cannot be
certain that such financing will be
readily available on attractive or
historically comparable terms.

Breach of debt covenants and/or
a downgrade in our rating could
impact the availability of finance
or the comparability of terms.

Energy is a major component of
the Group’s cost base and is
subject to price volatility.

The Group is exposed to credit risk
on customer receivables.

The Group uses derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to adverse impacts to debt as a result of
inflation. Inflation-linked swaps convert fixed or
floating rate interest costs to RPI-linked costs.

A significant proportion of the Group’s revenue
contracts within core TV and radio products are RPI
index linked.

Increase in power costs are in part managed via pass-
through arrangements to customers.

The Group mitigates this risk by the strength of the
stable long-term investment grade capital structure in
place. Qur BBB+/BBB {S&P/Fitch} ratings reflect our
strong ability to service and repay debt from our cash
flows over a reasonable period of time, maintaining
debt with a variety of medium- and long-term
maturities, so that over time we do not have a
significant concentration of debt due for refinancing in
any given year, and aiming to refinance debt well in
advance of the maturity date.

With regards to covenants the Group maintains
financial covenant monitoring and modelling, both
retrospectively and prospectively and maintains
regular dialogue with credit ratings agencies.

A proportion of this risk is managed via pass-through
arrangements to customers. The Group’s residual
exposure to fluctuations in the electricity price is
managed by forward purchasing the majority of power
requirements. Key revenue and cost milestones are set
on larger projects to ensure the financial risks of
volatile market pricing are mitigated.

Credit risk is managed through appropriate credit
checking procedures prior to taking on new customers;
and higher risk customers paying in advance of services
being provided. Performance is closely monitored to
ensure agreed service levels are maintained reducing
the level of queried payments and mitigating the risk
of uncollectible debts.
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The Group is exposed to
counterparty risks in its financing
operations.

Ensuring the Group has sufficient
available funds for working capital
requirements and planned growth
and funding for the Defined
Benefit pension scheme.

Exposure to interest rate risk due
to borrowing variablie rate bank
debt,

The Group operates from UK sites
and predominantly in the UK
market. While some customer
and supplier contracts are
denominated in other currencies
{mainly US Dollars and Euros}, the
rmajority of the Group’s revenues
and costs are sterling based, and
accordingly exposure to foreign
exchange is limited.

The Group carefully manages the credit risk on tiquid
funds and derivative financial instruments with
balances currently spread across a range of major
financial institutions which have satisfactory tredit
ratings assigned by international credit ratings
agencies. The levels of credit risk are monitored
through the Group’s on-going risk management
processes, which include a regular review of the credit
ratings. Risk in this area is limited further by setting a
maximum leve! and term for deposits with any single
counterparty,

The Group maintains cash reserves and access to
undrawn committed faciiities to cover forecast
requirements. As at 30 June 2022 the Group had
£251.2m cash available and £66m and £150m undrawn
working capital and liquidity facilities respectively
available to cover senior interest payment if required.
The Group also has a £30.0m facility to support
‘Comims Hub Receivables Purchasing’. The Board
considers the availability and adequacy of working
capital funding reguirements in conjunction with
forming its long-term financial plan for the business. A
further £50m working capital facility has been
established post year end which can be drawn as
required.

The Group uses derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to rising interest rates. The Group maintains
a hedging policy to manage interest rate risk and to
ensure the certainty of future interest cash flows and
compliance with debt covenants. The derivative
contracts held are fixed rate hedging, split between
interest rates and inflation-linked swaps. The Group
has, however, elected not to apply hedge accounting
meaning gains and losses are recognised through the
income statement as fair values fluctuate (2022:
£76.4m loss; 2021 £11.1m loss). Interest rate swaps
convert variable rate interest costs to fixed rate
interest costs while inflation-linked swaps coavert
fixed or floating rate interest costs to RPI-linked costs,
which fluctuate in line with the RPi index as do a
significant proportion of the Group’s revenue
contracts.

Management regularly monitors the impact of foreign
exchange risks and assess the need to put any
mitigating financial instruments in place. This risk is not
currently considered to be material and no currency
financial instruments are held at 30 June 2022.
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internal control over financial reporting

The Board of Directors review the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control, including risk
management systems and financial and operational controls (see page 50).

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee includes representation from the Board of Directors. Mike Parton will chair Audit
& Risk Committee meetings (or another committee member may be appointed to chair the meetings as
required),

The Committee has responsibilities of oversight of risk management procedures, monitoring compliance and
regulatory issues (including whistleblowing arrangements) and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
internal controls and internal audit function.

The Committee is authorised to seek any information it requires from any employee of the Company in order to
perform its duties, and to obtain any external legal or other professional counsel it requires.

Meetings of the Committee are attended, at the invitation of the Chairman of the Committee, by the external
auditors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and representatives from the business as
required.

Internal Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing the work undertaken by the Group's internal audit
function, assessing the adegquacy of the function’s resource and the scope of its procedures, The internal audit
function agrees its annual audit plan with the Audit and Risk Committee and regularly reports its findings and
recommendations. The Group’s internal audit plan incorporates an annual rolling review of business activities
and incorparates both financial and non-financial controls and procedures.

External Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is respensible for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Group’s external auditor. The Committee makes an assessment of the
auditors’ independence and objectivity taking into account the relationship with the auditors as a whole,
including the provision of any non-audit services.

PwC were re-appointed as external auditor in 2016 following a competitive tender process.

The auditors have provided certain nan-audit services, principally in relation to non-audit assurance. The Audit
and Risk Committee considers the acceptability of all non-audit services with the auditors in advance of
commencement of work to confirm acceptability and ensures that appropriate safeguards of audit
independence are established and applied, such as partner rotation.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, chaired by Sally Davis, is established to make recommendations to the Board
regarding executive remunerations, including pension rights and to recommend and monitor the level and
structure of remuneration for each member of the Executive Committee. Additional oversight is extended to
setting and monitoring reward and incentive policies, including the bonus schemes, and reviewing and making
recommendations in relation to wider reward policies.
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Governance and Nomination Committee

The Governance and Nomination Committee, chaired by Mike Parton, is established to give oversight to the size,
structure and composition {including skills, experience, independence, knowledge and diversity) of the Board to
ensure that the continued leadership ability is sufficient to allow the business to compete effectivety in the
market. This also includes oversight of the succession planning for directors {and other senior executives where
appropriate).

Operational Resilience Committee

The Operational Resilience Committee, chaired by Mike Darcey, has oversight of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the operational resilience strategies and procedures of the Group {including principles, policies and practices
adepted in complying with all statutory, and sub-statutary, standards and regulatory requirements in respect of
safety, health and environment {‘'SHE’) matters affecting the activities of the Group]. This includes consideration
and risk management of areas of significant and individual cyber security, physical security, business continuity
and SHE risk.

Equal Opportunities policy

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective
aptitudes and abilities of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every
effart is made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues, and the appropriate training is
arranged. Itis the policy of the Group that the training, career development and promotion of a disabled person,
should, as far as possible, be identical to that of a persan who does not have a disability. Further information on
how Argiva supports its employees can be found on page 36.

Paolitical Donattons

No political donations were made during the year (2021: none).

Charitable donations

The Group has made £0.1m (2021: £0.1m) of charitable donations in the year.
Research and development

The Group performs research and development into new products and technology, the costs of which are
capitalised where they meet the criteria for capitalisation in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. The
research costs expensed in the year were £1.5m (2021: £2.0m). In addition, the Group carries out research and
development as part of its contract bid processes and these costs are expensed as part of the bid costs unless
the development expenditure ran be capitalised. The bid costs expensed during the year total £1.4m (2021:
£1.3m).

Development costs incurred as part of capital expenditure projects, which support customers contracts, are
included with the total project spend within property, plant and equipment. The Group’s capital expenditure in
the year was £98.5m (2021: £104.0m) and includes capitalised labour of £26.1m (2021: £34.4m). Other
development costs are capitalised within intangible assets. in the year, new development costs capitalised total
£1.8m (2021: £0.3m) with amortisation of £2.5m (2021: £1.6m) charged against such capitalised development
costs.

Overseas branches

The Group has trading branches based in the Isle of Man, the Channel istands and France.
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Events after the reporting date

On 19 August 2022, the Group signed a commitmant for A £450m term facility and a £50m Working Capital
Facility both with an expected maturity date of 2028. These facilities are floating rate in nature with a margin
over SONIA. Argiva Broadcast Intermediate Limited (a subsidiary of the Group) is the borrower of this
arrangement. The proceeds of this facility when drawn will be used to redeem the Groups outstanding £625m
Junior bonds.

The maturity of Shareholder Loan notes have also been extended since year end and now have maturity dates
ranging from March 2029 to March 2030.

On 21 September 2022, a second interim stage payment of £10.0m was received from the insurers in relation to
the Bilsdale fire. At 30 June 2022, this represented a rontingent asset and has therefore not been recognised in
the income statement.

On 23 September 2022, it was announced that the corporation tax rate change from 19% to 25% with effect
frem 1 April 2023 was to be cancelled. For further detail see notes 12 and 19 of the financial statements.

Dividends and transfers to reserves

Now Digital {East Midlands), a Group company which includes a non-controlling interest, declared a dividend in
the year of £nil (2021: £0.4m).

The Directors’ of the Group have not recommended a dividend in the year {2021: nil).
The consolidated loss for the year of £634.6m (2021: restated® profit of £480.5m) was transferred to reserves.
Going Concern

The Strategic report includes information on the structure of the business, the business environment, financial
review for the year and uncertainties facing the Group. Notes 20, 23 and 25 of the consolidated financial
statements include information on the Group’s cash, borrowings and derivative respectively; and financial risk
management information presented within this report.

The Group meets our day-to-day working capital and financing requirements through the net cash generated
from our operations. The Group performs a review of going concern through a review of forecasting including
cash flow forecasts and considering the requirements of capital expenditure and debt repayments and including
any severe but plausible scenarios. The Group has sufficient financial resources which, together with internally
generated cash flows, will continue to provide sufficient sources of liquidity to fund our current operations,
including our contractual and commercial commitments both in terms of capital programmes and financing as
they fall due. This is further supported by the new debt facilities established post year end, see note 31 for
further information. For this reason, the Directors are confident that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing this financial information.

Future Developments

The Group plans to continue in its commercial and operational business in accordance with its strategy. Further
detail is contained within the Strategic report on page 19.

® The prior year profit has been restated to reflect adjustments to the tax credits recognised. See note 12 to
the financial statements for detail.
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Ownership and Directors

A description of the ownership of the Group and the Board of Directors holding office during the year and up to
the date of signing of the financial statements can be found on page 45.

At 30 June 2022, Mike Parton was the Group’s independent Chairman and Katrina Dick was the Company
Secretary. Katrina Dick was appointed to this role on 6 April 2022. This role was previously held by Jeremy Mavor
who resigned on this date.

For details on the background of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee please refer to page 45.
Details of the statutory directors of the Company are shown on page 135.
Directors Indemnities

The Company has provided an indemnity for its Directors and the Company Secretary, which is a qualifying third-
party indemnity for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force during the fuil financial
year and up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to the Independent Auditars
The Directors of the Group in office at the date of approval of this report confirm that:

- So far as the Directors are aware there is no relevant audit information of which the Auditors are
unaware; and

- Each Director has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of that
information.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards and the Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
tramework”, and applicable law).

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed for the
Group financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been
followed for the Company financial statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Group and Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group’s and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the

United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.

On behalf of the Board

e

Mike Parton

Director
26 September 2022
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Arqgiva Group Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

in our opinion:

+ Argiva Group Limited's Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the “financial statements”) give
a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of the Group’s loss
and the Group's cash flows for the year then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards,

+ the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law); and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual
Report”), which comprise: the Consolidated and Company staterments of financial pesition as at 30 June 2022; the
Consolidated income statement, Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, Consolidated cash flow statement and
Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK} are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accardance with these requirements.

Our audit approach

Overview

Audit scope

» For the Group Financial Statements we performed an audit of the complete financial information of three entities and
the consolidation. We also conducted audit procedures on specific line items for 12 entities to ensure sufficient
coverage. The audit work performed achieved coverage of 95% of revenue and 99% of adjusted EBITDA {consisting
of continuing profit before tax, finance income, finance costs, other gains and losses and exceptional income and
expenses). Al entities have been audited by the Group audit team and hence no component auditor has been involved
in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements

Key audit matters

+ Carrying value of goodwill {(Group)

+ Recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assets (Group)

+ Valuation of defined benefit pension scheme obligation (Group)
+ Recoverability of intercompany receivable balances (Parent}

Materiality
» Overall Group materiality: £11,800,000 based on approximately 3.5% of Adjusted EBITDA.
« Overall Company materiality: £200,000 based on approximately 2% of Net Assets.
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+ Performance materiality: £8,900,000 (Group) and £150,000 (Gompany).

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
{whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and
any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of cur audit of the
financial statements as a whale, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinign on these
matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Recoverability of intercompany receivable balances {Parent) is a new key audit matter this year. Valuation of financiaf
instruments and Covid-19 impacts, which were key audit matters last year, are no longer included because of the limited
ongoing impact of Covid-19 on the Group and Company, and the valuation of financial instruments being less complex
and less significant in the current year. Otherwise, the key audit matters below are consistent with last year.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Canying value of goodwill {Group)

{AS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’ requires management to We obtained an yndersianding of the allocation of goodwilt
perform annual impairment assessments in respect of to cash generating units in management's impairment

goodwill. The Group's goodwill is material, amounting to model and assessed its appropriateness.
£1,457.4m (£1,339.6m allocated to 'Media Distribution’
and £117.8m allocated to 'Smart Utilities Networks"), and We tested the impairment model, assessing its

_thei ir(rj-npairmentt)ass?ssmentst_perforrr?eg over gglod\tu{ll mathematical accuracy, the accuracy of inputs to the model
include a nuT. fjf o assturn;; ‘0"3 W t'c %re SU[ Jei ; and the reasonableness of the assumptions applied by
management ludgement and eslimales. UM ¢ evale management in assessing the recoverable amount for each
audit risk re!ates_predomrnantly to the Smart Ut}r't'es cash generating unit. These included the assumptions for
Network CGU. given thg lower headroom on this CGU revenue and cost growth, capital expenditure and the

and the greater uncertainty around the future growth of discount rate used

the utilittes sector.

Refer t 94 and 108 (note 4 - critical We tested the cash flows and agreed these to Board
efer to page 94 and page notwe 4 -catical approvals and parformed a look back test to assess
accounting judgements and key sources of estimation .

; ) . accuracy of forecasting.
uncertainty —Impairment of goodwill and nate 14 -

goodwill)
We involved our PwC valuations experts to evaluate the

discount rate and terminal growth rate used to calculate the
present value of the cash flows and confirmed these were
calculated using an acceptable methodology and concluded
that the discount rate and terminal growth rate is materially
in line with what we would expect.

We reviewed management's sensitivity analysis and
performed our own sensitivity analysis considering various
reascnably possible scenarios impacting key assumptions,
including forecast cash flows, terminal growth rate and
discount rates. Based on this testing, we considered
whether the carrying value of the goodwill balances were
adequately supported by the value-in-use impairment
model prepared by management, and found there o be
sufficient headroom.

Recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assets
(Group)

Following the introduction of legislation in previous years | We obtained management's detailed workings which set
which restricts interest deductions, the Group recognised | out the various elements of the deferred tax asset, including
a significant deferred tax asset at that time. At year end, support for judgements taken on recognition. The

a deferred tax asset of £233.8m is capitalised on the appropriateness of this assessment was in conjunction with
balance sheet with a further £478.4m of potential our taxation specialists.

deferred tax assets not recognised on the basis that they

are not considered to be recoverable. We challenged management's assumptions in relation to

tax losses and the evidence available to supponrt the
recognition of losses arising in varicus entities, including
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There is judgement involved in the determination of the
elements of the deferred tax asset to recognise and the
value of that recognition, including the extent to which
there are foreseeable taxable profits to support its
recoverability.

Refer to page 94 and page 114 (note 4 - critical
accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty — deferred tax and note 19 —deferred tax)

consideration of whether specific steps are required in
order to enable the value of the losses to be realised and
the stage of Argiva’s steps towards recovery.

We obtained management's forecast of taxable profits and
agreed those to the approved long term plan, and also
agreed the consistency of these forecasts with those
utilised in management's goodwill impairment assessment.
The calculations of the forecast taxable profits were
reviewed, and an analysis of the sensitivity of the utilisation
horizon to variations in EBITDA was considered.

We further assessed the potential deferred tax assets not
recognised and concluded that only assets that are
expected to be available to the Group have been
recognised and judgement relating to these unrecognised
assets will remain under review and reassessed as the
Group's circumstances and relevant tax legislation evolves.
We have reviewed the disclosure over the significant
judgement in the financial statements and we concur with
the disclosures made.

As a result of our work performed no material errors were
noted in respect of the amount of deferred tax asset
recognised in the financial statements at 30 June 2022.

Veluation of defined benefit pension scheme obligation
(Group)

The Group operates one defined benefit plan which has a
surplus at the year end of £61.0m (2021: £47.1m}. The
valuation of the defined benefit plan obligation (£184.6m,
2021: £248.8m) includes a high level of estimation
uncertainty, comprising several different key
assumptions. There is a risk that an error within one or a
combination of those assumptions could lead to a
material misstatement in the financial statements.

Refer to page 95 and 129 (note 4 - critical accounting
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty -
Actuarial assumpticns used to determine the carrying
amount of the Group’s defined benefit plan liabilities and
note 29 - retirement benefits)

With the support of our PwC actuarial specialists we
assessed the appropriateness of key assumptions used to
derive the pension benefit obligation, including refativity to
our acceptable ranges based on market data, and
concluded that all of the key assumptions are appropriate.

We also tested the key inputs used by management's
expert to supporting evidence with no exceptions noted. We
reviewed the actuarial report and enquired of
management's actuarial expert. We understood how
management addresses the risk of the actuary's modelling
accuracy and the cantrols in place for the modelling, and
performed our own data validation checks. We also
performed risk assessment analytical procedures on both
the financial and demographic assumptions.

As a result of our work performed no material errors were
noted in respect of the pension benefit obligation
recognised in the financial statements at 30 June 2022

Recoverability of intercompany receivable batances
(Parent)

The Company has balances receivable from a Group
company amounting to £4.4m (2021: £4.0m) as at 30
June 2022. This is considered a key audit matter as there
is consideration in the assessment of the recoverability of
receivables.

Refer to page 144 (note 4 - Other receivables)

We evaluated management's assessment of the
recoverability of intercompany receivables, including
compliance with the requirements of IFRS 9 and expected
credit loss methodology, and reviewed and independently
tested an assessment of the ability of other Group
companies to repay by comparing the receivable to net
assets of the counterparties.

As the net asset values did not support the recoverability of
the intercompany receivables, we considered the assets
held and confirmed that by taking inte account the liquidity
of assets held that the intercompany receivables are
considered to be recoverable.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which they operate.
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We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which they operate. Argiva Group Limited's business is carried out through a single principal
trading subsidiary, aligned into two customer-facing business units; Media Distribution and Smart Utilities Networks,
supported by the Group's Operations, Technology and Transformation and Corporate functions. In addition, there are a
number of entities which provide financing to the operations.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain gquantitative thresholds for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures cn the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect
of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Financial statements - Group Financial statements - Company
Cvarall £11,800.000. £200,000.
materiality
How we Based on approximately 3.5% of Adjusted Based on approximately 2% of Net Assets
determined i EBITDA
Rationale for Based on our professional judgement, Based on our professional judgement, net assets is an
benchmark adjusted EBITDA is an appropriate appropriate measure to assess the performance of the
applied adjusted measure to assess the Company and is a generally accepted auditing
performance of the Group, which focuses benchmark. A rule of thumb of approximately 2% is
on the underlying trading results. appropriate given that the entity itself is not a PIE.

For each compenent in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a rateriality that is less than our overall Group
materiality. The range of materiality allocated across companents was between £0.09m and £11.2m. Certain components
were audited to a local statutory audit materiality that was also less than our overali Group materiality.

We use perfermance matenality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the
scope of aur audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures,
for example in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% of overall materiality, amounting to
£8,900,000 for the Group financial statements and £150,000 for the Company financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk
assessment and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of cantrols - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our
normai range was appropriate.

We agreed with those charged with governance that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above £590,000 (Group audit) and £10,000 (Company audit) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our
view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company’s ability ta continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the Group's
and the Company's ability to continue as a goinhg concern.

Our respensibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report,

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the informatian in the Annuai Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report therean. The Directars are responsible far the ather information. Qur opinian an the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financia! statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
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in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we ate requied to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing te report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 20068 requires us also to report certain
opiniong and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requireinents.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framewark and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concem basis
of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with iSAs (UK} will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procadures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to the Communications Act 2003 and UK Tax faw, and we considered the extent to which non-
compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that
have a directimpact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management's incentives
and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and
determnined that the principal risks were related to management's manipulation of key performance measures such as
adjusted EBITDA (consisting of continuing profit before tax, finance income, finance costs, other gains and losses and
exceptional income and expenses). We have determined adjusted EBITDA is the key metric for stakeholders, such as the
Group’s ultimate shareholders and lenders. It is considered that the most likely risk of management manipulation of this
metric is through the posting of manual journals and management bias in significant accounting judgements and estimates.
Audit procedures performed by the engagement team inciuded:

+ Discussions with management and Directors, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations and fraud;

+ Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management and considering risk of management bias in their
significant accounting judgements and estimates as disclosed in Note 4 of the financial statements;

« |dentifying and testing unexpected journal entries, including any journal entries posted with unusual account
combinations or journals posted by unexpected users;

+ Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;
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« Reviewing financial statement disclosures made by management in their significant accounting estimates and
judgements as disclosed in Note 4 of the financial statements; and
« Asrequired by 1ISA 240, incorporating an element of unpredictability into our audit testing.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances
of nen-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting fram error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,
or through coliusion.

Our audit testing might inciude testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data
auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing
complete popuiations. We will often seek 1o target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In
other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the papulation from which the sample is
selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report. In our engagement letter, we
also agreed to describe our audit approach, including communicating key audit matters.

Use of this report

This report, inciuding the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our priar cansent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report {o you if, in our opinion:

+ we have not obtained all the infoarmation and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» cerfain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ the Campany financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

1) Conllo

Nige! Comello (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

26 September 2022
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Consolidated income statement
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended Year anded
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Consolidated statement of financial position
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Consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
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Consolidated cash flow statement
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Notes to the Group financial statements

1 General information, authorisation of tinancial statements and Statement of
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3 Significant accounting policies
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o

Intangible assets

zraortised but

impainment &

SNpa

Siehy

Asset Description

Estimated Useful Life

Ligencey

Uevelpmmoent conls

Length of the licence period (a¢
10 ye
Length o

>

Y10y

peutred from ine da

& whern

neets the

e of cond

supnty or

SITOO LG
UTROILE,

il
ragdgur.

italiced within

re
e

rapie

Depreciatic

rtof
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Asset Description

Estimated Useful Life

Freehold huildings
teasehold buildings
flant zrd eguipme
- Communications infrast
- Netwaork cornp
- Moﬂtor vehicle

uter eguipm

Tire estimated useful §
values and dep

ves, resi d

reciation m 0”»0 aF:
rtﬁzvie\,vmj at the end of each

reporting p(*r iod, with the etfect of

for an g rosped ive Dasis

-y

sehald land s not depreciat

Assels h
depred

fease term and Lheir expected useful

ald under feazes are
ted over the shorter of their

lives

carme basts as owned

a&ssete}.

Anitem of property, plant and
rt s derecognised upon

equipm

disposal or when no future economic

benefits are: (EYDE‘C?G’G to arise froms

dispcssal of

gain or fof,s arising on tE e d

ned as the

v the sales

cary ”r‘g’ amount of
ced i ihe

an assal s detes

cifference betw
nroceeds and th
; and is

income statement

te gsoet FeCORn

fmpairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting period date, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangibie and
to determing whether t
indication that thooe ass
suffered an impalrment loss. if
such indication exists, the

any

recoverable amount of the ascet is
cetimated Lo determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if 2ny). Where
the seset does

ot generate cash
dependent from
Cthe Group estin
rable armount of th
unit to which the ansct
When = reasanahy ]

BENErs

belongs.

consistent hasis of ailocat’on can
idenufied, corporate i

network

20 - 80vyears

80 years
20 yoars
-5 ye

ed to individual cash-

ciféﬂp units, or octi:erwse they
set graeps af

e allocated 1o the s
#1ing undts for wiich a

crabte and consistent allocation
s cont be identfled

o fém;:a:rf;-u.

e arnount is the higher of
aasi, and vaiue

ERSSATE

Tuse, the

it the

(or ca

overabis amoun
enerating Lm«f) is @5t
to e less than is carrying armount,
the c;«:rwimp armount of the asset {or
rating unit} is reduced to
--'abie' amount. An

L

on

Where an impairment 10ss

subseguently reverses, the ca

asset {or cash-

3Ty ing
amaovnt of the
generating umit) is increased to the
i i : of its recoversble
the increased
5 not exceed the
2L owoutd hiave

amaunt, but so that
carrying amoust doe

et ’0
it} in prior yeais.,
ampairment kg is

(a:}-\.élpr,(:ra‘,ing
Avreversal af an
eohiately in profit or

1 of tesse Hyoically betwoen 21

3-80 years)

arg

goodwﬂg in wh!(’h Case it Canngt e

sreed

e

Financial instruments
E nancial assets and fin

abilities are reco

nt ol {'VH\HIL.J!

f,r'(mp 5 $TAIEME
position when the Groun !
party to the conlracta

the inetrureent

al prov

-

abilitie

v=\u-

action co
ributahie
aoguisition or issue

and finandal i

o ihe

of fma'\:i)i ansets

appropriate, o
Transaction cost
stirthbutable
{inancial assets
at fair vat

recegnised muvnedis e:‘iy pm‘?Et or

ethrough protit orloss are

s, presented as
loes’

Al finan s }
o dereo
wlhicre the o

financial asset s under a contraQt
WHOSE TerTis require
firrancia
estnblished by the mart et
concernead,

fje%mc\ry of the

The Group's fmanrf'al ossets sie

sitied “""0 the fol

cla

categories
vatlue thrr
UFVTELS, S
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STIGHTD

substan

overdral
at fair va

shle payments that are not
tive marke!, They 2o oue cotts Financs charges,
i £ premiums ;ayzbie on

ubOuQ-d}H

y recognised at fair velue s
ity corried at amorti
interest

amortising profile, \h( fm e
the alem mt!ra then
principsi
noaths |

the eflectiv
»(ad T e*,f are included in current
rreatug

pEsit Of paigio
A «;::c:erw tra

wed i

inctruments are

&

contract

zived atf
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ceroc, 57
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o fevel 2inputs are i
than gquoted orices =r|ch ded
ithin me 1, that are

h;i by, @it
‘rljuﬁ(_“f, ana
s Level 30 tsoare unohservabie

s for the asset or Hab;.:‘.;v.

Disposal group held for sale,
discontinued operations and gain on
disposal of discontinued gperations
Disposal groups are dassified as held
for sale if their carrying amount wll
e recovered principatiy through
nsaction rather than through
e s

sale tra
continuing use ond 4 <a
considerad highly prohable
the next 12 manths. They are

measured at the lower of thelr
carrying amournt and fair va
costs to sell, except for assets such as

g

within

celerred tax ascets

from emplovee berefits anﬁ financi
aesels :hai are carned at fair va!ua.

‘pmrmer‘? fons iy red

of the dispo-al grc)up 1o fair vatue
less costs o sell opnised
for any subseguent inc es i fair
valu ts 1o sedl of an asset {or
dispesal group), bat not in excess of
e impsinment oss

in orloss

Againisre

S5 005

Sy Curmiiat

o
&

previoutly recopnised. A gz
act grevicusly recognised by the
date of the sale of the disposal group
srecophised at the date of
dersrogrition.

Mon-current sssers that ave part of a
disposat group are not depreciated
or amortisea while they are classitied
as held tor szle interest and other
etothe

= d:\po Thcldelsle

eld for cale continus to

b )
‘V'L‘u abhl

he recopm=e~d
The assets of a disposal group
cizssified as he'd for rale zre

rted separstely from the orber
L The

s of & dispasal group

sthe batance sk

y fr(,m OH\{.V
nee sheet.

A disconbmusd operation s a
component of the entity

heen disposed of oris
held for sale and that represents a

S5 00

closafied a2

separate major line of busin
geographical area of operations, is
part of asingle co-ordirated p
se of such a hine (;f BLsirs

dispo

area of ope
acc d exclusive
tesale. The resuits of discontinued

wWith a view 1o

tions pie prosented separatcly
1

Opet:

.!ae Incun Stale

Again or loss on disposal of
discontinued Ope«wwors i

stetement repres
consideration received legs
transaction costs arud the carrying
value of the disposal group held for
sale, and deferred income generated
to future services,

inorelation

Prowsnons

are fecopnised when the
a present obfigation (legal
or z:()ngtrucf'ive:} as a resuil of a past

event, it is probable that the Group
wiil be required 1o sertie that
ohligation and a reliable estimate can
g of the amount of the
abligation.

he mad

The amount recognised as 3
provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to selile the

Lbhg ion at the balan

ate, teking irte account the
irrounding

snd uncertainties su

the ohligation. Whe
measured using
ectimated to settie the prese
oblipation, its carrying amount is
present shifiows
{wher the effect of the time value of
money is material)

the
value of rhose cas

When scme or all of the economic
s reguired
arovision arg expected to be
recovered from a third
receivable s recogrised 83 an asset f

to sethie a

party, a

i i virtually certain that
reimbursement will be

the amount of receivable

¢ received and
can be

recogrised within prrw?

fiabilities and charges 2
within property, piant a‘zr:d
eqguipment, where the cog

s of
nantling ascets are considered

material. The mmounts recognised

within properhy, glant and

pregiated over Jm
fife of the asset.

eounled 1o revf!@_ct{

ney where

arovisions

the

Groun

Wh nothe probabinty that the

be reauired to cettle

Tion or 2 relial sLthimate

ot be made of the smount of

discinses o

the obhgstion the Group
contingent liability 10 the notes to

ciai mformation.

the finan

Taxation
T ;
of the tax currently payable and
deferred

Curreid tux

The tax currently payahle s has
taxabie profit for
profir ddfers Drom

reported in the income staternernt
Decause ¥ excivdes tems of income

ar expense that are taxahle or

deductibien other years and st

further excludes ems that are never

taxable o deductible. The Groug's
Bility for current tax is 03 ich.. el

Oeferred mx
Detferred tax

is the tax expected to
he payoebie or recoverabie on
ditferences hetween the car

amgdnts of assets and hal
the finzncial i fOVi’Iw‘.'(" ard r'"»

‘ sponding tex used in the
cormputsiion of mxab:e profit and is
accounted for us the balance
ishility method. Deferred Lsx
crally recognised for

GrE ger

nporary differences and
Casnets are recognised 1o
hat itis probable

stits widd

bhe avaii
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rency and

penses
dated

ol the velue oft

Ste and s
e and

cted a1 discourited

At e

 LONGOITATE

it ey
andi

can rolonger witharaw the

Retirement henefits

; 1 of il
Firged contribal ar

ination hen

when the enzity recogni

teases
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the consohedated sta
financial position and v
profit orfoss on a syster
&l basis over the vscfu

related assets

rahGn

Operating profit and exceptional
items

ting nrofit is stated afer
exceptional items,
restructuring costs,
2fter the share of res

U;‘Jer

pc i

assoclates but before !
and finance cocts,

Exeeptiont
conside

o o Ge m.e——ofi e

Directors belleve require
ceparate disclosure 1o avoid t
cistortion of underlying
performance, for example one-off

ents, recundancy

smpainm

programmes, restructuring 2nd Cost

ated 1o sigmbics

s T LOYROVATE

finance activities, The Directors
helieve the resuiling EBITDA
represents underlying perfor
ng significant one-off and
£ oevents, that

RS,

ex bug
O
fairly represerts the on go
serformiance of the business

srefore nres

TGS

-I"F tr ,jcmf
L These

1
ithe face of the in

RN AN C‘ifiﬁ‘?’?}tlﬁ?’ joly
before depreciation, amaortisation,
nrofits/{lnocses) on disoosal of fixed
: of ascots, other
EAY
Operating
is ,r.»rowded i

265 Tipairm

income, and eycep
recans

Tigral e

ot hetween
EBITLIA

L4

e

Fareign currencies
: *s.actéor';s i fareign currencies ore

e raEte

e exch

.‘mandng transactions wher G‘ edgirg
arrangements are in place and

actions zre recorded at f

iran

contracted rate.
Mor Pmry :sr*rt and Habilitie

are
translated at !lm excharge ole
ruling at the balznce sheet date or
the contracted rate i
e*xchanga oferences arising are

en ot

applicable, Any

SN sty E’e’-‘merst.

i the ineara

CVErseas operations are

wwackions
end of

SO E
Ercp b

EXCHANEEe Fate,

ation

Excharnge differences ontrar
of overseas ¢ rgs are
recognisedth r!_m"h the <tatement of
Conminrat

Group’s irs

Jhasida

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

I the spplication of the Group’s
accounting pelicies, whickh are
described innote 3, the Directors are
required ro make judgemerits,

ind assumptions abour
amounts of assets and
tare not readily
apparent frotn other sources

estimats

rite, estimmates and

utrptions are bated ¢
-rience and othe

factors that are considercd to ?{’
relevant, A
From these ludpernents,
and atsumptic

dts may differ
extimates

tual ress

underlying :sa;;np*if;ﬂi are reviewed
on an on-going basis, Revisions are
recognised in the period i which the

estimate is revised.

Critical judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty in
applying the Group’s accaunting
policies

The tahowing are the coiticel

judgements and those involving
estimations that the Ui

iasdie i the process of ¢

Groug's zccounting policies and that
have the most sigrificant effect on
th

AMOUrts recopmised in f
Eits I coudd reasorably be
by nthe

Liate:

expected (o chan
next 12 months,

Deferred tax

Critical sccounting judgsiments:

As disclosed 11 note 19, 1

N

FE?‘:‘T,TEC*'O“‘\ of relevant tax legislati
and exnec
within pa

s of future
lar group e

Ordy assets that

are expected to e
gvaitable to the Group have been
nised but the judgement

o the MEECOENSEd

BESETS

review and
dasthe Group's

circinistanees and relevant tax
legisiation evoives.

Provisions and contingent liabiities
Critical accounting judgements:

As discl nnote 26, the Group’™s

provisions principally relate to

cblipations arie
chligations, restructuring
property remedistion pi
decomimissioning ebligations,

ation af suet
deziiy opEralions

g Ly bt

The identil y oligations
i the context of
which require provis

requires juug&memt.

pived o

Judgement is afso regy
tween provisions and
See note 28 for

.
distinguish be

contingent liahilities.

e
cdetall,

tmpairment of goodwill
Key estimotes:

of the Group's
Iat each

:al position da

The carrying amount
poodwill is reviewes

statement of finar
to detenmning whethel thereis any
impairiment, oy compliarce with the
Groip's cies. Sesnote
14 for det

ACLOUNTING PO

it.
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wadee cewarkirn fo

BCCOUPTINE
1 BCCOUNTING

Actuanial assumptions used to
determine the carrying amourt of
the Group's defined benefit plan
ghligation

rivical areounting judgements:

up's &
s eet Useful Bves for property, plant and

s to market yieids ot the equigment and intangibles

wericd on high

BTt Goeouting

jaluaely

=

i Curve

of the period over which 1he Groupn e IRl RAIA T Iut]

witl derive b b Ese avget

g Torwards

W

HWES O

EQUIpIMEnt were

o

W DOTE

senaitvity of u

wrantialy

rate 29

tmportant accounting judgements
and estimates
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5 Revenue and functional information

its rewenue fram the rendoring of services,

the gccounting policies sdopted.

egate revenue lrom confracts with customers by our m

T projects, and the

Media Smart Utilities fotal continuing Total discontinged
Distribation Ketwarks oparations cperations! Total
Year ended 30 June 2022 £m Im £ it £
IR R N P13 NN - BN
3 T g StoETs R H Ko
Suin G pongs AR 545
Revenue 4663 157.8 6241
Tutal tontinuing
RMedia Smart Utifities ) Total discontinued
aperalions
Distriiution Netwaorks oparations? Total
Year ended 30 jure 2021 {Re- £m
presented)? £m Em £im Ert
R IR EE17 44 LR
110 112 a7

4.9

edinfL : e
ty complete) as 5 £3,387.2m (Restated 207
d areview of the ¢ pected revenues betwe
s been restated to remove £04hn of contract RPI
fe anticipated thning of recognition of this re foilews,
<} year 1.2 years Z-5years 510 years > 14 years Total
Year ended 30 June 2027 £m £m £m £m £ £m
458 6 ARG BANEA

B

SOV S

Revenue

g tRe voat
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Year ended 30 Jure 2023 < 1year 1-Z years 7 - S years 5.0 yesrs > 1 years Totat
{Restated) .
£ £iri £m (3] fm £m

> 10 years

<1 yasr 1-2years 2 -3years 5-10 years Total
Year ended 30 hune 20210 b
[AS:] £ £m £m £y

{Reported)

Hsyg e

30 June 2022 36 fure 2021

£ [

Contract assets

Reporting by markets

M. 5 e
ey

PR VRO Gy
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Year ended 30 lune 2022 Cammercial Othe
Mendla Srmart Piilities Qrerations  Technology and Curporals isto wed Compegpbidated
Sietvibutjon Networks Transfarmation Operations
£m L m im £ Era L
(L BITDAY 249 ¢ {25 3) (5.5}

EhaIRcRale BE TR ok s AL MO

LTS AP ko s 0f S s et

Conar e
Exeopforrai otne v

Frooprinmat - rvarue

tass before rex fromi connnuling
aperations

4
L

as totad operating profit belore the toms se

nout holow.

Year ended 330 bune F0213 Lommercial (ther
{Re presented)’
Medin Smart Utilities Coerstioms Techiniogy and Corporste econtmuped Lonsolicated
Distribution Werworks Transfonmanoen Onaratinns
Em £m £ im im £ra £
Revente 493.5

3347

5Tt (EBITDAY

Lacem
Cther moame

rebt fom s e poeed

Operating piofit fron continwng
ogerations

f1aanee i g

Loss before tax from continuing
nperations
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o a2zt ope

EBITDAY is o xey me

profin s or

operati

Year ended Year ended
380 tune 2022 10 june 2073
£m £m

[ATR I+ ¢ el eTg h

A

£

ral nerior
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Media Sireart Utikities Otheg* Consolidated
Distribution Metworks
£m £ £ £
Capha! expenditure:
Terthe yenre neded of 1532 N 58.7
For e yoar i L L &5.1

¢l

{

16, Therotat bslarce compri

and equiprient of
ts of F4.8m (2021 restated: £0.6:m) as i
Geographical information

The UK is the Group's country of domicile and thie Groub

custamers in the UK. The geographic analysis of revenae is on the hasis of the country of orgin

i5 irvoices.

The following reverue was generated from exter

Eia

SHAIINGS

Year ended
3¢ fune 2022

Year gnded
30 lune 2021

Tetal Total
tm i £m
i 618.5 L34 7 A%
stosf Eargnoan Econnnne fr 5.3 - 5.1 [N
Rest of Woed 2.5 1.2

Revenue

624.1

The Group holds non-current assets lexcluding finandial
foliowing grographical locations:

wruinents, deferred tax assets and perdion surplug) in ine

30 June 2022

20 June 2021

Pent o Warls

information about major customers
includfed iy the revenues arising from Re
and Smart y s Metworks rev

rribution are

S0 3 NEOr CUSLoIme s in

CULtoiner,

No other sio riess contributed 1059 or more to the Group's roven ue

the sforement

reverves of £146.3m (2021: {146 ¢
ade £33 5m (2021 €81,
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6 Operating profit

0t for the ye

Year ended Yeor prded
30 fune 2022 30 june 2021
fam £in

Group Group

Feur enged vear ended
30 hine 2022 30 Fane 2623
£t £

s 9.8

-
I
=
&
-~
&
a
Q
Q.
o
%
3
2
£
fyi3
w
o]
]
b
&
o
p
-
B
G
B
o
<
=
i
s
o
&
=
4]
=
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7 Exceptional items

- [T
[SIela b 1

The Group re(opnises excep

profit belore tax e

. o
i LDSL:}

fry virtue o

Fand ros

colosed In note 3,

reLutTng innoture or

idence for the financist stat

Year ended
30 lune 2022

Year anded
3 lune 2023

Total Total
7 £ too I £y
Revernue:
R UE BT E Ay {7.6}
(7€) {7.6} -
Gperating expenses:
TS (5.4} {21.8)
i {4.2) {3.8)
{16.0) .

posw of fixe

Other exceptional itoms:

DHne v inoore

Total exceplionat items

R - {9.5)

s and losses are

Exceptional gaing
disclosad separately within note 11,

4 2ranie

sinciude costs refating to
sebionst d

F‘u'}’ﬁ(\rg_

'i(tum‘ of the busin
Py of ve Group's
programme, This s a

delive

tran fh}rr’;‘ml’i(,}r‘.
i formaiion

sysiems and o0

etficier

Corporat
relate

Larpor

ansactinns in

rﬁfir\[ai‘;uﬂng activities,

m disposal of discontinued
o the sale of the

frastructure anag

related ossets on § July 2020 as

With

tion of the corpoate
the amaunts

nee artévitios

incieded within exceptionsl
aperating expenses above are
deductide for the purpose of

taxation, The gain on disposal of the
discontinued operation is not cubjeot

by UK Corporahon tax 4s i1
underih

3

s g
h

ubstantial Share:

>;emptaon,

cdale - Project Restore

The restorauon casts relate (0 costs
M Urred to remstale services pre
at the Bilsdale fransmutter site
following a fire which broke out on
2021 aod inc

"4 B oof
ty ruppart achm*fss

Sude £

working o

B

Engincers have bee .
recovery plan to reinstare servi

ces
present 00 the mast. The recovery
plan induded service recovery with

warks completed for the
T of TV cover
Lites,

w6 from
not-soot g Cwellas
SCHO of A temporay mast al

To date around 397

urther works to complete

exdunng soiution and re build is
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oirg with works started on the

id ot 2 new pepmat

the

fehe incident and

G 21 Seprember 20

ol TR

relag

fung

S Oime v

chved from

SIS radated 1o

in suonrnarised a5 folioy

PRI mpal Belonce shestimpact

ot Em

Year endid Year cndat
G fune 2012 30 tune 1021

Neumiber Rumbar
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Yoar gnded

Year ended

30 June 2022 30 lune 2023
{Re presentod)?

Murher Number

A 223

27 o4

neration comprised:

Yoo ended
30 June 2022

Yoar ended
30 lune 2021

£m £
RE 2005
37 R

74.4

9 Finance income

Year ended
3G june 2022

Year ended
30 june 2021

Total Totat

fm fm
Bank dopoats o3
e 31

39 z7

Total finance incorme

s £1.0m (2021 £0 3m) b

sl

[} income nciy

scherme

Al finance income the year ended 30 June 2022 and 30 June |

[N ' - I . g, ten S N deroal
e tepen e fnogteons Sednete S ron Lot dead
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10 Finance costs

Yegr oriced
30 bune 2022 300

Year emied
20 June 2023

Tota! Total

Er il e i £ £
Sl 21.6 0.6
72.6 756

96.2

Tetal intersst payahle

T g

Totsl fuance costs

11 Other gains and losses

Note Yegr ended Year ended
30 June 2023 30 iune 2021
£m £m

ok,

Tyl

Excentinnal sther losses

Total gther gas and losses
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12 Tax

Year ended Yoor ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021

{Restated)

£m fm

FLECTITGIP: Mal B

wend rever

ek es el

of previ

Trtzl deferod tay

Total tax creditfor the yeor i27.4} {37.5)

Income tax expense is atiributable 1o:

ihie

UK corpo profit for th

urisdictions i

<dictions.,

i
o
oW

|
J

it/ {toss) before tax in the income statement as foflows:

o
—
&
kel
o

fed

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 33 Sone 2021

{Restated]

£m £m

Pratie f {Inse] be oo e 4475
¢ rals ol 190 4.2
sre ot deuc it ) 457 3.3

2o inenoar ret laxable o)

gFarLrectopmssd aaferred taxn seneie [y A4 BHR
Foragation of provieady cirecapraead deferoet Loy ] {40 0
AUt o0 cued pnon yeare [e) 443 L2

epart of charpe ntar mute

Totakax (credit) / charpe {or the year {27.4) {37.56}

During completion of the tex ccted 11 the prior year
atutory accounts Thiv atose due to
et

b the trestment within this legisiation

tax

comphance orocess for the year 'z
cgnlted.

cihded 30 June 2021, it was idert
diiowed finance cxpenses of the exceptional gain on the

under the Corporation Intercst dieposet of discontinued operations.

lation were muaterially
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e i th
Ltilise this a

Sen

e o t

&l
-

iy
=
=
@

reprosents |

] secogaition of deferred tax
g theincome

groun

he year ended 40

The man rate of UK corpors

FELT SARRNSE from

e tax fompl

Tax in Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

pect of the

ent of 86 7 {202}

At

7. This wa

13 Dividends

Yepy ended Year ended
30 lune 2022 30 fure 2023
£ per share £ns £ por share Em
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14 Goodwill

£m

Cost:

SR aerl 50 e

AT Ry
Ar 30 e 2022

Accumulated impairment losses:

RERRE-T

AT by

Ar 30 fune 2022

Carrying armount:

At 30 lune 2072

Al st

Goodwil scquired in a business

These are the sinailest identifiable
combs 'r‘.allu. is aliocated, 5t

growps of assets that generate o
nflows that are lerge

ly independ
of the cach intlows from other groups

of szsets, sod 1o which goodwallis

aliocated.
sdwill are Media

Distribution and Smart Utilities

Networks,

1.457.8

_‘
o
Ia
ieH
=
-
v]
=
L
o
I
=N
Ry
o
2
jab)

& sheet "G'P Ly ﬂ.f
GUs s shown as tollows:

30 June 2021
£m

3G fune 2022
£

NMadhs

Creoart Netwi ks

Utiblies

Total

1,457.4

The Group risks

ITIpAET

time vaive of maoney and the
fic to the CGUs GQrowth rates are
internal and external

tects goodwill anm
wgre fr vquarwﬂ“ i

there are indications tha gfooc wii

t,ors

ve et lows are |

T

dations (VIL

expectation
Mmarket,

key assur
caltutations aqe vhose regardir

YHTES,

miptions for the ViU

Projected cash flows and the
recoveratile amaount’

The value in use of each CGU &
deternined from the cash flow
forecasts derived fram the most

discournt

expected ¢t

recent financiai for
the Board for the next
reflect managenent’s
revernde, FRITDA growth, o5

They
= of

ates disg
rates i

five YEsrL.
expectation

expendiure and working capital
based on s
expectatio
Discount rute
tax discount rate applied to
I flow forecssts are
SELINININg
reodel for comparable busingeses,

t experience and future

ns rJf performance.

githe cap:

ions userd

are

The assumpt
chmarked to ex

! 171 5-2 L“\.}
ount rate does not represent
e cost of capitat
Tor Arc*tva, but instead is an

the w
BWACCY

industry and comparative Compai

Argiva Group Limited (company reg 05254001)

108



Asnnual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2022

st oextrr

i rate doey not

g growth rate T el Zrowth

15 Other intangible assets

vcences  Developrment Atrass ights Software Assets undor Total
costs the course of
constructnn
taUC]

Lir tim £mi £m £ fmi

Ly 30 bung 2022 5.2 iG.7 i%d4 25,2 - B0.5

Cartying sinount

A 30 june 2022
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold tand teasehold Plant and Assets under the Total
and buildings butidings eguipment  cowrse of construction
{ALCY
£m £ £m £m fin
3320 1,786.6 3.1 2357 5
{24} 6.2
268.6 1,812.8
117 e
45 (1 47 2
2731 1,848
4R 72
] 34 Lin (548
(4 4y tA.4)
2.3} g (2007 ER
i 10,53
A1 30 lune 2022 2716 163.0 1,%26.5 109.0

Accumutated depreciation

- 4821

AL

1.6 (1% &)

54.6 1,034.8

73 11.1 133 4 1584

: {7.5) 7.1 i85 (1% 1)

At 30 June 2032 0.9 S 28.6 1,075.6 o 1,175.1

Carrying ameount

At 30 June 2022 7 851.0 - 109.0 1,301.1

A0 Jane 2021 A fé 2 e 360 ¢
Tie Group's current and non-cunent AL 30 B (022, the Group had ertered

assels have been pledged as secu ity into contractusl commitments for the

roperty, plant and

under the terins of the Group’s external acquisition of §

debt facilittes {see note 23) In additio aquipment a

tati e been recoghised  the Group's leace obligations |
betwesn calegories to adjust opening 24} are secured by the lescors’ tithe of

reassessnant of the leased assets, which have a carrying
s amiount of £4.6m {2021 £5.1m)

inchded within leasehold buiidings,

balances
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17 Interest in associates and joint ventures

tdinon to the suhaidi

owing inter

. Parientage
Country of ey - Yaar .
Company X ’ frincipal aciivities Registered oifice of ardinary
ineoi poration end shares hold
- 2% Feei

[PEICI

L

1

hare of r There are 1o ot

ShaEnn

-

shoidd ingic
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18 Trade and other receivables

30 tune 2622 30 iune 2423

£m £t

Trade and other recelvibles

Contract assets 41.59 61.2

s business, topether with

&

The decrease in contract assets in the yes 1 delven grindipa

indication of non-recov

ing of the Graup’s net
videntified is ay folows:

30 lune 2022 30 fupe 3021

£ fm

3z
Uiyt G0 K
Peiwean 91 aad 1270 Cays ovordae . T4

Miare tharc 150 dayn cverdue

Trade receivabler and contracy assets are stated after deducting aillowances for expected credit lossos, a5 follows:
Tear ended Vear ended

30 fune 2032 20 June 2021

£m £
Afowance al 1luly 45 [T
Aorourts bz ed {21

Frowvided doering th

The Groun aoplies the IFRS 9 prior to the pericd and The historicad

loss rates are then conzidered for
o

{

expected crediv losses using a heline current and forwarg-looking
expected credit loss provision for

rade receivables and contract assete.

information on macroeconomic

factors affecting the Group's
custorrers. No adjuston

oz are based on srde to the exp
roup’s ristorical credit fesses applied for the current year,
ind

s were
beg ings rates

ted loss 1

To measure expected credit lostes on ;
aopilective Dasly, trade receivabies the

o
ki

ard contract as e five year g
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The Group’s

50 june 2022 Currait Upto 30 Upto 90 Betweesn $1 Mgre than Total
days days ana 150 150 days
cverdue ove rdue days ayerdue
averdue
im £ im fm £in £y

20 hune 2021 Current Up o 30 Up oS0 Between 81 iore than Total
days days ami 158 150 days
gueridue avErdue davs owprdis
averdus
i L1 SO L b

trade re

wah il
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19 Deferred tax

The balsoce of def
ceferred income tax

{restatedi’)

The movement in

Letiing

the off y ] bal:

within the same tax juri
Tax lnsses Fixed asset Derivative Other Tatal
Deterred tax assefs temporary financiat temporary
differences instruments differences
£m £m fm £m £m
AT duly 2000 1R ALk 103 4 w2 T
8 {Ze )

Credied firbargei Ly the

AAD fone 200

2.1
8277 41.8 6%.1 c0. 2490
Beferred tax liabilities Retlreme_m Totzl
lie: nefits
im £
AL E ] 2
Chgrged W, The irorp o st 33 1

Charged o st

Charged to tha

Charge W slatemznt 0f rorps el

At 30 fune 2022

R el

m m 1 Apr il ZO?J, the deferred tax
asset is znticipated to reverse both in
the periods prior to and after 1 April
ore the deferred tax
sef has besn rego

20235 and th

e at the

a

aher 2023,
he corporation tax

5% with

it WES

On

23 Seplembe
anngoulied that

rate change from 199 (o 25
effect fiom 1 Aprii 023 was o be
cancelfed. This was not substantively
enacted st the balarce sheet date
;md Hl(z'!’@‘fﬂ!’i’ the in :t‘t o‘s' 3
nange |
TIEESUTE
ater r\t;c }Ic.g 51
sznacte:d priorto 30§
mpact would hsve been to reduce

detfe

-
o
“
-
3

the ¢

crred fax asoet by

with a cor g charge 1o the

ncome state

goend

merit,

Gther rtemporary differences are
comprised primarily of timing
differences relating to deferrsd

I provicions thst sre tax

o
deductible as utiized. Temporary
N connection with

ditferences arn
remirted earnings of over
suhsichiar

GESOCIATE

s and hrterests in

fordetz

cognised '!f—;
FATE Ars (20210 8
T‘" isisinrespect of't

T (2021 £.40.7m)
Aerred interest expenses £437
(20271 £479.7(Restated)).
may be carried
_i,/ Th{ s€ aswtf

Hn \?mm)}

gm

These

ot prohahbie
abie to he ut dﬂ;—}érz:* future

e Group.

¢ GLoup CONTINLES L recognise its
deferred tax ssseis o supported hy
the same iong term group profit
forecasts that are used for goodwiil
g fsee note 14). Mo
g uime expiry and
Row the deferred
MR G a et iiability
Due to the

irpairmient

attributes by
these forccasts s
tax sssets reve
noby 30 fun
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wdto b racng

ontracty, the recogiised o bassd 00

20 Cash and cash equivalents

3 June J02F 30 lune 2021
£m £

voin e dispesal of the

Piser a0 i o7 su

o the Substantal Sharehuiding

20 june 2021

fm
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Result of discontinued operations
The resuits of the discontinued operativns o e disciored in the Icome Statemeant.

Statement of cash flows
The staterment of cash tlows includes the following smounts relating 1o discontinued operabions:

30 tune 2021

£

22 Trade and other payables

30 fune 2022 30 fune 2021
{Restated)!
Em £
Current
Trade and other payables
yabues x5z 445
il cauniy 4e 165
44 N
fgrigls GO R 54
120.4
Corporstion tax 2.4 2.4
Contract lsbilities 106.2 99.5
Nen-current
Contract lizbitizies 3734 355.5

o5 oreea fgotestave oo
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23 Borrowings

Genominsied corrency 30 June 2022 30 fune 2021

£m £m

Within cusrent Hababities.

Borrowings duc within one yedr

Within non-current abitiries:

due after more than one year

30 june 2022 30 tune 2023

£m 1333}

Lorrowings fating due withing

Bank loans form p f

senior debt. Other loans corpn
the Group's senter bonds and notes given below
= 4 junior bonds
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Barrowings: Reference At 1 guly 2021 Lease Amounts Armwunts Ab 30 bune
mavemernts drawn repaid 2023
£ fm fin £ £
‘J
) I {4.1} EACRE
i a4 RERE
s, notes ard U5 preate e} AT (56 7} T
s hends &4
Tatal bavk loans and private £77.2 340 {59.8} 1,65%1.4
placements
LCale habifimes (g
thareboider loan nates ]
Total burrowings excluding accrued {21.7} 340 {59.8}

interest

The Group's borrowings cutlined
the table above incorporste:
{a) an institutional term loz
£90.0m o
with an expected matur
December 2023,

PR
oulstanaing,

Cpearn

{h}aloan from the Fu
investiment Banl (2022t £172 f)'“.n
outstanding; 2021 £172 O} with an

sxpected maturity date of June 2(}' 4.

e} financirg faciities in Arg

Financing Limited (a Group company)
f

established in Dec
support the Group’s
metering contracis by
nicstion b

Jups

smart energ
financing the

nurchase of commu
T?‘ws £30m facilivy matures |
2028 and @ netof £23. Orh was drawrl
at the end of June Z027 {lune 2021
£26. 1) The remaining f. A
commitrient was cancelled on 27t
Noveirber 2020, This loar is
amortising over Hme with the tina)
maturity inJune 2028,

These lpans have floating =

mnterest with mavging
SONIA + 1.30% 1o 2.50%

{d) Working capital faciiity (2022
£34 Ora ourstonding; 2021 Erl},
wiiich an expected v
of July 2024 This faciiity is

rate in nature w]rh HATATRHY OVET
SONIA of 130 bpe. Argiva Frinanoing
,,ﬁ { AF1'Yis the orrower

Se arrAngeimenis.

Group's uquic;ty
mert, see note 25,

Aotes
Asat 30 Jur
faa4 0mi2021

de

;“(/I".!I‘Tc'ﬂ( d L}f““(' Ouls

=S PATE

> 1:1,88% arec _;,34% (021

1 5.34%). Th
le ween Decemiber 2022

mmber 2032 and are listed on
n St Argiva

fse bonds are

the Lo- d ack Exchange.
4

ng Pleis the issuer of

Il the

Financt

H

Groun's s fisted bonds.

The remaining senior notes relate 1o
scement
5

i has

ser of US private !

W\ ki fn)c
The Grou
I1.£293.4amjofs
nirate \i floating rate US nrivate
olaceimenis :

TS T Q‘E‘i’z‘f’u y
Irerest rale',

tering

rature witl

hetween December 2022 and
Gecember 2029 These ingin
have & margin over SONIA of
Detween 210 and 220 bps.

based up(m chsarvabie market
‘:fdl

archy level 1)
£563 7m) whiiet

prices
wis £474 Brn (2021:
their carrying vatue was £444.0m
(2021: £470.7m}.

The remainmg £263.4m {20
£293 4rad of senior debt
rquoted borrowings.

-

other

The direciors consider the
of all other un-guoted Lorrowings 1o
be s close s
rying amount,

oproximatie Lot

{f) lurnor bonds of £625 Om

represent amaount fdis 2¢f from the
issuance of notes by Argiva
Broadcadt Financ These rotasy
nave a fixed inter rate of 6,75

and are repayable in S(p.(mbf-'
2023 These notes are listed on the
Luzembourg Market.

As discuined innote 31, on the 19
f'«ugu.«,l 22 the Group ¢
ntfora £4

S50mterm

COM
facii?f\/ g a £50m Working Capital

Faciity both with on expected
maturity dat

& ot 2028 These
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P

Lorrower of

and Seple

iearty, T

lean notes carry & f

The fair value of the guot
bords
nrices {far vals
(20210 1543, . shnrehotter loan noles 3t 30 b
ying velue was £62 2072 wes £2,846 9w (7021

SFER £2,244. 7501,

ad Lpon chservabie market

the current or previous year,
e of the

chy levet 1)

The vai arest aeterred on

-
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24 lLeases

Leases as lessee {IFRS 16

The Group holds lease ar-engenents prk

b relating to lard and build intracts and ve

{1t

Right-of-use assets

o leased properties ang |

fthre, cihier fived

Corn

At Blant aod

(rinrnent

-

Leasehold buildngs Plant and
£ equipment
im

Tatal

£m

“a
. \}_ 'f; t
35.3
(33 13 7
.0 {j F
s

Balance at 30 june 2027

Amounts recognised in the Income Statement

Leases under IFRS 16 Year ended
30 e 2022

£

Year paded
30 une 2021

im

Amounts recognised in the Cash flow Statement

Year ended 30
ligne 2022

Year ended 30
June 2021

£m fin
0l ALE
[ 7.4

Tre Groun's fesss e 23 Borrowings, The m
wieymens god rick managonont.

£
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25 Financial instruments and risk management

Capital risk mana
The Group manages i1 i reperted «

stire that en in G iHi setemer

Foo e
v the et

‘ ws st b Foreign cutrency risk management
aote 27; see note 20 for cash ary ing
18} 7 C The Group principally operate

U sires ang prerio

&

ket, bat 1as semie o

e Ly US destlars
g basis to ens y S doilars

magnnty of the

Se
Cria COTITECTE,

Transhation risk: T

[RTL ’ k-

hatge in s ooomic
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The Stert

fizbitities {excivding hedged currency and US dollar-denominated harrow

: equivalents of the carrying amaunts of the Growp’s fore

ED CLUTGD f\,f RN

s

minareld monetary assets and

jat the year-end were a5 follows:

30 June 2072 30 June 2021

£ £m

Monetary assets:
L 4 14
[y 113 GE

Yotal

Monetary lahilities:

interest rate risk management

The Group has variable rate bark and
US private placement debt :—'er Jses
interect rate swaps (1R &
ntlation-trved swaps (1LY ) to he
G0 r

ising interest rates.

The Group mamntains a b g
poiicy Yo manage rest rate risk
and to ensure the cerainty of future
soh Hlows. The Group has
Txed rate hedging, split berween IRS
and LS. /S convert variahle rate
nterest costs mfwe«u.mc interest
cocts while ILS convert fixed or
variable rate interest costs to RFIL-
linked costs, which fluctuate inline
with ‘iho r%PI index as da a porvon of
the Group’s revenue contracts. These
sred into on terms
irrorthe

sterest 0

SWas are 2

{including maturity) that mi
debt instrument they hedge, and
therefore act as an effe
econoimic hedge

As the Group uses hedging o

2 interest rates on the
3t borrowings
‘r g revolving tadilities, there
s rhimimal exposure on the interast
sxpense 1o interest rate moverents.
Arise or fall in interest rates would
theretore not mater‘:aily inipact the
mtersst expense payable by the

misinnain

e nithy 11

17.3 6.5

ey woih

Liguidity risk management
To ensyre 1L has Jufﬂ i
funds for working
rEQUITEITents an
e Group maintaing cashr
and aceess 1o undraws
facilities to cover foreoss
regquirements.

marmf;:d growth,

The Group is duetor

refinance £3.30n of debt in the next
S years to 30 june 2027,
reviews are performed 1o assess
headroom between interest and
tapital repayments ag
cash flows, s monitoring the
Hauichty rick and the Group’s shility
ler repay the dabt,

way of

egdiar

Credit risk management
The Group carefully marages the
-:G‘-n;muarty credit risk on fgnd

al

funds and dervatiy
instrurrents with hals

spread act

nees Cure FIUV

ange r*( ‘r‘rdjgr

Groun's ongoing rish managem
processes, which include a regular
review of Lou
Risk irt this ar

ceed 1o credi
ivabies, which is
red through eredit chacking
procedures prior to taking on new

The Groun s eéxp
an custamer rec

customaers ang t er risk customers

i oadvance of service

3 s being
provided, Performance is closely

rvice

pay

monitored to ensus

levels are maintained, reduc -g the
fevel of queried payments an
mitigating the risk of upcoltectable
rebts. Expected imopairment for
trade recelvables are calcuiated
based on hicwv\(di defaulirates.
Details of this provision are shewn in

note 18,
The following tables set out the

miasturity profile of the Group's non-
ahil

derivative financial
derivative finandial Habilities.

The amaunts presented in respect of
the non-de
represent the grass contractual cash
flows on an un-discounted basis
Accordingly, these amounts may not
reconcie directly with ihe
disclosed in the staterment of
firancial position,

abilities

wative fingncial i

amouris

The: amounts presented in respect of
t 2

the Group's derivative finzncd

ts represent their fair

al

instrumen

val are eccordingly consistent

sirounts included inthe

seial poet

with the
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Amounts felling dus

Satwenn
30 fane 2022 one and Between Afrer
Within two two and five Effect of
ong yaar years five years years Totai  discounting
£ £m £ £m £m fim

lirterest Total inancial
1o b

icurred i

in future fiaoncial

periods pasition

£imi £m

382

4.4

53.8

795,13

D7

12745

{(27.2}

(277 .

3,501.5

EUR
112

{33.0)

345.%

(7657}

[SaNs

f “he £

Amuounts fatfing due

Beiween
30 rune 2021 Bhwes
sne and Netween After
Freciatedte ) i :
{Restated) Within two twa and tive Effoct of
GRe year YER{T thee yoars yearrs Torat hsteuniing
£in £m £m im £ £m

@
=
o
ooy
w
i
wt
=)
S

Total swaps 73 ¢ 53.1

Totai financal hability 336.7 2008 5,780.G 561.0 £,958.3 {30.4)

interest Total financial
g he Habifity per
incurred statement of
in ftiture financial
peiiods position
fan £m

439

5.1

54.5

6.8}
3331
- 326.3

[310.3) 6,617.6
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The tabie balow outlines the addition:

rancing faolities availabile to the Group

10 June 2072 30 Juewe 2021

£m £m

Total

Financiai instruments
With the exception of derivs
financial instruments {which are

recogrised and measured st falr

value through profit and losst ihe
Group’s financial assets and fing
lishilities are recognised ana

measured following the fina:
gesete measured at amortised cost
recogntion ategory.
The weighted average inte
uf fixed rate financal | ?LJ' t
June 2022 for the next 12 mon
was 6.044% (2021: 6.1 ) and ¢
weighted average period of fur
was 34 years (2021 4.3 years).

Within the Group's financial Habilities

were borrowings of £6,7%8,7m
{2021 £6,179.2m]) (see note 22,
which includes £582.3m {2021:
£581.5m) with Hoating rale interest
and the remz
interest {prior 1o the
rANPEMEnts des

inder with fixed rate
hedging
e previoushy}.

The Growp's financial assets

amortised cost
cash equivalenis

measured at

COMPrise ¢

rash an

of £251 Iy ‘2’)?‘1 £243.5m) and

st i«d in notes 2 ) rmai d

resped Tji'\.'f:‘ri‘-,l_

Derivative financial instruments

The Group sPeks 1o manage the
exposures of s debt payimeny

ahs through a combination of
inked and interast rate swaps,

At ihe year end, the Group held
Terest rete swans with nutional
amounts of £450.5m (2021
£444 6m} which hedge the In
obligations of the Group’s floating
rate debt. The average fixed rate on
vese instrumeants is 0.2% (2071
0 2%} The swap contracts have
ation dates that ms""rr,h tE‘m

Erest

The Grouvp has alse entered iito
index inked swaps (notional
amounts of £681.8m in 2022; !
£681.8m) w% her

floating and pays YIXGd inked to
inflation interest oblipations fo an
aver ste of 2.9% indexed with

£50.0

e
AN

100 BIMOUNTS
annualy, most
{££3.96m; 2021: £14.5m) hiae sd an
the March indes

acgret

Al of thes
rity dat
?i"‘lumc.ﬂs Were es
hedge the Group’s =t
(namely fized rate steriing honds and

the fixed rate US Private Placoemeant
issues) and in arder
the cash flow characterist
the Croup

has entered into £600.5m (20271
fﬁﬂ,ina} of fixed to flosting
interest rate swaps 1o match
cach flows on hoth the fived rate
debt instrument

is and the index
s set oul sbove

>

matu

to ensure fhat

with these instruments,

linked s SWap

The fair vaive of the intorest rat

inflation finked swaps af ?uju“é“
2022 a liabtity of £312.5m (2
£2326.3m). This tair value :
ed discount rare,

ivrg a riskeadjust
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30 sune 2622 33 tune 2021

£i1r im

Within non-cutrert assxets

1 o DHites

Lo
i

Toral o

QUD S ey

Gased

Upon gincou

cash {lov

fovward

125 Argiva Ggup Limited {company reg 05254001)



Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2022

26 Provisions

Decomimssioning Restructiing Remediation oncrous Other Tatal
Contracts
£ £ £m fere £ £

1T R %7

STl G

e lamngmd

At 30 june ¥G22 78.3 48

30 hune 2022 30 June 2021

£ £

Analysed as:

Currert

The rermediation provision teor
stof worls Wdentified as h

s 2 humber of the

i

o acros

no material decommissioning expecied  regull

sives, and the cost of restarat Before 204 A discount rate of 5.6% Grau’s sites and s expe
recoverable from third parties. has been appbed in caiculating the ptilised overthe pext one 1o 1

decom toning provision {2021

Trie deconurissioning provisions are S . - )
5 4%) bhased on Lhe Group's welghted

lated using

reviowed ahy

, . CERES COs Teap .
expected costs as determined by site average cost of capital

and groject management, The The restructuring provision refates to
provicion icin relation 16 sosats for the costs of exceptional sctivities to
which the e g useful economic recarganise the Group,

up to Z0years with the
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27 Notes to the cash flow statement

Year ended Year engded
30 fune 1022 36 fune 2021
v £

Changes it Other thanges

financing Changes in incieding
At 1 July cash flows sxchange fzir value  asccrued interest A1 3G fung
2071 {Cash} INon-cash} {hon-cash} {Non-cash} 2022
£ fm £m £m £ £m

Total £,514.1 £225.4) - 16.2 700.3 70512
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28 Financial commitments and contingent liabilities

Fimancing commitments

Under the terms of the Group's curity over substantially alt of 1ts 3.5pts by

gl debt faciities, tha Groun has provided

Securitisation strusiure

way of a Whole Bt

Capital commitrnents
f'or*rmit-m ste for the acquisition of plant and eguipment contracted for st the repoiting date bur not recognized as a

&

ishility ate payabiv oy ulows:

30 lune 2022 30 fune 2021
£m Em
Vehin oo yoges Gy i

Lyl goars

U lwi T

Tetal capital commiitments

There are no capital commitrments payable in more then five years,

Contingent assets and liabilities not been publicly shared and Argiva 1o INSLPers 1o assess the v of fosses
unableto comment i detall on these and restoration costs.
Urisdale Tower Fire: tindinge while the claims proceds g
On 10 August 2021 afive broke out at angoing. Af the current fime such insurance
our Bilsdale tranwmitter site. Arqiva’c claims are considered contingent
engineers have worked on a four stag These fingncial statements include ussets and are 1ot therefore
recovery plan to reinstate services losses recognised on disposstof assets recognised in rhe statement of
detivered via this site. Through efforts davaged or destroyed n the Incident financial position in accordance with
utitising exi<ting and temporary and subsequently disposed of, as well FCOGUNTIng ,,tandards, with the
infrastructure, to date around 98% of as costs incurred in the pericd, see exception of @ Frsk interim stage
househalds have een returned to note 7. Management continues o payment of £5.0m which was received
coverage area for TV and commercial work with speciai’st advisors to assass from the Group’s nsurers in June 2023
racio benefited from improved any further potentiai financial which has been recorded as
coverage to what it was hefore t penaities and service credits that may exceptional other income (see note 7)
fire. Argiva continues to engage with ke due to third parties. At the current
iocal stakeholders, including viewers, Fme 1t is not noscible to determine the G0 21 September 2022, 2 second
MiPs, local government and the media  expected oulcome or guantification of  rterim sisge payment of £310.0% was
thirough its ‘Bidate Mast: Project such amoLnts and therefore the received from the inzorers in refetion
Restore’ programime, Lirectors consider this represents a to the Bilcdale fire. A 30 June 2022
cf)ntmgem Hability. The group holds this represented & contin
en informed that its’ SLTEnce COVErage and management and has therefore not been recognised

now conciuded their continues to engage with the group's nthe income statemrent.

Precise findings have
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29 Retirement benefits

sefined contribution scheme
Arciva ‘a.ia‘rx:‘:@d Nas operated a Defined

Cor r": ut

Investment risk

{nterest risk

Ls}ngewty risk

Saiary nsk

i
i

reiated Carrent service ¢

srE Bt ((., st

30 june 2022 30 fune 2021

pLians

R
oz
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ed inthe conuwslidated incarme foliows

Year pnded Year ended
30 June 2022 30 lune 2021
£ fm

Het rterest on e celined heachr o et

ey

stitern above 1as Deen inctud

ricurred duning the year

has bes exceptionst costs {see note 7).

VNt

sien were 35 follows:

Amounts of cormnprehentive income in respect of the defined henef

Year ended Year ended
20 June 2022 30 lune 2621
£ fm

Artuarie

fal position arising from the Group’s ohligations i respect of s defined

30 fune 2022 3G e 2021
£ £

fPlan ausets

woofnetied heee B Sa

Surplus at 30 junc

ctof WRIT14 and

The Group has considersd tha i
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T
!

b~ I
Fe e

cof the siatement of Ninan

RS

COSTIon Gye

Year ended
30 June 2022

Year ended
30 tune 2021

ATV R

over The y

fimi R
L7i g
oA N
"4 SN

Year ended
O junc 2022
£

Year anded
3% tone 2021
£

Year andeq
0 fune 2022
£340]

Yeor eaded
3 iune 2071
£m

30 June

131
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tne malor categories and fair values of Plan asceds at the end of tre reporting year for each

3¢ June 2022 30 June 2021

NS £Em

&0 L 29.8

£l 4 740

H] 0o
PR
At WP T g 37
2456

Tatat

As et 30 0une 2022 £7 dmcithe Plan's Group's own financ nts of
coiporate bonds were unguoted. A4 ary oroperty cooupisd by, of asets

rd debt assets have weed by, the Group.

Aoin active markeds

he Plan incledes holeings of gits and

corporate bords, which are intended Gﬁ on 27 [d»luuly 22

i partially | \(dg,e, the financial risk used for the purpoces ')f e
from liabiity valuation rz‘mv&mm*ig the plan asvsets ar\d the presen
ciated with changes in gilt anc ol the defined honefit Pabifity.

corporate bond yields. 14519 lia ;thty carried out Oy an tncmpenda:m firm of
movernents fram chan iri t.“e-: ror'«;uit‘r;g actuaries, The

i of the [AS1S de it
znd the re a*z.er.:' CUrTE!
ard psst service (oot have Deen

;Wf 16 v“\/ ase mmpt Gns

measured wsing the projected unit
credin method based on roll forwarnd

et changes inthe three key assumplions is shown beicw:

The seasitvity of the 2022 year end

| Giscount rate decrease of ; RPlincrease of 0.1%
Ci

; Longevity asswmption
BREY

iunrimg Puﬂmon |
intrea ccfl year [

-

T
|
i
i
|
i
ok
:
|
i

|
I
i
i .

sinthe thres Key assumptions is shown below

The sensirt rTy of the 2021 year end results o cha

| o]l % Longeviy assumpticn |
I 0 1 ' i incresse of 1 year i
I B T, O ]

i !
| ¢ 4 ! £l |

4

is Ay 1ot be representative of th the defined henefit oblipation as it

sther as =ome of the arsumptions may be corre

iy

¥
umptiors would coour insolstion of one

30 Related party transactions

the reporting date reflects reiated

and transactions between the i1y assodiates, joint veriur

iite subsidiaries, which entrtics under commaon nilue

party relationships st that date.
narties, have heen disciosent below.

don conschidation and are Trading transactigns

] During the year ended 30 fun
the Group entered into the foliowng
ated parves who
e Groun:

2{22

cinsed in this note.

elated party re

Geclosure of a

Transactions with the Group's pe

are disclnsed i note 29,

sehern
Transactions hetween the Group and cutstanding to/from related parties at

HEY
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Szle of gnods and services Furchase of goods and services
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year endod
30 hine 20622 =0 pune 2023 30 June 2022 a0 june 2023
£ £m £ £m
- -
EARS PR e
- e [

ransacpigng are

o

0.2 management personn

5 and

ey g 2rent

fripem @kl

e

uncher @

Groun s cet out helow inag

ot Rermunarztion of Directors and key

el

The ramuneration of the Lirectors ang

S

. coniran fnfl ) G202 24 Felated Poarty Disciosur
Vear ended Your eraind
30 rune 2612 34 fine 2021
£m Y
e T H

5 of the Direcrare ATkt

[t
e

gnthe G

PEse rVESTOr ¢

the Groupin accordante

A5 24, by virtue of significant
Y

foartot

30 fune 2022
Prism *

MEIF §} 3 Matguare FICAL -
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U e IS MEGIF I MO e RMuigusiie FICAL +
Prism *
fm £m £m £m
BT Ity i ER :
Sraret erest for the yesr : R 48
237 a€ 8

Post year end on 1% August 20221
Group sipned a comunibment for a
£450m term faciiity and a £50m
Working Capital Facility botn with ars
expected maturity date of 2028, These
facilities are floating rate in nature
with a margin over SCNIA. Argiva
Brozdeast Intermediate Limited {a
subsidiary of the Group) is the
horrower of this arrangement, The
procesds of this facility when drawn

will he used to fP(i;e;m the Grouns
outstanding L625m funior bonds.

32 Controlling parties

The Compary is ewned by a

consortivm of shareholders including

Canada Pension Plan investment

Board, Macguarie European

infrastructure Fund il, other Macguaris
anaged funds and minorities.

The tar,
which the results of

gest and sma GEGUD

3

e Company zre

holder Loan notes
2of since year end
and now have maturily dales renging
fram BMarch 2029 1o March 2030,

have alsn

Gr 21 September 2022, & second
witerim stage pdwT et of £10.0nm was
vied froin the insurers mreiation to

the Bilsdale fire, £t 30 June 2022, thi
e a cortingent asset asd hag
recognised in the

reprecent
erefore not been

e sigrement,

G

o by Arg:

in June 2022 U was announced that

Digital 9 Infrastructure has agreed 1o

purchase Canada Penson Plan

fri sqt:’s‘.@r*t Fnard’ {CPPIB) entire 4870
stak ightal @ Infrastructure
sac im (a-@d in f: actructure investor,

ed inthe UK and with

rate rh(,..g,c from 197 to
etfect from 1 April 2023 was
(tam‘eFEed i
12 and 19

For further

significant expenence in the
infrastraciure industiy. it is an

cipated
,d.r.erm
erndar year. fh!ht point the

that this deal will be compl
i

representatives from CPPIR sppoin
athe Board of Directors willt be

o

hatives from

replaced by repre
'*’igiuiﬂ nfrasiracture, This

hange the day-to-day operatinns of
ouir business,

will not
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Directors’ report for Argiva Group Limited (‘the

Company’)

fAroiva Group Lhimited,

Financial risk management
; hiigrward natus

the Comn;

repo

3 e¥pooed 1o himited
Folptements in E'E",—,L‘Hi ofthe E :

Growp's Mnangial risi

Future developments and going
concern

Business review and principal
activities
The Comp

ctors of the

Principal risks and uncertainties and
key performance indicators (‘KPIs’ )

-, ‘r{“”" Y

e NIt e i

Fror 13"(5 PErS ,.)( ctive ¢f the C’

e or position of
 The kPic of the Gro

Dlwdends and transfers to reserves

s DIrE Ol

L 10 RoT Ore
gisicerd {2031

Directors’ indemnities
The Company has provide

the date t
sipned.

taternents are
Disclosure of information to the
independent auditors

The Directors of the Comp
e of approval of o

mihiat:

AWAre

Oﬁ\;bxﬁ

Mike Parton - Dirertc
26 Sentambaer 2022

13
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Company statement of financial position

Nate 30 June 2022 30 june 2021

i £m

Non-current assets

Deferred tax

Inyoeymeat, 2

Dithar regons 4 -
..... 14

Current assets

LTRer caesivsh e 4 i

Current Habtlities

Other Govan'es 5 E 7

Met current hakilitios [15.7) [12.9)

Net lizbilities {12.3) {11.5)

Equity

Shore calaim E53 0

Share pes

Fovrainted nstet 15615

Total equity {12.3) {11.5}

The accounting policies and notes an page 138 form part of ihese financial statements,

The result for the fnancial vear for the Company was a loss of FOEM (2021 £0.8m o)

These finandal staterments on pages 135 1o 145 were zpproved by the Boerd of Directors on 76 September 2022 and were
sighed on s behaifl by

ks

Mike Parton -

=

EOTCY
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Company statement of changes in equity

Share capial® Share premipum Acewmsintad fosses Tatal eguity
i £ £in L
Balance gt 1 july 2020 65319 1156 {3440 25 {10.7)

Balance at 30 Junp 2021

(12.3)
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Argiva Group Limited accounting policies and other information

Basis of preparation

As Lsed in these tinancial s
and ascociated notes, the teom
Grs ta Argiva Qroup

staténments

Argive Group Linstted 1s a private

company imited by shares
ated in the United Kingdam,
e registered address of the Company
Craw e“y Court, Winchester,
5, $021 2GA.

The Farancat Statements of the

N OrEpared in

arcordance with Finanoal Repoiting

standard 101, Reduced Disclosure
Framework’ (FRS 101} The financal
statements have h‘-w urepdrs'd ona

en Aot
2tements

sceordance with t 4
2006, The Group's fin
{Argiva Growp Linited and

subsidiaries] are avalabie o

Eds1iil

ir ot

AR L}E’C} By &

5ol

Company’s moome staternent ha
been

precented.

noaguled

unting nolicies have b
dhy thraughouot.

New zod rovised Standards and
gtions have he@n 9-1*0;}1‘{-'(1 it
nt year,
of the
s Trere s n
Jact on the C(;I'T‘Dr)w“"‘y' Ih
closure rxe—=mpn(ms as permitted by
‘RS 101, have been

L aote 2

"Uuow'*g

spraph & of §

=

N ihese Cf,mn(my financial

ctatemerts and netes:

El-adopted IFRS

A5 1 Presentation of
ol statements 136
IAS 7 Statement of Cash
Flows

IAS 24 Relsted Party
Diselozures

FRS 7 = Financist
wiruments

Accounting policies

.
e

+

ansociates are sh

on for lﬂ

orov

R
Hhanu

srich
demana

Other payabies
Other payables
bearing and are recorded at fair value.
They are included in current labiities,
excent for maturities greater than 12
renths afler the reporting date, which

dre not interest

are classifion a5 non-current labifties,

approved h\,f
Cornpany's sharchoiders,

dividenrds are

The reguire
Al disglceure
The requt

tra::sar.t%ry e
suhsichary party 1o the transaction s wholly owned by suct

sgrapt
15 entered into hetwe

Viw o

eisrements.

iy shares are classified g

gLty

Other information

y had no employecs

st {2071 None of
the Dzrr ctors {2021 none) were

ted hy the Company,

NONEe].

FETLIGEer:

Their individual remuneration refiects
they provide to the
s subsidiaries and a

the services
Company, it
number of other gntities ocutside
sfore not possible to

of the
Group. I is the

raent of

ret
rate ;ppmt Gy

ol U
Mard an acd

@

veetot
iy exee IL* where sums are paic
d parties in respoct of thair
o, There were 1o coch sums

384, %8B 100, 40Ato D, 111 and 134 10

hal sy

I

widit fee in respect of the

CO"“[J oy and fees payahie 1o
o]

PricawaterhouseCoopers LLP for non-

audi services were not specific to the

Ct;rnpar*y andd are disclosed in the
wtes to the Group finandial

ents [see note &)

statern

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

No critical accounting
judgements have h(if"l‘r used inthe
preparstion of these financial

Sratereet

stimetes or

g
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2 Directors’ remuneration

wre sel Cut e

nraspact of th

Yearended Year anided
0 fune 1022 30 june 2621
im Em

54
-5
o
1

.

to the Com

sroul except where s

fol

seiation 1o the Company. ALLort Highest paid directot

copect of there hrchuded i th

2

above s

ot poss kg Uite
et of cach

Year ended Year ended
30 june 2022 30 June 2021
fin £m
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3 Investments

bsidiary in indirectly unle

= Company’s

Campany Country of Year Percentage of erdinary
incorporation end shares hetd

ABHL R

Argag Wi

Lo maet vorepeny

¥ OISty

a0 CMinncET tLGmiany

s Defined B

[l rerin

shing Moo 3L

Jlretad

ERNl IR Comaay

vehngle

HMoltirg comp

Ao

Arciva

M STTVER

Ariiv
frova i
Al va i
Argva Limete

Argive L

Poris
AR

frgus Mokle Broadt

Ry

L

Yiva WG L ted

Il

A Wk

Arciva Mo 1 hin

Frova Mo Li

Trwst Lo

Forniva e

Y
Ay pdde b

Fir
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Company Country of

fncorporation

Year end

Percentage of ordinary
shares hetd
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stered office of each of the subsidiary compenies listed was

With the following exceptions, the re
Winchester, Hampshire, 3021 20A

Compan Registersd otfice

By

NN

ST S

Arotea 5

Aoy s </ Btadic

PG o ough,

oo Moo Frasor Cuertormoe 200

Yentures

Percentage of
Principal activities Registered office Year end ordinary
shares held

Cowtry of

Compan . :
pany inrorparation

Joit veriturés

Ciueres

A0 L0k

IS

Uik OAE s ool

e e

Yard,

Londen, BEng!

pnrt delivery ot s d glane,

'+

IR
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gy and indy
snteed

s At 2006

The following compa
audit exemption

d wit?

Company Company registration
ninber

+

be foliowing darm
1

Lampan Congpany repstration
pany b B
aomber
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Campany registration
number

Conrpany

LG FETD

intnodis Comm

ey Cn
G Limetes)

by

Selectivs Magise coited

Spmecir g 3rthie {UR ] it

Tots!

£m

{arrying vatue

A1 30 Jupe 2022

idiares on &n anneel bads, or o

& tors consider the carrying valve of the Compan
freguently should indicators arise.

4 Other receivables

30 hne 2022 30 Jlune 2021

£ £m

Within current assets

s e Gro e
Within nan-current assets

Is

ie from othe

toamited which incars interest 51 9.5% per ann

st-free, and reps

Whith the exception of £0.9m

(20621 £0.8m) due from Araiva Hololng
amounts receivable are due from other Group eniiti

GO BrE Lrnrag shie on demandd
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5 Other payables

30 June J0332 30 lune 2071

o Em

Within carrent Halnlities

eng
SO
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